
  

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
GWŶS I GYFARFOD PWYLLGOR 
 
C Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
2 Llys Cadwyn 
Stryd y Taf 
Pontypridd 
CF37 4TH 
 
Dolen gyswllt: Julia Nicholls - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd (01443 424098)  
 
DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod hybrid o GYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL RHONDDA 
CYNON TAF sydd i'w gynnal ar DYDD MERCHER, 24 Ebrill 2024 am 3.30pm 
 
Bwriedir i’r cyfarfod yma gael ei weddarlledu’n fyw, mae rhagor o fanylion am hyn yma 

 
AMSER EITEM TUDALEN(N

AU) 
  

EITEM 1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 

5 
Munud  

Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau yn 
unol â gofynion Cod Ymddygiad y Cyngor 
  

1.     Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm 
y mae eu buddiant yn ymwneud ag e a mynegi natur y 
buddiant personol hwnnw; a   

2.    Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i 
ddatgelu buddiant sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi 
gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan nhw'n gadael.  

 

 

 
EITEM 2. BWRDD IECHYD PRIFYSGOL CWM TAF 

MORGANNWG 
 

  

Derbyn cynrychiolwyr gan Fwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg, gan roi cyfle i'r Aelodau drafod yr wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf o ran materion strategol, megis cynllunio'r gweithlu a 
phwysau'r gaeaf.  
 

 

 
5 

Munud 
  

EITEM 3. CYHOEDDIADAU 
 

 

 
EITEM 4. COFNODION 

 
5 

Munud  
Cadarnhau cofnodion o gyfarfod hybrid y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar 
6 Mawrth 2024 yn rhai cywir.  
 

5 - 20 

 

https://rctcbc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 LLYWODRAETHU AGORED: 
 

 
 

EITEM 5. DATGANIADAU 
 

5 
Munud  

Yn unol â Rheol 2 o Weithdrefn Llywodraethu Agored Cyfarfodydd 
y Cyngor, derbyn datganiadau gan Arweinydd y Cyngor a/neu 
Gynghorwyr sy'n Aelodau Portffolio o'r Cabinet:  
 

 

 
EITEM 6. CWESTIYNAU GAN YR AELODAU 

 
20 

Munud  
Derbyn cwestiynau'r Aelodau yn unol â Rheol 9.2 o Weithdrefn y 
Cyngor.  
  
(Nodwch: Caniateir hyd at 20 munud ar gyfer cwestiynau.)  
 

21 - 30 

 
 RHAGLEN WAITH Y CYNGOR – ER GWYBODAETH I 

AELODAU 
Rhaglen Waith Y Cyngor 2023/2024 
 

 

 
EITEM 7. TRAFODAETH AR SEFYLLFA'R FWRDEISTREF 

SIROL 
 

40 
Munud  

Cynnal trafodaeth yr Arweinydd  yn unol â Rheol 13 o Reolau 
Gweithdrefn y Cyngor (Rhan 4 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor).  
 

 

 
 ADRODDIADAU'R SWYDDOGION 

 
 

 
EITEM 8. CYNLLUN CORFFORAETHOL Y CYNGOR 2024-2030 

(DRAFFT) 
 

10 
Munud  

Derbyn adroddiad y Prif Weithredwr.  
 

31 - 74 

 
EITEM 9. CYDBWYSEDD GWLEIDYDDOL 

 
10 

Munud  
Trafod adroddiad ar y cyd Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol a Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfarwyddwr 
Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu.  
 

75 - 82 

 
EITEM 10. ADOLYGIAD O DREFNIADAU CYMUNEDOL 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
 

10 
Munud  

Derbyn adroddiad Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd.  
 

83 - 140 

 
EITEM 11. AIL-BENODI AELOD ANNIBYNNOL I'R PWYLLGOR 

SAFONAU 
 

10 
Munud  

Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol a Llywodraethol.  
 

141 - 144 

 
EITEM 12. RHYBUDD O GYNNIG 

 
30 

Munud  
Ystyried y Rhybuddion o Gynnig sydd wedi'u cyflwyno yn unol â 
Rheol Gweithdrefn y Cyngor 10.1 yn y cyfansoddiad.  
  
 

145 - 150 

 

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/CY/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/RelatedDocuments/workprogrammes/20232024/CouncilWorkProgramme202324.pdf


EITEM 13. MATERION BRYS 
 

  

Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn 
faterion brys yng ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig.  
 

 

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
 
 
At: Pob Aelod o'r Cyngor  
 



tudalen wag



 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CYNGOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 CYNGOR 
Cofnodion o gyfarfod hybrid y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd Dydd Mercher, 6 Mawrth 2024 am 5.00 pm  

 
Cafodd y cyfarfod yma ei ddarlledu'n fyw, ac mae modd gweld y manylion yma 

 
Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol – Roedd y Cynghorwyr canlynol yn bresennol yn Siambr 

y Cyngor:- 
 

Y Cynghorydd G Hughes (Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd S Evans Y Cynghorydd B Stephens 
Y Cynghorydd L Addiscott 

Y Cynghorydd J Barton 
Y Cynghorydd J. Bonetto 

Y Cynghorydd M Ashford 
Y Cynghorydd S Bradwick 
Y Cynghorydd G. Caple 

Y Cynghorydd A Crimmings Y Cynghorydd J Cook 
Y Cynghorydd A Dennis Y Cynghorydd R Davis 

Y Cynghorydd E L Dunning Y Cynghorydd J Elliott 
Y Cynghorydd L Ellis Y Cynghorydd S Emanuel 

Y Cynghorydd D Evans Y Cynghorydd B Harris 
Y Cynghorydd A S Fox Y Cynghorydd G Holmes 

Y Cynghorydd S Hickman Y Cynghorydd W Hughes 
Y Cynghorydd K Johnson Y Cynghorydd G Jones 
Y Cynghorydd G O Jones 

Y Cynghorydd W Jones 
Y Cynghorydd N H Morgan 
Y Cynghorydd R Lewis 

Y Cynghorydd W Lewis Y Cynghorydd C Lisles 
Y Cynghorydd C Leyshon Y Cynghorydd M Maohub 
Y Cynghorydd S Morgans 

Y Cynghorydd M Norris 
Y Cynghorydd D Owen-Jones 

Y Cynghorydd A Morgan 
Y Cynghorydd W Owen 
Y Cynghorydd S Rees 

Y Cynghorydd C Preedy Y Cynghorydd G Stacey 
Y Cynghorydd J Smith 

Y Cynghorydd L Tomkinson 
Y Cynghorydd W Treeby 

Y Cynghorydd M Webber 
Y Cynghorydd T Williams 

Y Cynghorydd S Trask 
Y Cynghorydd G L Warren   
Y Cynghorydd R Williams 
Y Cynghorydd D Wood 
Y Cynghorydd R Yeo                

Roedd y Cynghorwyr canlynol yn bresennol ar-lein:- 
 

Y Cynghorydd R Bevan 
Y Cynghorydd S Evans 

Y Cynghorydd D Grehan 
Y Cynghorydd G Hopkins 

Y Cynghorydd D Parkin 
Y Cynghorydd A O Rogers  

Y Cynghorydd J Turner 
Y Cynghorydd D Williams 

 

Y Cynghorydd V Dunn 
Y Cynghorydd R Evans 
Y Cynghorydd P Evans 
Y Cynghorydd H Gronow 
Y Cynghorydd C Middle 
Y Cynghorydd A Roberts 
Y Cynghorydd K Webb 
Y Cynghorydd G Williams 
 

 

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 4

https://rctcbc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 
 

Mr P Mee, Prif Weithredwr 
Mr B Davies, Dirprwy Brif Weithredwr ac Chyfarwyddwr Cyfadran - Cyllid, Gwasanaethau Digidol a 

Gwasanaethau Rheng Flaen 
Mr R Evans, Cyfarwyddwr - Materion Adnoddau Dynol 

Mr C Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Mr A Wilkins, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 
Ymddiheuriadu am absenoldeb 

 
Y Cynghorydd P Binning Y Cynghorydd J Brencher 

Y Cynghorydd S J Davies Y Cynghorydd J Edwards 
Y Cynghorydd A J Ellis Y Cynghorydd K Morgan 

Y Cynghorydd S Powderhill Y Cynghorydd M Powell 
 

  
99   Croeso  

 
 

 Croesawodd y Llywydd yr Aelodau i gyfarfod hybrid cyntaf y Cyngor i’w gynnal 
ym Mhencadlys newydd y Cyngor yn Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd. 
  
 

 

 
100   Datgan Buddiant  

 
 

 Yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad y Cyngor, cafodd y datganiadau o fuddiant canlynol 
eu gwneud ynglŷn â'r agenda: 
  
Eitem 5 ar yr agenda – Cwestiynau'r Aelodau 
  
Y Cynghorydd K Johnson – Personol – “Rydw i'n cael fy ngyflogi gan gwmni 
Trafnidiaeth Cymru” 
  
Eitem 6 ar yr agenda – Strategaeth Cyllideb Refeniw 2024/2025  
  
Eglurodd Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd y byddai 
datganiad personol cyffredinol ar gyfer y rhai sy'n aelodau o Gyngor Tref neu 
Gymuned yn cael ei ddatgan mewn perthynas ag Eitemau 6 a 7 ar yr Agenda 
sy'n cyfeirio at y Praeseptau Cynghorau Cymuned/Tref. 

Cynghorydd Sera Evans – Personol - “Crybwyllir ysgol fy mab yn yr adroddiad” 
  
(Datganwyd yn ddiweddarach yn y cyfarfod Cyfeiriwch at Gofnod Rhif 105) Y 
Cynghorydd R Lewis – Personol - “Rwy’n Is-Gadeirydd Gwasanaeth Addysg ar y 
Cyd Consortiwm Canolbarth y De” 
  
Eitem 7 ar yr agenda – Penderfyniad Treth y Cyngor 2024/25 
  
Y Cynghorydd C Lisles – Personol - “Rydw i'n Gynghorydd Cymuned ar Gyngor 
Tref Pontypridd.” 
  
Y Cynghorydd J Bonetto – Personol - “Rydw i’n Gynghorydd Cymuned ar 
Gyngor Cymuned Ffynnon Taf a Nantgarw” 
  
Y Cynghorydd A Rogers – Personol - “Rwy’n aelod o Gyngor Cymuned Hirwaun 

 

Tudalen 6



 

a Phenderyn” 
  
Y Cynghorydd B Harris – Personol – “Rydw i'n Aelod o Banel Heddlu a 
Throsedd De Cymru.” 

Y Cynghorydd L Addiscott – Personol – “Rydw i'n Aelod o Banel Heddlu a 
Throsedd De Cymru.” 

  
Eitem 8 ar yr agenda – Rhaglen Gyfalaf 2024-2025-2026-27 
  
Y Cynghorydd W. Owen – Personol – “Rwy’n eistedd ar Fwrdd Llywodraethwyr 
Ysgol Gynradd Pont-y-clun” 
  
Y Cynghorydd G Holmes – Personol - “Rwy’n Llywodraethwr ar gyfer Ysgol 
Gynradd Pen-y-gawsi” 
  
Y Cynghorydd S Morgans – Personol - “Rwy’n Llywodraethwr ar gyfer Ysgol Llyn 
Y Forwyn” 
  
Cynghorydd J Smith – Personol – “Rwy’n Llywodraethwr ar gyfer Ysgol Llyn Y 
Forwyn” 
  
Y Cynghorydd M Webber – Personol- “Rwy’n eistedd ar y Corff Llywodraethu 
dros dro ar gyfer Ysgol newydd Awel Taf" 
  
Y Cynghorydd L Tomkinson – Personol - “Rwy’n Llywodraethwr dros dro ar gyfer 
Ysgol Afon Taf” 
  
Y Cynghorydd S Trask - Personol - “Mae fy merch yn mynychu Ysgol Gyfun 
Bryncelynnog” 
  
Y Cynghorydd C Lisles – Personol - “Rwy’n Gadeirydd y llywodraethwyr yn 
Ysgol Gynradd y Ddraenen Wen” 
  
Y Cynghorydd C Lisles – Personol - “Rwy’n aelod o Gorff Llywodraethu Ysgol 
Uwchradd y Ddraenen Wen a fydd yn ffurfio Ysgol Afon Wen” 
  
Y Cynghorydd C Preedy - Personol - “Mae gen i aelod o’r teulu sy’n athro yn 
Ysgol Gyfun Bryncelynnog” 
  
Y Cynghorydd A Roberts – Personol - “Rwy’n Llywodraethwr ar gyfer Ysgol 
Uwchradd y Ddraenen Wen”   
  
Y Cynghorydd J Bonetto - Personol - “Rwy'n Llywodraethwr yn Ysgol Uwchradd 
y Ddraenen Wen”  
  
Cynghorydd J Bonetto – Personol - “Rwy’n eistedd ar y Corff Llywodraethu dros 
dro ar gyfer Ysgol newydd Afon Wen” 
  
Eitem Agenda 11 – Datganiad 2024/25 y Cyngor ar Bolisi Cyflogau 
  
Roedd Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd yn dymuno 
gwneud datganiad ar ran holl Swyddogion y Cyngor a oedd yn bresennol mewn 
perthynas ag Eitem 11 ar yr Agenda: 

Tudalen 7



 

  
“Nid yw datganiad y Cyngor ar Bolisi Cyflogau yn cael unrhyw effaith ar delerau 
ac amodau presennol sy'n berthnasol i weithwyr unigol. Yn syml mae'n nodi dull 
y Cyngor tuag at bolisïau a fabwysiadwyd yn flaenorol, felly bydd Swyddogion yn 
aros yn y cyfarfod tra bydd yr eitem yn cael ei chyflwyno gan y Cyfarwyddwr 
Materion Adnoddau Dynol ac yn ystod y drafodaeth ddilynol." 
  
  

101   Cofnodion  
 

 

 PENDERFYNODD y Cyngor gymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod ar-lein blaenorol 
o'r Cyngor, a gynhaliwyd ar 7 Chwefror 2024, yn rhai cywir. 
  
 

 

 
102   Cyhoeddiadau  

 
 

 Cafodd y cyhoeddiadau canlynol eu gwneud: 
  
    Roedd y Cynghorydd Sera Evans yn dymuno estyn ei chydymdeimlad i 

Arweinydd Grŵp Plaid Cymru, y Cynghorydd Karen Morgan, a’i theulu yn 
dilyn marwolaeth drist ei gŵr, Gareth, o ganlyniad i salwch difrifol a 
hirfaith. Roedd y Cynghorydd Evans yn dymuno estyn ei chydymdeimlad 
dwysaf â’r Cynghorydd Morgan, ei theulu a’i phlant ar yr adeg hynod 
drist ac anodd yma. 
  

   Talodd y Cynghorydd Sheryl Evans deyrnged i’r cyn-Gynghorydd 
diweddar Linda De Vet, a fu farw ar 7 Chwefror 2024. Roedd y cyn-
Gynghorydd De Vet yn cynrychioli ward Gogledd Aberaman ar y pryd ac 
fe’i hetholwyd yn Faeres ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2019-2020. Safodd 
i lawr fel Cynghorydd yn Etholiadau 2022 ond siaradodd y Cynghorydd 
Evans yn annwyl am ei chyfeillgarwch gyda’i ffrind Linda De Vet. 
  

    Roedd y Cynghorydd A Morgan OBE hefyd yn dymuno talu teyrnged i'r 
cyn-Gynghorydd Simon Lloyd a fu farw'n ddiweddar. Cafodd ei ethol i 
gynrychioli ward Gorllewin Aberpennar mewn is-etholiad yn 2005 a 
safodd eto yn Etholiadau Lleol 2008 a 2012, cyn sefyll i lawr yn 2017. 
Gwasanaethodd fel Maer y Cyngor yn 2010/2011, gan fwynhau'r gwaith 
yn fawr, ac roedd hefyd yn gyn aelod o Gyngor Sir Morgannwg Ganol. 
Cydymdeimlodd yr Arweinydd â theulu Simon ar yr adeg drist yma. 

  
Arweiniodd y Llywydd y Cyngor mewn munud o dawelwch er cof am y tri 
unigolyn yma. 
  
 

 

 
103   Cwestiynau gan yr Aelodau  

 
 

 1)  Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol R Evans i Arweinydd y 
Cyngor, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A Morgan OBE: 

  
“A wnaiff yr Aelod o'r Cabinet roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y cynllun i 
uwchraddio’r cwlfert ar ystad ddiwydiannol y Porth?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 

 

Tudalen 8



 

  
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y gwaith bellach wedi'i gwblhau ar y cwlfert yn 
Ystâd Ddiwydiannol Llwyncelyn, y Porth, a ariannwyd drwy Gronfa Ffyrdd 
Cydnerth Llywodraeth Cymru.  Ychwanegodd fod y gwaith wedi cynnwys 
uwchraddio'r cwlfert yn llwyr, gyda dyfeisiau gorlif wedi'u hadeiladu i mewn, ac 
mae trefniadau Monitro TCC 24/7 eisoes ar waith ar y safle, sy'n gysylltiedig ag 
ystafell reoli argyfwng y Cyngor. Bydd unrhyw stormydd sydd â rhybudd melyn 
neu ambr yn y dyfodol yn golygu y bydd yr ystafell reoli yn cael ei staffio a'i 
monitro. 
  
Soniodd yr Arweinydd am y buddsoddiad sydd wedi dod i gyfanswm o £150,000 
a sut mae'r ymatebion gan fusnesau lleol i'r buddsoddiad a'r gwaith eisoes wedi 
bod yn gadarnhaol. 
  
Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 
  
  
2)  Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol D Williams i Arweinydd y 

Cyngor - Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 
“A oes modd i'r Arweinydd roi diweddariad ar y paratoadau sydd ar y gweill cyn i 
RhCT groesawu’r Eisteddfod yn yr haf?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 
  

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod gwaith ar gwblhau'r Cynllun Gofodol wedi gwneud 
cynnydd da, a bod lleoliadau arfaethedig ar gyfer cyfleusterau parcio a theithio, 
maes carafanau a chyfleusterau gwersylla eraill yn cael eu hystyried gan 
Bwyllgor Eisteddfod y Cyngor yr wythnos nesaf. Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd y 
byddai cyhoeddiad yn cael ei wneud yn y dyddiau nesaf gyda newyddion 
cadarnhaol pellach yn ymwneud â'r Eisteddfod. 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod cyfarfod cadarnhaol wedi'i gynnal yn ddiweddar 
gyda'r holl Aelodau lleol yng nghyffiniau Pontypridd, gan nodi dechrau 
ymgysylltiad a chyswllt rhagweithiol, parhaus ag Aelodau ar drefniadau 
isadeiledd yr Eisteddfod. Ychwanegodd fod disgwyl y bydd mwy na 160,000 o 
ymwelwyr yn dod i'r dref dros y cyfnod o wyth diwrnod. Dywedodd yr Arweinydd 
na fydd unrhyw reswm i yrru drwy Bontypridd yn ystod yr Eisteddfod wrth i 
Swyddogion barhau i weithio'n agos gyda Phwyllgor yr Eisteddfod a 
Thrafnidiaeth Cymru i ddatblygu cynllun Rheoli Traffig gyda gwell darpariaeth 
trenau a fflydoedd o fysiau yn cludo pobl a thrigolion yn rhan o'r trefniadau 
parcio a theithio. 

Eglurodd yr Arweinydd y bu codi arian sylweddol hyd yn hyn, gyda chefnogaeth 
barhaus i bwyllgorau apêl lleol sy'n codi arian i'r Eisteddfod Genedlaethol. 
Roedd yr Arweinydd yn awyddus i bwysleisio bod yr Eisteddfod yn agored i’r holl 
drigolion, ac mae ymgysylltu â’r holl bobl ifainc ledled y fwrdeistref sirol yn 
hollbwysig. 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd y bydd buddion yr Eisteddfod i’w gweld ym mhob rhan 
o'r fwrdeistref sirol ac nid yn nhref Pontypridd yn unig, ac felly mae'r garfan ar 
gyfer Canol Trefi yn parhau i weithio, nid yn unig ag AGB Pontypridd ond hefyd 
AGB Aberdâr a Threorci i hyrwyddo’r Eisteddfod ymhell ac yn agos, a hynny 
ymhlith ymwelwyr a thrigolion. 

Tudalen 9



 

  
Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 
  
  
3)      Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol R Davis i’r Aelod o'r 

Cabinet ar faterion Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, Cynghorydd y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol G Caple: 

 
“A all yr Aelod Cabinet amlinellu’r camau nesaf ar gyfer y cynllun Gofal 
Ychwanegol yn y Porth yn dilyn y newyddion bod contractwr newydd wedi’i 
benodi?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol G Caple: 
  

Manteisiodd y Cynghorydd Caple ar y cyfle i roi gwybod am fuddsoddiad y 
Cyngor o £60 miliwn i foderneiddio cartrefi gofal preswyl y Cyngor er mwyn 
sicrhau urddas a pharch i'r henoed, gyda chartrefi gofal ychwanegol o'r radd 
flaenaf sy'n cynnwys darpariaeth ar gyfer anghenion mwy cymhleth megis 
Dementia. Bydd y cyfleusterau yma'n gwella annibyniaeth pobl hŷn ac yn rhoi 
dewis gwirioneddol i'r rhai sydd fwyaf agored i niwed yn ein cymdeithas, a hynny 
yn erbyn toriadau cyllidebol ac argyfwng costau byw ariannol.  

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Caple fod y datblygiad penodol hwn wedi cymryd mwy 
o amser na'r disgwyl yn wreiddiol, a hynny oherwydd effaith y pandemig a'r ffaith 
bod y contractwyr dethol wedi mynd i ddwylo'r gweinyddwyr. Er gwaethaf yr 
heriau anodd hyn, roedd y Cynghorydd Caple yn falch o ddweud bod gwaith 
wedi ailddechrau ar y safle gyda chontractwr newydd. Ychwanegodd y bydd y 
datblygiad Gofal Ychwanegol yn cynnwys 54 o fflatiau sydd ag 1 ystafell wely a 
6 o fflatiau sydd â 2 ystafell wely, ochr yn ochr ag ardal fwyta, salon trin gwallt, 
ystafell weithgareddau a chanolfan oriau dydd. 

Daeth y Cynghorydd Caple i’r casgliad y bydd y buddsoddiad hwn yn ganolog i 
gefnogi defnyddwyr canolfannau oriau dydd sydd ag anghenion a aseswyd, i 
sicrhau bod unigedd ac unigrwydd yn cael eu lliniaru a hyrwyddo annibyniaeth a 
lles pobl, gan sicrhau bod isadeiledd bariatrig a theclynnau codi ar gael ym 
mhob rhan o gynllun y safle.  

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 
  
Ni chafodd cwestiwn 4 i'r Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion yr Hinsawdd a 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol ei ofyn ac felly fe syrthiodd. 
  
  
5)  Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol D. Owen-Jones i 

Arweinydd y Cyngor, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Pa effaith fydd y cyhoeddiad gan TATA Steel ei fod yn bwriadu bwrw ymlaen â’r 
cynigion i dorri 2,800 o swyddi yn ei chael ar ein cymunedau?” 

  
Ymateb y Cynghorydd A Morgan OBE: 
  
Eglurodd y Cynghorydd Morgan, er mai'r pryder yw'r 2,800 o swyddi a gollwyd, 
atgoffodd yr Aelodau fod tair swydd cadwyn gyflenwi hefyd yn gysylltiedig â 

Tudalen 10



 

phob gweithiwr dur ac felly gallai fod llawer mwy o swyddi'n cael eu colli nag a 
ragwelwyd yn wreiddiol. 

  
Cadarnhaodd yr Arweinydd ei fod wedi mynychu rali ym Mhort Talbot ychydig 
wythnosau yn ôl lle’r oedd y teimlad o bryder, ansicrwydd a dicter ymhlith y 
gweithwyr a’u teuluoedd yn amlwg. Dywedodd ei fod hefyd yn gyfle i siarad ag 
Arweinwyr Cynghorau eraill, cynrychiolwyr cymunedol, Undebau a Llywodraeth 
Cymru.  
  
Eglurodd yr Arweinydd ei bod hi'n allweddol cael mynediad at gyllid y cyfeiriwyd 
ato gan Lywodraeth y DU, er bod y manylion ynghylch sut y bydd y pecyn £100 
miliwn yn cael ei weinyddu yn parhau i fod yn aneglur ar hyn o bryd. 
Ychwanegodd ei fod yn awyddus i gael trafodaethau gyda Llywodraeth Cymru 
yn dilyn yr ymgysylltu sylweddol a fu rhwng yr Adran Gwaith a Phensiynau a 
staff UK Windows and Doors pan aeth y cwmni i ddwylo’r gweinyddwyr. 
Ychwanegodd fod y Cyngor yn ceisio darparu cymorth tebyg ag y mae wedi’i 
wneud o’r blaen, gan weithio gyda phartneriaid i sicrhau bod cymorth a chyngor 
ar gael i’r rhai yr effeithir arnynt. 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod yr Undebau Llafur ar flaen y gad yn y frwydr, gyda 
chefnogaeth gwleidyddion Llafur lleol, gweithwyr dur, a’r cymunedau lleol. 
Ychwanegodd fod y Blaid Lafur wedi ymrwymo i gronfa dur glân gwerth £3 
biliwn, a'i fod yn obeithiol y byddai TATA yn gohirio gweithredu ei gynlluniau yn 
ddigon hir i ddisgwyl canlyniad yr Etholiad Cyffredinol nesaf. 
  
Pwysleisiodd yr Arweinydd yr angen i gadw'r sgyrsiau yn agored ac eglurodd ei 
bod hi'n hollbwysig bod Llywodraeth Lafur newydd yn ail-negodi pecyn gwell o 
fuddsoddiad sy'n diogelu swyddi ac yn sicrhau trosglwyddiad cyfiawn i ddulliau 
cynhyrchu gwyrddach. Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y sefyllfa gyda TATA Steel 
yn debygol o gael yr un effaith ag yr oedd cau'r pyllau glo yn yr 1980au. 

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 
  
6)  Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol L. Ellis i Arweinydd y 

Cyngor, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“A all yr Arweinydd roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y rhaglen i reoli tomennydd 
glo ledled RhCT?” 

Ymateb y Cynghorydd A Morgan OBE: 
  
Sicrhaodd y Cynghorydd Morgan yr Aelodau fod diogelwch tomennydd glo yn 
flaenoriaeth i'r Cyngor ers Storm Dennis a'r tirlithriad yn Nhylorstown. 
Ychwanegodd fod gan y Cyngor garfan o arolygwyr sy'n gwneud gwaith cynnal a 
chadw rheolaidd ac yn archwilio tomennydd. Rhoddodd ddiweddariad ar y 
cynnydd yn ymwneud â'r domen yn ardal Tylorstown lle mae'r hen domen lo 
wedi'i symud a mwy o waith draenio wedi'i wneud, gyda chamau monitro 
hirdymor ar waith. Dywedodd yr Arweinydd y bydd y gwaith ar domen 
Tylorstown yn cael ei gwblhau yr haf hwn, fel y bwriadwyd, gyda gwaith pellach 
gwerth £2 miliwn i fynd rhagddo.  

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod yna domennydd eraill ledled y fwrdeistref sirol sydd 
naill ai angen eu monitro, eu cynnal a'u cadw neu, mewn rhai achosion, bydd 
angen ymyrraeth. Esboniodd fod y diffygion yn cael eu categoreiddio gan 

Tudalen 11



 

ddefnyddio system liwiau Du, Coch, Ambr a Gwyrdd (BRAG). Mae Du yn golygu 
bod angen cymryd camau brys ar unwaith. Mae coch yn gofyn am waith cynnal 
a chadw tymor byr lle mae angen gwaith adfer a dylid gweithredu arno cyn 
gynted ag y bo’n rhesymol ymarferol. Mae achosion Ambr angen gwaith cynnal 
a chadw neu waith adfer tymor canolig ond gyda threfniadau lliniaru risg megis 
ymweliadau safle, monitro ac ati ac yn olaf, mae achosion Gwyrdd angen gwaith 
cynnal a chadw hirdymor neu waith adfer, ond ar hyn o bryd mae risg isel. 

Eglurodd yr Arweinydd hefyd y diffiniadau categori a’r cyfnodau arolygu sydd fel 
y ganlyn: Mae D1 yn galw am arolygiad misol, mae D3 yn galw am arolygiad bob 
3 mis, mae C yn galw am arolygiad bob 6 mis, mae angen arolygiad blynyddol ar 
B, mae A2 yn arolygiad bob 2 flynedd, yn olaf mae A4 yn galw am arolygiad bob 
4 blynedd (mae'r ddau olaf yn dommennydd sydd wedi'u hadennill neu'u dileu 
ond mae angen eu monitro o hyd). 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod Swyddogion y Cyngor yn gwneud gwaith ar 
gynlluniau brys ar y cyd â'r Gwasanaethau Brys pe bai unrhyw bryderon 
ynghylch y tomennydd categori C a D yn cael eu codi. Mae hyn ynghyd ag 
archwiliadau rheolaidd wedi'u cynllunio, yn ogystal ag archwiliadau tywydd garw 
ad-hoc, yn rhoi'r Cyngor mewn sefyllfa dda i gadw ei domennydd yn ddiogel i'w 
drigolion. 

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 
  

7)      Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol S.Trask i Arweinydd y 
Cyngor, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. Morgan OBE: 

  
“A all yr Arweinydd wneud datganiad ar yr ymgynghoriadau cyhoeddus sydd 
wedi digwydd yn ystod y tri mis diwethaf?” 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y Cyngor wedi cynnal chwe ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus mawr dros y tri mis diwethaf, a nododd fanylion pob un o’r chwech o 
fewn y cyfnod o dri mis: 

Cam 1 yr Ymgynghoriad ar y Gyllideb, 6 Tachwedd - 15 Rhagfyr 2023 gyda 653 
o ymatebion, Clybiau Brecwast, 27 Tachwedd - 8 Ionawr gyda 1351 o ymatebion 
Cludiant o'r Cartref i'r Ysgol, 27 Tachwedd - 8 Ionawr (estynedig 18 Ionawr – 8 
Chwefror), 2858 o ymatebion, Cyfnod 2 yr Ymgynghoriad ar y Gyllideb, 4 Ionawr 
– 8 Chwefror 2024, 530 o ymatebion, yr Ymgysylltu Cynllun Cydraddoldeb 
Strategol,12 Rhagfyr 2023 – 9 Chwefror 2024, 96 o ymatebion, ac Ymgysylltu â'r 
Cynllun Corfforaethol, 8 Rhagfyr 2023 – 29 Ionawr 2024 gyda 469 o 
ymatebion.                                     
  

Cwestiwn Ategol gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A. S. Fox: 

  
“Rwy’n pryderu am y pwysau a roddwyd ar yr ymatebion cyhoeddus, er 
enghraifft ar gyfer yr ymgynghoriad ar y cynnig i gau Ysgol Gynradd y Rhigos, lle 
cafodd y cynllun ei gymeradwyo er bod dros 90% o’r ymatebwyr yn ei erbyn. 
Mae’r ymgynghoriad sydd ar y gweill o ran y CDLl Diwygiedig yn cynnwys 
ffurflenni cymhleth i awgrymu safleoedd newydd ond gwrthodwyd fy nghais i 
symleiddio'r ffurflenni hyn. Faint o bwysau a roddir ar ymatebion y cyhoedd?” 

Ymateb y Cynghorydd A Morgan OBE: 

Tudalen 12



 

  

Ymatebodd yr Arweinydd fod ymatebion y cyhoedd yn bwysig a'u bod yn 
chwarae rhan allweddol yn yr ymgynghoriadau i sicrhau bod Aelodau'n meddu 
ar yr holl wybodaeth berthnasol wrth wneud penderfyniadau. Ychwanegodd fod 
yr ymatebion cyhoeddus hefyd yn sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn ystyried unrhyw 
sylwadau sy'n codi, fel bod modd gwneud unrhyw addasiadau perthnasol lle bo 
angen. Gofynnir i swyddogion ddarparu rhagor o wybodaeth yn ôl yr angen ac 
weithiau bydd angen ailymgynghori yn dilyn newidiadau pellach i'r cynllun yn sgil 
hyn. Pwysleisiodd yr Arweinydd nad yw ymgynghoriad yn gyfystyr â 
refferendwm. 

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiynau pellach oherwydd bod yr amser a neilltuwyd 
wedi dod i ben.  

 
104   Rhaglen Waith y Cyngor 2023/2024  

 
 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu Raglen Waith y Cyngor ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2023/24 ac fel 
y cynghorwyd yn flaenorol, bydd Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf yn mynychu 
cyfarfod nesaf y Cyngor. Hefyd, bydd Dadl Flynyddol yr Arweinydd, a drefnwyd 
yn wreiddiol ar gyfer mis Chwefror, bellach yn rhan o gyfarfod y Cyngor ym mis 
Ebrill, sef cyfarfod rheolaidd olaf y flwyddyn ddinesig yma. 
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth hefyd y byddai Aelodau yn derbyn 
Cynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor, yr Adolygiad o Ffiniau Cymunedol ac adroddiad 
ar Gydbwysedd Gwleidyddol y Cyngor yn ystod y cyfarfod nesaf. I gloi, 
ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y byddai diweddariad yn cael ei 
ddarparu ar ofynion busnes y Cyngor rhwng nawr a'r Cyfarfod Cyffredinol 
Blynyddol (CCB), a hynny trwy law'r Arweinwyr Grwpiau, cyn cyhoeddi'r rhaglen 
waith wedi'i diweddaru.  
 

 

 
105   Strategaeth Cyllideb Refeniw 2024/25  

 
 

 Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr y Gyfadran Cyllid a Gwasanaethau Digidol a Rheng 
Flaen y Strategaeth Gyllideb a argymhellir gan y Cabinet ar gyfer blwyddyn 
ariannol 2024/25. Mae'r strategaeth bellach yn cael ei hargymell i'r Cyngor 
Llawn. 
  
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod y strategaeth ddrafft wreiddiol wedi'i 
chymeradwyo gan y Cabinet ar 24 Ionawr, a'i bod wedi bod yn destun ail gam 
ymgynghori a gafodd ei gynnal rhwng 24 Ionawr a 9 Chwefror. Mae'r holl 
adborth o ail gam yr ymgynghoriad wedi'i ystyried gan y Cabinet ac mae 
ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad. Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod yr 
adborth yn cynnwys yr adroddiad ymgynghori, cofnodion cyfarfodydd Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu'r Cyngor, y Fforwm Cyllideb Ysgolion a'r Cydbwyllgor 
Ymgynghorol. Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod y strategaeth, y cytunwyd 
arni wedyn gan y Cabinet ar 21 Chwefror, wedi ei nodi yn yr adroddiad. 
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y rhagwelir y byddai bwlch cychwynnol y 
Cyngor yn y gyllideb, fel y'i nodwyd yn y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig 
diwethaf, yn £36 miliwn ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf. Yn erbyn y sefyllfa yma, mae 
nifer o fesurau lleihau cyllideb cynnar, yr adroddwyd arnynt yn flaenorol ac y 
penderfynwyd arnynt yn flaenorol, wedi'u gwrthbwyso, gan adael bwlch o £25.9 
miliwn yn weddill. Dyma'r sefyllfa y lluniwyd strategaeth y gyllideb yn ei herbyn. 

 

Tudalen 13



 

Ychwanegodd fod y Cyngor bellach wedi derbyn y setliad llywodraeth leol 
terfynol sydd hefyd yn cael ei adlewyrchu. Ychwanegodd fod y setliad terfynol yn 
cadarnhau cynnydd mewn cyllid ar lefel Cymru gyfan o 3.3% a 3% ar gyfer y 
Cyngor hwn. Mae lefelau setliadau ledled Cymru yn amrywio o 2.3% i 5% gyda 
chyllid gwaelodol yn ei le ar lefel is y setliad. Ychwanegodd fod tri 
throsglwyddiad i'r grant cynnal refeniw yn y setliad terfynol, fodd bynnag, nid yw'r 
rhain yn cael effaith net ar sefyllfa'r gyllideb. 
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran am elfennau allweddol strategaeth y 
gyllideb a nodir yn adran 7 yr adroddiad, sy’n ymdrin â’r bwlch cyllidebol o £25.9 
miliwn sy’n weddill: 
  
   Y cynnydd arfaethedig yn nhreth y cyngor ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf yw 

4.99% a fydd yn darparu incwm ychwanegol o £1.122 miliwn, yn 
ychwanegol at y 3.9% a fodelwyd yn wreiddiol. Mae hyn yn cyfateb i 
gynnydd o £1.03 yr wythnos ar gyfer eiddo Band A neu £1.55 ar gyfer 
eiddo Band D. Mae elfen o’r cynnydd yn nhreth y cyngor wedi’i neilltuo i 
gefnogi darpariaeth trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus ledled y fwrdeistref sirol; 

  
      Mae ysgolion y Cyngor wedi'u diogelu ers blynyddoedd lawer, gyda'u 

cyllidebau wedi cynyddu gan 34% dros y deng mlynedd diwethaf, pan 
mae gwasanaethau eraill y Cyngor wedi gweld cynnydd sy'n gyfystyr â 
dim ond hanner y lefel honno. Roedd cronfeydd wrth gefn ysgolion yn 
£15 miliwn ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn ariannol ddiwethaf, sydd ar lefel 
hanesyddol o uchel, o’i gymharu â 31 Mawrth 2020 pan oedd cronfeydd 
wrth gefn yr ysgol yn £2.4 miliwn. Cynigir bod y Cyngor yn ariannu 
ysgolion yn llawn ar gyfer yr holl bwysau cyflog y flwyddyn nesaf ynghyd 
â rhoi £1 miliwn pellach o gyllid cylchol iddyn nhw, yn ogystal â £0.5 
miliwn pellach o gyllid unwaith ac am byth. Bydd hyn yn gweld cynnydd o 
£12.4 miliwn neu 6.6% yng nghyllideb Ysgolion ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf, 
gan godi cyllideb gyffredinol ysgolion i £198.5 miliwn. Mae'r lefel yma o 
gynnydd dros ddwywaith y cynnydd o'i gymharu â'r cynnydd yng nghyllid 
cyffredinol y Cyngor. Mae'r Cyngor yn aros am gadarnhad gan 
Lywodraeth San Steffan ynghylch cyllid ar gyfer costau uwch sy'n 
gysylltiedig â chostau pensiynau athrawon o fis Ebrill y flwyddyn nesaf, 
ac mae'r Cyngor wedi cael gwybod bod hyn yn fater o amseru. 

  
 Mae arbedion effeithlonrwydd ychwanegol gwerth £5.2 miliwn wedi'u nodi 

gan Uwch Arweinwyr y Cyngor fel mesurau y gellir eu cyflawni'n 
weithredol a heb effaith andwyol sylweddol ar wasanaethau rheng flaen 
y Cyngor. Mae'r £5.2 miliwn yma'n ychwanegol at yr £8.2 miliwn o 
fesurau lleihau cyllideb cynnar a nodwyd yn flaenorol ac yr adroddwyd 
arnyn nhw ym mis Tachwedd 2023, a bydd yn dod â chyfanswm y 
mesurau effeithlonrwydd, sydd bellach wedi'u cynnwys yng nghyllideb y 
flwyddyn nesaf, i dros £13 miliwn. 

  
     Mae cyfres o fesurau, a nodir yn adran 10 o’r adroddiad sy’n ymwneud 

ag effeithlonrwydd ynni ac addasiadau i’r gyllideb sylfaenol ac effaith y 
penderfyniad i godi tâl am elfen gofal plant clybiau brecwast. Bydd yr 
arian sy'n deillio o hyn yn cael ei fwydo i mewn i gyllidebau Ysgolion, 
cyfalafu a chynigion ynghylch lefel y ffioedd a thaliadau ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn nesaf. 
  

     Roedd y setliad terfynol hefyd yn cadarnhau'r hysbysiad cynnar a gafodd 
y Cyngor gan Lywodraeth Cymru am lefel yr adnoddau ychwanegol y 

Tudalen 14



 

bydd y Cyngor nawr yn eu derbyn o ganlyniad i gyhoeddiad Llywodraeth 
y DU ym mis Ionawr, gyda £600 miliwn ychwanegol o gyllid ar gyfer 
llywodraeth leol yn Lloegr. Arweiniodd hyn at £25 miliwn ychwanegol i 
Gymru a £1.951 miliwn ychwanegol i Rondda Cynon Taf. Darperir y cyllid 
ychwanegol yma drwy gyfuniad o grant cynnal refeniw ychwanegol ac 
adfer grant y gweithlu gofal cymdeithasol i £45 miliwn ar lefel Cymru 
gyfan. 
  

     Cyfanswm gwerth cydrannau'r strategaeth yw £16.457 miliwn sydd, 
gyda'r adnoddau ychwanegol yn y setliad terfynol, yn gadael bwlch yn y 
gyllideb sy'n weddill o £7.502 miliwn, a nodir hyn yn nhabl 2 (paragraff 
10.4). Cynigir bod y bwlch sy'n weddill yn y gyllideb yn cael ei gydbwyso 
â dyraniad o'r gronfa arian pontio wrth gefn sydd wedi'i sefydlu at y diben 
hwn a'i ailgyflenwi wrth i'r flwyddyn fynd rhagddi.  

  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod cyllid pontio a chronfeydd wrth gefn y 
Cyngor yn cael eu defnyddio'n synhwyrol yn rhan o brosesau pennu cyllideb 
flynyddol y Cyngor, gan gydnabod nad yw defnyddio cronfeydd wrth gefn yn unig 
yn strategaeth gynaliadwy. Ychwanegodd ei fod yn fodlon bod gan y Cyngor 
drefniadau ar waith i barhau i gyflawni arbedion yn gynnar sy'n fodd i 
ailgyflenwi'r gronfa wrth gefn hon a chyflawni'r arbedion cylchol angenrheidiol o 
ran y gyllideb sylfaenol wrth symud ymlaen.  
  
Daeth y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran i'r casgliad, yn gyffredinol, y bydd hyn yn arwain 
at gyllideb net o £631.795 miliwn ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf. Dywedodd fod eleni 
wedi bod yn flwyddyn ac yn amgylchedd ariannol heriol o ran llunio'r opsiynau 
cyllideb a nawr y gyllideb a argymhellir gan y Cabinet. Pwysleisiodd efallai y 
bydd angen bod yn barod ar gyfer cyfyngiadau ariannol pellach a mwy 
sylweddol, ond sicrhaodd yr Aelodau y bydd uwch swyddogion yn parhau i 
wneud popeth o fewn eu gallu i fanteisio i'r eithaf ar effeithlonrwydd a diogelu 
gwasanaethau rheng flaen y Cyngor. 

  
Diolchodd Arweinydd y Cyngor i'r Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran am ei adroddiad a 
chydnabu ddiwydrwydd yr uwch swyddogion wrth reoli'r gyllideb er gwaethaf yr 
anawsterau a wynebwyd eleni gyda chyfraddau uchel chwyddiant, twf cyflog a'r 
galwadau cynyddol ar wasanaethau'r Cyngor. O ran lefel arfaethedig treth y 
Cyngor, gwnaeth yr Arweinydd sylwadau ar lefelau treth y Cyngor a osodwyd 
gan awdurdodau lleol eraill yng Nghymru, gyda Chyngor RhCT yn yr ail safle o'r 
gwaelod.  
  
Atgoffodd yr Arweinydd yr Aelodau fod y Cyngor yn gwneud ei orau glas i 
ddiogelu ac ariannu ysgolion, gyda'r Cyngor hwn yn ariannu'r dyfarniad cyflog 
addysgu a'r rhai nad ydynt yn addysgu yn llawn gyda'r Cabinet yn argymell taliad 
untro ychwanegol o hanner miliwn o bunnoedd i ysgolion (fel y nodir yn yr 
adroddiad). Soniodd am bwysigrwydd llunio cyllideb gytbwys sy'n gredadwy ac 
yn gynaliadwy i drigolion RhCT. 
  
Manteisiodd Arweinwyr Grŵp/Dirprwy Grŵp eraill ar y cyfle i drafod yr adroddiad 
yn fanwl ac ymatebodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran i nifer o ymholiadau mewn 
perthynas â Strategaeth Cyllideb Refeniw 2024/25.  
 I gloi, ac yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD: 
  

1.     Nodi'r llythyr gan y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol (Rebecca Evans 
AS) a'r tabl ar setliad llywodraeth leol terfynol 2023/24, yn Atodiad 1;  
  

Tudalen 15



 

2.     Nodi'r goblygiadau i'r Cyngor a'r bwlch sy'n weddill yn y gyllideb fel sydd 
wedi'i nodi yn adran 5; 

  
3.     Cytuno ar gynnydd o 4.99% yn Nhreth y Cyngor ar gyfer 2024/25; 

  
4.     Cytuno ar y cynnydd yng Nghyllideb Grynswth yr Ysgolion fel sydd wedi'i 

nodi yn adran 8; 
  

5.     Cytuno ar gynigion y strategaeth gyllideb fel sydd wedi'u nodi ym 
mharagraffau 10.2 i 10.4; 
  

6.     Cytuno i ddefnyddio'r 'Gronfa Gweddnewid Gwasanaeth a Chynllunio 
Ariannol Tymor Canolig Wrth Gefn' fel arian pontio, sef cyfanswm o 
£7.502 miliwn ar gyfer 2024/25; 
  

4.      Cymeradwyo Tablau 4 a 5 yn Adran 13 yr adroddiad yn sail ar gyfer 
dyrannu adnoddau i Gyllidebau Ysgolion Unigol, i Wasanaethau eraill y 
Cyngor, ac i fodloni gofynion ariannu corfforaethol y Cyngor; a 

  
4.      Cytuno ar gyllideb gyffredinol y Cyngor ar gyfer 2024/25 o £631.795 

miliwn, er mwyn cymeradwyo'r penderfyniadau statudol angenrheidiol o 
ran pennu Treth y Cyngor ar gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol sydd i ddod erbyn 
y terfyn amser statudol, sef 11 Mawrth 2023. 

  
(Nodyn: Datganodd y Cynghorydd R Lewis fuddiant personol—“Rwy’n Is-
Gadeirydd Gwasanaeth Addysg ar y Cyd Consortiwm Canolbarth y De”). 
  
  

106   PENDERFYNIAD TRETH Y CYNGOR 2024/25  
 

 

 Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran Cyllid, Gwasanaethau Digidol a Rheng 
Flaen fod yr adroddiad hwn, yn unol â'r Strategaeth Gyllidebol y cytunwyd arni, 
yn cynrychioli'r gofyniad ffurfiol a chyfreithiol i'r Cyngor gytuno ar benderfyniad o 
ran treth y Cyngor, gan gynnwys manylion treth y cyngor sydd i'w chodi mewn 
perthynas â  Chynghorau Cymuned a Chomisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu.  
  
Dywedodd mai lefel treth y cyngor ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf, yn unol â 
phenderfyniad a wnaed yn strategaeth y Gyllideb, fydd £1694.65. Mae’r 
Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throsedd wedi hysbysu’r Cyngor am gynnydd yn y 
praesept ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf, gyda chynnydd canlyniadol yn lefel ei dreth y 
cyngor o 8.69%, gan fynd â lefel ei dreth y cyngor i £352.67 a fydd yn dod ag 
effaith gyfunol y cynnydd ar gyfer y Cyngor a'r Heddlu i gynnydd cyfanredol o 
5.61% ar gyfer yr eiddo Band D hynny nad oes rhaid iddynt hefyd dalu tâl cyngor 
cymuned. Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod lefel taliadau praesept 
Cynghorau Cymuned a Thref wedi'u hysbysu a'u bod hefyd wedi'u nodi yn 
Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad. 
  
I gloi, rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran wybod bod ganddo ddyletswydd i roi 
gwybod i'r Cyngor am gadernid amcangyfrifon a digonolrwydd y cronfeydd 
ariannol arfaethedig sydd wedi'u nodi yn adran 9 yr adroddiad. 
  
Ar ôl trafod yr adroddiad, PENDERFYNWYD: 
  

i)       Nodi lefel y praesept gan Gomisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu 

 

Tudalen 16



 

ar gyfer De Cymru; 
  
ii)          Nodi lefel Praeseptau y Cyngor Cymuned/Tref, fel sydd wedi'i 

nodi yn Atodiad 1; 
  

iii)        Pasio'r penderfyniadau ffurfiol Treth y Cyngor ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn ariannol sy'n dod i ben ar 31 Mawrth, 2025, fel sydd 
i'w gweld yn Atodiad 2; 

  
iv)        Nodi'r sylwadau am gadernid yr amcangyfrifon a digonolrwydd 

cronfeydd ariannol arfaethedig a nodir ym mharagraff 9.2.  
  
  

107   RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2024/25 – 2026/27  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran Cyllid, Gwasanaethau Digidol a Rheng 
Flaen yr adroddiad a oedd yn nodi Rhaglen Gyfalaf tair blynedd arfaethedig y 
Cyngor ar gyfer 2024/25 i 2026/27 i'w hystyried gan y Cyngor, sef cyfanswm o 
£165.6 miliwn dros y tair blynedd nesaf. 
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod hyn yn cynrychioli rhaglen graidd o 
£42.5 miliwn, grantiau penodol o £42 miliwn o fenthyca i gefnogi'r rhaglen 
buddsoddi mewn ysgolion o £13 miliwn, dros £33 miliwn o adnoddau 
ychwanegol eisoes wedi'u neilltuo i ariannu meysydd buddsoddi â blaenoriaeth 
ac arian ychwanegol a  buddsoddiad newydd pellach a nodwyd o dros £19 
miliwn (a nodir yn adran 6 yr adroddiad) a gynigir ar draws meysydd cynnal a 
chadw priffyrdd, ffyrdd heb eu mabwysiadu, strwythurau priffyrdd, rhwydi cerrig 
Ffordd Mynydd y Rhigos, gwaith lliniaru llifogydd, biniau Gofal Strydoedd, 
strwythurau mewn parciau, parciau a mannau gwyrdd, buddsoddiad mewn 
parciau gwledig, mannau chwarae, ardaloedd gemau amlddefnydd, Fferm Solar 
Coed Elái, cae hoci’r Ddraenen Wen ac offer ffitrwydd Hamdden, cyfanswm o 
£19.292M o fuddsoddiad ychwanegol. Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran 
fod y rhaglen newydd hefyd yn cynnwys dyraniadau ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf o 
£15.9 miliwn ar gyfer gweithgareddau adfywio, £11.5 miliwn ar gyfer tai sector 
preifat, £42 miliwn ar gyfer gwasanaethau rheng flaen, gan gynnwys priffyrdd, 
prosiectau strategol, gwaith adfer Storm Dennis, parciau, gwastraff a fflyd, £39 
miliwn o fuddsoddiad ar draws y Gwasanaethau Addysg a Chynhwysiant a £13 
miliwn mewn Gwasanaethau Cymuned a Gwasanaethau i Blant. 
  
Gorffennodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran drwy ychwanegu, er gwaethaf yr heriau 
ariannu parhaus y mae'r Cyngor yn parhau i'w hwynebu gyda'i gyllideb refeniw, 
y gall y Cyngor gynnig rhaglen buddsoddi cyfalaf sylweddol ac uchelgeisiol sy'n 
adeiladu ar fuddsoddiad y flwyddyn gyfredol, rhagwelir y bydd y ffigur yma yn 
£220 miliwn yn chwarter dau. 
  
Yn dilyn trafodaeth lle atebodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran nifer o gwestiynau, 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
  

1.     Sylwi ar fanylion setliad llywodraeth leol terfynol 2024/25 ar gyfer 
gwariant cyfalaf, yn Atodiad 1; 
  

2.     Cytuno ar y broses ailddyrannu arfaethedig o adnoddau presennol, a 
dyrannu adnoddau newydd, fel y nodir ym mharagraff 5; 

 

Tudalen 17



 

  
3.     Cytuno i ddyrannu'r cyllid wedi'i nodi yn yr adroddiad ar gyfer y 

blaenoriaethau buddsoddi fel y nodir ym mharagraff 6.2; 
  

4.     Cytuno ar y rhaglen tair blynedd ‘graidd’ arfaethedig, yn Atodiad 2; 
  

5.     Cytuno ar y Rhaglen Gyfalaf tair blynedd arfaethedig gyfan, yn Atodiad 3 
(a) i (e), sy'n cynnwys y cyllid nad yw'n gyllid craidd: 
  
    Benthyca darbodus i gefnogi Cynlluniau Cymunedau Dysgu 

Cynaliadwy (Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif yn flaenorol); 
    Grantiau cyfalaf ar gyfer cynlluniau penodol; 
       Cyfraniadau trydydd parti;  
       Blaenoriaethau buddsoddi sydd wedi'u nodi ym mharagraff 6.2.  

  
  

108   STRATEGAETH RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS 2024/2025  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran - Gwasanaethau Cyllid, Digidol a Rheng 
Flaen yr adroddiad blynyddol yn hysbysu bod gweithgareddau benthyca a 
buddsoddi Rheolaeth y Trysorlys yn cael eu rheoleiddio'n drylwyr, a'u bod yn 
cael eu cynnal yn unol â'r Codau Ymarfer proffesiynol perthnasol. Ychwanegodd 
fod cytuno i adolygiad o'r strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys cyn dechrau'r flwyddyn 
ariannol newydd yn ofyniad penodol, yn yr un modd â'r adolygiad canol 
blwyddyn ffurfiol ac adolygiad diwedd blwyddyn.  
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran, fel y nodir yn yr adroddiad, fod gan y 
Cyngor £287.2 miliwn o fenthyca ar gyfradd llog gyfartalog o 3.15%, gyda 
gofyniad benthyca  £19 miliwn ar gyfer y flwyddyn nesaf er mwyn ariannu'r 
rhaglen gyfalaf y cytunwyd arni. Bydd yn ategu hyn drwy bennu dyled tymor hwy 
os yw’r amgylchedd economaidd a rhagamcanion cyfraddau llog yn galw am 
hynny. Mae hyn yn cyd-fynd â sefyllfa tanfenthyca’r Cyngor. Mae’r Cyngor wedi 
parhau i gynnal y sefyllfa ers nifer o flynyddoedd ac mae’r Cyngor yn parhau i 
gael ei wobrwyo â chost ariannu cyfalaf net is. 
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran, o ran strategaeth fuddsoddi'r Cyngor, fod y 
Cyngor yn parhau i roi benthyg i'r sector cyhoeddus a sefydliadau a gefnogir gan 
y Llywodraeth, gan gydnabod blaenoriaeth diogelwch a hylifedd yn hytrach nag 
elw. 
  
Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran yr Aelodau at baragraff 16 ar gyfer 
dangosyddion a therfynau Rheoli Trysorlys y Cyngor a'r Polisi Darpariaeth 
Isafswm Refeniw (MRP) a nodir yn adran 17, sy'n parhau i ddileu benthyca â 
chymorth y Cyngor ar sail llinell syth dros 40 mlynedd. Yn ystod y flwyddyn, 
derbyniwyd hysbysiad gan Lywodraeth Cymru ei fod yn dymuno adalw'r 
benthyciad di-log mewn perthynas ag Isadeiledd Trafnidiaeth. 
  
Yn dilyn trafodaeth ar Strategaeth Rheoli Trysorlys y Cyngor, PENDERFYNWYD 
cymeradwyo Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys, y Strategaeth Fuddsoddi,  
Dangosyddion Trysorlys, a'r Datganiad Polisi Darpariaeth Isafswm Refeniw 
(MRP) fel y nodir yn yr adroddiad.  

  

  
 

 

 
109   ADRODDIAD STRATEGAETH GYFALAF 2024/25   

Tudalen 18



 

 
 Cyflwynodd y Dirprwy Brif Weithredwr a'r Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran Cyllid, 

Gwasanaethau Digidol a Rheng Flaen yr Adroddiad Strategaeth Gyfalaf statudol 
blynyddol 2024/25, sy'n ymgorffori dangosyddion darbodus y Cyngor. Mae ein 
gwariant cyfalaf y cytunwyd arno a sut y caiff ei ariannu wedi'i nodi yn adran 6 o'r 
adroddiad, sy'n cynnwys gofynion cyllido cyfalaf y Cyngor (CFR) sef yr angen 
sylfaenol i fenthyca er mwyn ariannu cynlluniau gwariant cyfalaf hanesyddol a 
chyfredol y Cyngor. Fel y cyfeiriwyd yn flaenorol, dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
Cyfadran fod hyn yn dangos sefyllfa o dan fenthyca sylweddol, strategaeth y 
mae'r Cyngor wedi'i mabwysiadu dros nifer o flynyddoedd. Mae dangosydd 
pedwar yn amlygu hyn.  
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran fod terfynau'r Cyngor i weithgareddau 
benthyca, gan gynnwys terfyn awdurdodedig y Cyngor o £588 miliwn hefyd 
wedi'u nodi, ynghyd â'r dull cyffredinol o fasnacheiddio, rheoli asedau a’u 
gwaredu. 
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran y byddai'r Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys a'r 
datganiad Strategaeth Gyfalaf yn cael eu cyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac 
Archwilio ar gyfer gwaith adolygu a chraffu penodol yn unol â'r codau ymarfer 
perthnasol. 
  
Yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo'r adroddiad Strategaeth 
Gyfalaf sy'n ymgorffori'r Dangosyddion Darbodus.  
  
 

 

 
110   DATGANIAD 2024/25 Y CYNGOR AR BOLISI CYFLOGAU  

 
 

 Yn unol ag Adran 38(1) o Ddeddf Lleoliaeth 2011, rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
Materion Adnoddau Dynol wybodaeth i'r Aelodau am Ddatganiad Polisi Cyflogau 
2024/25 y Cyngor. Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr yr Aelodau at baragraffau 3.1 i 3.2 
a oedd yn nodi'r cyd-destun cyfreithiol ar gyfer yr angen am y polisi tâl a 
pharagraffau 4.1-4.10 sy'n cyfeirio at y cefndir i'r polisi tâl, yr angen am 
gymeradwyaeth y Cyngor Llawn ac yn cyfeirio at y Datganiad Polisi Tâl yn 
Atodiad A i'r adroddiad. 
  
Ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad ymatebodd y Cyfarwyddwr Adnoddau Dynol i 
ymholiad ynghylch camau gweithredu'r Cyngor i fynd i'r afael â'r bwlch cyflog 
rhwng y rhywiau. Dywedodd fod y Cyngor wedi cyflwyno nifer o fesurau yn ystod 
y blynyddoedd diwethaf megis cyflwyno'r Cyflog Byw Gwirioneddol ac, o fis Ebrill 
2022, cynyddodd y Cyngor werth y graddau is (Graddau 1-5) drwy gyflwyno 
isafswm taliad o £10 yr awr yn ychwanegol at gyfradd gyflog gyfredol y Cyflog 
Byw Gwirioneddol. Ychwanegodd fod y ddau ddyfarniad cyflog diwethaf yn 
benodol wedi cefnogi'r gweithwyr hynny ar raddau is. 
  
PENDERFYNODD yr Aelodau gymeradwyo'r Datganiad ar Bolisi Cyflogau, sef 
Atodiad A yr adroddiad.   
  
 

 

 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 7.00 pm Y Cynghorydd G Hughes 
Cadeirydd. 

 

Tudalen 19



Tudalen wag

Tudalen 20



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

24 APRIL 2024 
 

MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION. 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To present the order of questions in respect of the Members Questions on Notice, 

following the amendment to the process agreed at the Council AGM 2019.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that Members: 
 

2.1 Receive the Questions and any supplementary questions proposed, as in 
accordance with the running order advised upon in 4.3 of the report, which should 
not exceed a 20-minute time period. 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 As agreed at the Council AGM on the 15th May, 2019, Members agreed to amend 
Council Procedure Rule 9.2 in respect of Members Questions on Notice. A further 
amendment was made to Council Procedure Rule 9.2 at the Council AGM on the 
26th May 2021 in respect of supplementary questions following expiry of the 20 
minute time duration. Council AGM 2021 

 
4. MEMBERS QUESTION ON NOTICE 
 
4.1 The closing date for receipt of Members Questions on Notice to the Council 

Business Unit for the Council meeting on the 24th April 2024 was 5pm on the 11th 
April 2024. 

 
4.2 Forty three questions were received and put forward to the Council Ballot held on 

the 16th April 2024, to determine the running order of the questions at the Council 
Meeting.  

 
4.3 The results of the ballot are outlined below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 21

Agendwm 6

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2019/05/15/Reports/Item7TheCouncilsConstitutionProposedAmendmentsAndAncillaryMatters.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2021/05/26/Reports/AGMItem5Thecouncilsconstitutionproposedamendmentsandancillarymatters.pdf


Number Corresponding Question 

1 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Brencher to the 
Cabinet Member for Development and Prosperity, County Borough 
Councillor M. A. Norris: 
 
“Could the Cabinet Member give an update on regeneration projects in 
Pontypridd?” 
 

2 Question from County Borough Councillor K. Johnson to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“How is the council improving accessibility throughout Rhondda Cynon 
Taf for those with reduced mobility and disabilities?” 
 

3 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Hickman to the 
Cabinet Member for Development and Prosperity, County Borough 
Councillor M. A. Norris: 
 
“Will the Cabinet Member make a statement on investment in Porth 
town centre?”  

 
4 Question from County Borough Councillor Sera Evans to County 

Borough Councillor R. Lewis, Cabinet Member for Education, 
Youth Participation and Welsh Language: 
 
“Please can the Cabinet Member outline the financial impact of the 
delay in the implementation of the breakfast club proposals or in other 
words, how much less money has the Council saved as a result of the 
delay in the implementation?” 
 

5 Question from County Borough Councillor L. Addiscott to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough 
Councillor A. Crimmings: 
 
“Will the Cabinet Member make a statement on investment in our sports 
centres and outline how this has impacted their usage?” 

 
6 Question from County Borough Councillor E. L. Dunning to the 

Cabinet Member for Education, Youth Participation and Welsh 
Language, County Borough Councillor R. Lewis:  
 
“Will the Cabinet Member please make a statement on outreach work 
and detached youth service provision in Rhondda Cynon Taf, particularly 
in the Ystrad area?” 
 

Tudalen 22



7 Question from County Borough Councillor W. Hughes to the 
Deputy Leader of the Council and Armed Forces Champion, 
County Borough Councillor M. Webber: 
 
“What support does this Council provide to the local Armed Forces 
community?” 
 

8 Question from County Borough Councillor A. S. Fox to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader provide an update to Members on the discussions 
taking place given the significant financial pressures facing the public 
sector next year?”  

 

9 
Question from County Borough Councillor C. Preedy to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough 
Councillor A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member please give an update on the usage of the 
National Lido of Wales’ and any information on how long the summer 
season will be this year?” 

10 Question from County Borough Councillor T. Williams to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader update on the flood bids that have been approved by 
the Welsh Government for this year?” 
 

11 Question from County Borough Councillor C. Middle to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Will the Leader update the Council on the policy for 
upgrading/tarmacking unadopted roads/lanes and the rationale behind 
the prioritisation of such work?” 

 

12 Question from County Borough Councillor S. J. Davies to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader make a statement on capital investment across 
Rhondda Cynon Taf?” 
 

Tudalen 23



13 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Turner to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the leader outline a timeline for the redesigned Llanharan 
Sustainable Transport Corridor?” 
 

14 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Edwards to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Would the Leader update on the progress of the Welsh Government 
funded walking and cycling route along the river through the Rhondda 
Fach?” 

 
15 Question from County Borough Councillor A. J. Dennis to the 

Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader please provide an update on the usage and feedback 
received to date on the Winter Welcome Centres?” 

 

16 Question from County Borough Councillor Sheryl Evans to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“With more and more cars on the road and limited parking spaces 
available, more cars are having to park on pavements etc., what can 
the Council do to help our constituents with more places to park. Is 
there an option to tarmac more lanes so that residents can use their 
gardens for off-road parking?” 
 

17 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Powderhill to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Council Leader provide an update on preparations for the 
2024 Eisteddfod?” 
 

18 Question from County Borough Councillor G. Hopkins to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the council leader give a further update on the plans to develop 
the Llanharan sustainable transport corridor?” 

 

19 Question from County Borough Councillor M. Maohoub to the 
Cabinet Member for Education, Youth Participation and Welsh 
Language, County Borough Councillor R. Lewis:  
 
“Can the Cabinet Member provide an update on the implementation of 
the £1 charge for pre-breakfast club childcare?” 
 

Tudalen 24



20 Question from County Borough Councillor R. Williams to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Council Leader update on drainage works commencing on 
Penrhiwceiber tip?” 
 

21 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Cook BEM to the 
Cabinet Member for Education, Youth Participation and Welsh 
Language, County Borough Councillor R. Lewis:  
 
“Can the Cabinet Member make a statement on school budget funding 
plans and proposals, particularly in relation to cash amounts and 
percentages?” 

 

22 Question from County Borough Councillor G. O. Jones to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Council Leader set out what level of protection our school 
budgets have in the draft budget being worked on and what discussions 
have been had in the School Budget Forum?” 
 

23 Question from County Borough Councillor R. Evans to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Council Leader tell this Council if the opposition group have 
put forward any budget suggestions in the face of what you have 
described – both in the Council Chamber and publicly in the media - as 
one of the most difficult budget rounds RCT has faced?” 
 

24 

 

Question from County Borough Councillor S. Emanuel to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Will the Leader give an update on the proposed park and ride at 
Treorci?” 
 

25 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Smith to the Leader of 
the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“With the introduction of the Social Partnership and Procurement Bill in 
Wales, can the Leader please outline what action RCT are taking to 
ensure compliance with the legislation?” 
 

26 Question from County Borough Councillor G. Holmes to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Will the Leader make a statement on road maintenance and outline 
how this Council is tackling the issue of potholes?” 

 

Tudalen 25



27 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Bradwick to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough 
Councillor A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member please make a statement on the Council’s 
programme of tree cutting and maintenance?” 
 

28 Question from County Borough Councillor D. Williams to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader outline what traffic management plans will be in place 
when the County Borough welcomes the National Eisteddfod for 
Wales?” 

 

29 Question from County Borough Councillor N.H. Morgan to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the leader update on what flood resilience bids the Council is 
putting forward to the Welsh Government for the forthcoming year?” 
 

30 Question from County Borough Councillor M. Powell to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
"Could the Cabinet portfolio holder for highways say what measures or 
proposals the RCT Highways department are considering to alleviate 
the dire traffic congestion problems that the Pontypridd Town centre 
has been enduring for many, many years please?" 
 

31 Question from County Borough Councillor H. Gronow to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough Councillor 
A. Crimmings: 
 
"Please will the Cabinet Member provide a statement on Playgrounds 
and Muga developments” 
 

32 Question from County Borough Councillor J. A. Elliott to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader outline whether any discussions have been had with 
Transport for Wales over the re-opening of the Public Right of Way near 
the Meadowlands in Cwmbach?” 

 

Tudalen 26



33 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Rees to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader provide an update on the progress on the delivery of 
the Labour Group’s manifesto commitments?” 
 

34 Question from County Borough Councillor D. Evans to County 
Borough Councillor R. Lewis, Cabinet Member for Education, 
Youth Participation and Welsh Language: 
 
“Can the relevant Cabinet Member please provide an update on the 
implementation of the additional childcare element of the free breakfast 
club provision” 
 

35 Question from County Borough Councillor R. Davis to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Council Leader give an update on Storm Dennis repairs 
across the County since 2020?” 
 

36 Question from County Borough Councillor W. Treeby to the 
Cabinet Member for Public Health and Communities, County 
Borough Councillor B. Harris:  
 
“Can the Cabinet Member make a statement on what support the 
Council is providing to Paddling Pool groups in Rhondda Cynon Taf?” 
 

37 Question from County Borough Councillor W. Lewis to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough Councillor 
A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member update on recycling rates in RCT and what 
progress is being made to improve these?” 
 

38 Question from County Borough Councillor C. Lisles to County 
Borough Councillor R. Lewis, Cabinet Member for Education, 
Youth Participation and Welsh Language: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member give an update on the introduction of the 
Additional Childcare element of the Free Breakfast Club provision.” 
 

39 Question from County Borough Councillor L. A. Tomkinson to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough 
Councillor A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member give an update on the planned investment in 
hockey facilities at Hawthorn?” 
 

Tudalen 27



 
4.4       At the Council meeting a maximum of 20 minutes shall be allowed for Questions 

on Notice. Any questions that are not dealt with in this time limit shall fall. Any 
questions on notice not answered will need to be resubmitted to the Proper Officer 
for the next full Council meeting in accordance with these rules. 

 
 5. CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT 
 
5.1 The amendments to the Council Procedure Rule in respect of Members 

Questions was considered and agreed at the Council’s AGM 2019 and AGM 
2021, following consultation with the Constitution Committee. 

 
6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The amendment to the Council procedure rule taken forward at the Council AGM, 

allows the opportunity for more Members to ask a question at Council 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 
 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

40 Question from County Borough Councillor A. Rogers to the 
Cabinet Member for Public Health and Communities, County 
Borough Councillor B. Harris:  
 
“Can the relevant Cabinet Member share what contact the Council has 
made with the Trivallis tenants and private homeowners/renters of the 
Gower estate, following the news of RAAC in 77 Hirwaun properties?” 
 
 

41 Question from County Borough Councillor V. Dunn to the  Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough Councillor 
A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member provide an update on the progress of the 
scheme to create a Multi-Use Games Area at the Sobell Centre in 
Aberdare?”  
 

42 Question from County Borough Councillor G. Stacey to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Leader of the Council update on what planning assumptions the 
Council will be working towards for the 2025/26 budget, and how can the 
Council work to set a balanced budget that avoids significant Council Tax 
rises like some other areas in Wales and across the U.K.?” 
 

43 Question from County Borough Councillor B. Stephens to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan OBE: 
 
“Can the Council Leader and Cabinet Member for highways set out 
what the Council is doing to tackle potholes and improve the condition 
of roads across RCT?” 
 

Tudalen 28



 
8.1 The report has been prepared in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9.2. 
 
9. LINKS TO THE COUNCILS CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER CORPORATE 

PRIORITIES. 
 
9.1 The opportunity for Members to propose questions at Council meetings 

allows Members to receive information which potentially detail the Council 
priorities. It also embraces the Future Generations Act as all work and 
decisions taken by Council seek to improve the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of the County Borough.  

 
10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 Detailing the procedure for Members Questions on Notice assists in 

transparency for both Members and for public engagement. 
 
Other Information:- 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee – Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 

Tudalen 29



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

24 APRIL 2024 
 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION. 
 
 
 
 

Item:  MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 

 
 

Background Papers 
 
      
 

 
Council AGM 2019. 
 
Council AGM 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 30

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2019/05/15/Reports/Item7TheCouncilsConstitutionProposedAmendmentsAndAncillaryMatters.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2021/05/26/Reports/AGMItem5Thecouncilsconstitutionproposedamendmentsandancillarymatters.pdf


 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

24 APRIL 2024 
 

‘WORKING WITH OUR COMMUNITIES’  
THE COUNCIL’S DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2024-2030 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN DISCUSSION WITH THE LEADER 
OF THE COUNCIL, COUNCILLOR ANDREW MORGAN OBE 
 
AUTHOR: Paul Mee 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to set out a new draft Corporate Plan from 

2024/25 – 2029/30.  The draft Plan, which has been informed by wide 
ranging engagement, provides a Vision for the County Borough for 2030, 
sets out the Council’s Well-being Objectives and the priorities it will focus 
upon over the following six years.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that Council: 
 
2.1 Approve the draft Corporate Plan 2024-30. 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 It is a key element of effective strategic planning, financial and people 

management for the Council to put in place a Corporate Plan to ensure 
that it: 

 
• Has a clear strategy and set of priorities for future years. 
• Informs and directs all the Council’s associated strategies and 

policies. 
• Can use this Plan to allocate its resources and ensure action plans 

are in place to deliver the agreed Well-being Objectives and achieve 
the outcomes that will make a difference to the people that live, work 
and visit the County Borough. 

• Is well placed to take advantage of future opportunities and meet 
risks and challenges, particularly in the context of reductions to local 
authority funding, changes in demography and in the demand for 
services and legislation.  

 
 
 

Tudalen 31

Agendwm 8



 

 

4. THE CORPORATE PLAN 
 
4.1 The draft Corporate Plan 2024-2030, attached at Appendix A, seeks to 

set the overall direction for the Council over the coming six years, 
describing its vision, purpose, and ambition as local authority for the 
County Borough. 

 
4.2 The Council’s proposed vision is for a Rhondda Cynon Taf where: 
 

‘All people, communities, and businesses can grow and live in a 
healthy, green, safe, vibrant, and inclusive County Borough where 
they can achieve their full potential in all aspects of their lives and 
work, both now and in the future’. 

 
4.3 The Council’s proposed purpose and the reason why it exists is:  
 

‘To provide community leadership and deliver high quality public 
services, working alongside residents, communities and our 
partners so that people, businesses and the environment can thrive 
and prosper’. 

 
4.4  It is proposed that the Council is focused on the following four Well-

being Objectives.  
 

i. PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES - Supporting and empowering RCT 
residents and communities to live safe, healthy and fulfilling lives. 

ii. WORK AND BUSINESS - Helping to strengthen and grow RCT’s 
economy.  

iii. NATURE AND THE ENVIRONMENT - A green and clean RCT that 
improves and protects RCT’s environment and nature. 

iv. CULTURE, HERITAGE AND WELSH LANGUAGE - Recognising and 
celebrating RCT’s past, present and future. 

 
4.5 The new draft Corporate Plan will build on previous Corporate Plans and 

be a key part of the Council’s budget and performance and delivery 
planning processes.  As a result, the draft Corporate Plan must consider 
the fact that Rhondda Cynon Taf Council and the wider public sector, 
continues to face significant financial and other challenges.  Budgets are 
under extreme pressure and demands on our services are increasing, 
particularly in the light of the impact of increasing cost of living and the 
legacies of the Covid pandemic.  

 
 

4.6  RCT is also facing… 
 
• A growing and aging population, many of whom may experience 

poor health with complex care and support needs.  

Tudalen 32



 

 

• The need to attract investment, high quality jobs and support the 
green economy whilst also addressing the skills gap. 

• The impact on lives and the risk to homes and businesses from 
extreme weather events. 

• The need to tackle inequalities in health, education, and work and 
improve life chances. 

• Energy costs, uncertain energy security and higher prices because 
of supply chain disruptions. 

 
4.7 The Corporate Plan addresses these current and future challenges as 

well as meeting a legal duty to develop and agree a Well-being Plan.  As 
a consequence of the changing environment in which we work, the new 
plan has a greater focus on creating and strengthening community 
capacity and resilience so people are better placed to take responsibility 
for their own well-being; is more closely aligned with the Sustainable 
Development principles; has embedded climate change into the 
business of the Council; is delivering additional social value through our 
contracts and focussing our attention on tackling health inequalities. 

 
4.8 An early draft Plan was informed by feedback from a wide range of 

engagement activities from across the Council and its services over the 
previous eighteen months, a review of progress over the life of the 
current Corporate Plan which also features in the Council’s 2022/23 
Annual Self-Assessment and consideration of the current and future 
challenges we are facing.  This early work was the basis of initial 
engagement through the ‘Let’s Talk’ platform ‘Let’s Talk about what 
Matters to You’, feedback from the Cabinet and Managers planning 
discussions in July 2023 and engagement with the staff on the 
‘Greenspace’ Teams channel.   
 

4.9 Subsequent to this, we put in place wider engagement to develop the 
Plan and in particular the Council’s Vision, Purpose, four Well-being 
Objectives and associated high level priorities and Our commitments to 
deliver a well-run Council.  This report was considered by Cabinet at its 
meeting on 20 March as part of its considerations of the draft Corporate 
Plan.  
 

 
5 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS AND SOCIOECONOMIC 

DUTY 
 
5.1 The Plan considers the socioeconomic issues within the County Borough 

and how these will be addressed.  Work in this area will continue as part 
of the further development of the Plan.  An Equalities Impact Assessment 
including a Socio economic Assessment, in respect of an early draft of 
the Corporate Plan was considered by the Review Panel on 7th March 
and the findings were considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 20 March 
2024.   

Tudalen 33

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/SelfAssessment2223/RCTCBCSelfAssessment202223.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/SelfAssessment2223/RCTCBCSelfAssessment202223.pdf
https://lets-talk.rctcbc.gov.uk/let-s-talk-corporate-plan-2024
https://lets-talk.rctcbc.gov.uk/let-s-talk-corporate-plan-2024
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46164/Appendix%20B.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46166/Appendix%20D.pdf?LLL=0


 

 

 
6 WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The Corporate Plan will be available in Welsh.  A Welsh Language 

Impact Assessment in respect of an early draft of the Corporate Plan was 
considered by the Review Panel on 7th March and the findings, were 
considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 20 March 2024. 

 
7 CONSULTATION/ENGAGEMENT/INVOLVEMENT  
 
7.1 This draft Corporate Plan has been informed by listening to and hearing 

what our residents of all ages, communities, partners, and staff have 
been telling us across a wide range of engagement.  This approach will 
continue during the development of the plan. 

 
7.2 The draft Corporate Plan has been formally subject to two phases of 

engagement:  
 

• Phase1 – between 18th September and 4th December 2023  
• Phase 2 – between 8th December and 29th January 2024, which also 

included an invitation to all elected Members to engage more widely 
through an item in the Members’ Newsletter 18th December edition and 
also consideration by the Council’s Joint Consultative Committee at its 
meeting on 20th December 2023.  

 
7.3  The Overview & Scrutiny Committee pre-scrutinised an early draft of the 

new Corporate Plan at its meeting on 29th January 2024.  There was a 
constructive and productive debate, and the feedback has been 
considered as part of the development of the draft Corporate Plan.   

 
7.4 The feedback from the engagement in respect of the high-level strategy 

was positive with a clear mandate that supports the Council’s Vision and 
a move to four Well-being Objectives, which align with the four pillars of 
Sustainable Development. 

 
7.5 It was also clear that residents value their public services and some 

expressed concern about the high level of ambition within the Plan given 
resources available.  Some responses indicated that they would like to 
see more detail, which we will make available during the life of the Plan. 
Other key feedback themes emerging were the Environment, 
Infrastructure, Community and Education.  Responses also contained 
suggestions that will inform our work as we continue to progress the 
detailed work to deliver our plan and we will continue to engage with 
people and communities of interest.  

 
7.6 Feedback also included general comments about the Council, how it 

works and communicates and engages with residents and communities.  
 

Tudalen 34

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46167/Appendix%20E.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46167/Appendix%20E.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=396&MId=50004901&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=401&MId=50004912&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46089/Appendix%20A.pdf?LLL=0


 

 

7.7 The feedback emerging from engagement has been considered in the 
continuing development of the Plan and because of this feedback, the 
content of the Corporate Plan has evolved to incorporate the salient 
points raised.  As indicated above, a report of the detailed engagement 
findings were considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 20 March.  We 
are continuing to consider any feedback received following the end of 
the formal engagement to inform the developing action plans for each of 
the Well-being Objectives. 

 
8 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
8.1 The draft Corporate Plan 2024-2030 will be set within the context of the 

budget setting process for 2024/25.  Any investments set out in the Plan 
will be considered as part of Medium-Term Financial Planning 
arrangements to ensure that spending priorities are aligned, where 
appropriate, with the Plan. 

 
9 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1 The Cabinet has responsibility for the overall strategic direction of the 

Council and for formulating the Corporate Plan and the Plan meets 
duties under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and 
the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 

 
10 LINKS TO THE CORPORATE PLAN AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES 

AND THE WELL BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 
 
10.1 This report proposes a new set of corporate priorities, i.e. our Well-being 

Objectives, which will drive the work of the Council between 2024/25 and 
2029/30. 

 
10.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act focuses on improving 

the Social, Economic, Environmental and Cultural Well-being of Wales. 
The Act makes public bodies, such as the Council, think more about the 
long-term, work better with people and communities and each other, look 
to prevent problems and take a more joined-up approach.  The proposed 
new Well-being Objectives and Priorities within the draft Corporate Plan 
strengthens the integration with Act.  This will enable the Council to 
further embed the requirements of the Act into its arrangements, and to 
demonstrate how it is meeting its statutory duties.  The way in which the 
Plan contributes to the seven national Well-being Goals can be seen in 
the WFG Appendix of the draft Corporate Plan.  

 
11 CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 Council is recommended to approve Council’s draft Corporate Plan 

2024-2030, following endorsement by Cabinet on 20 March 2024.  
  

Tudalen 35

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46164/Appendix%20B.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s46164/Appendix%20B.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=50004671&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=50004671&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 
AS AMENDED BY 

 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

24 APRIL 2024 
 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN DISCUSSION WITH THE LEADER  
OF THE COUNCIL (COUNCILLOR ANDREW MORGAN) 
 
 

Item:      
THE COUNCIL’S DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2024-2030 

 
Background Papers: 

 
 
 

Report to Cabinet on 20 March 2024   
 

Comprising draft Corporate Plan 2024-2030 
Draft Report of Engagement Findings  

Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Committee 29 January 2024 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officer to contact:  Paul Mee  
 
 
 

Tudalen 36

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=50004671&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=401&MId=50004912&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 
 

Appendix A 

 
 

Rhondda Cynon Taf Council’s 

Corporate Plan 

2024-2030 

 

Working with our 
Communities 

 

Design in hand 
 

The Council’s Corporate Plan is the Well-being Plan for Rhondda Cynon Taf as required by 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  

  

Tudalen 37



 

 
 

Leader’s Statement  

I am delighted to introduce the Council’s third Corporate Plan.  This plan builds on the strong 
foundations of our previous plans and at the same time recognises the changes we need to 
make to meet the unprecedented service and financial challenges ahead.  

When we put in place our second Corporate Plan in 2020, Making a Difference we could not 
have foreseen the challenges that faced our residents, communities and businesses in the 
years that followed as a consequence of Storm Dennis and the Covid pandemic that closely 
followed.  During this time, we have seen the strength and resilience of our communities and 
have worked alongside community and voluntary sector, business and public sector partners 
to keep our residents safe and supported.   

Many different legacies of the 2020 floods and the Covid pandemic already affecting our 
residents and businesses will remain with us for years to come.  Alongside the pandemic, the 
impact of global conflict and economic instability on our energy costs, the continuing cost of 
living crisis and an increased demand for our major services means we are moving into further 
extremely challenging times.  

Despite these challenges, we have delivered most of what we set out to achieve in 2020 and 
at the same time invested over £450 million (2019/20 -2022/23).  We have been able to  
 
PEOPLE: open new Extra Care housing at ‘Cwrt Yr Orsaf’ Pontypridd, with Porth and Gelli Extra 
Care under way, complete the George V Athletics Track, continue with 3G pitches, play areas 
and parks and Community Hubs.  
 
PLACES: continue our roads and bridges programme including the Mountain Ash Cross Valley 
link and A4119 dualling, repair and renew flood defences across the County Borough, improve 
Ynysangharad and Dare Valley Country Parks, develop the Porth Transport Hub and the 
Material Recycling Facility in Bryn Pica, 
 
PROSPERITY: continue to improve school buildings and facilities through the Sustainable 
Communities for Learning Programme, complete our award winning Llys Cadwyn 
development, including the new footbridge, in Pontypridd and new Industrial Units in Coed 
Ely and Robertstown.  
 
More detail about our achievements since 2020 can be seen in the Council’s Annual Self-
Assessment report 2022/23. 
 
Rhondda Cynon Taf remains a great place to live, enjoy and do business.  A County Borough 
of strong and vibrant communities, enthusiastic and talented people of all ages, abilities and 
backgrounds and rich and varied landscapes with huge potential to take advantage of growing 
green and sustainable economy.   
 

The Council’s Plan focuses on our four Well-being Objectives 

1. PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES  

Tudalen 38

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/TheCouncilsCorporatePlan.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/SelfAssessment2223/RCTCBCSelfAssessment202223.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/RelatedDocuments/SelfAssessment2223/RCTCBCSelfAssessment202223.pdf


 

 
 

2. WORK AND BUSINESS   
3. NATURE AND THE ENVIRONMENT  
4. CULTURE, HERITAGE and WELSH LANGUAGE 

We are building on the partnerships we have developed, strengthening relationships where 
we can support our people, communities and the many different community-based groups.  
Together we can create solutions that will help to deliver better outcomes and can share the 
responsibility for supporting people in our communities who need help.  By doing so, we can 
focus our support on those in the greatest need of care and support to help build their 
resilience so that they are able to make better choices for themselves and help our young 
people to achieve their potential.  

One of our biggest challenges is preparing for and tackling the impact of Climate Change.  The 
steps to meet this challenge are complex and interconnected but we are committed to 
reducing carbon across the Council and County Borough, continuing to embed energy saving 
and carbon reduction into everything we do.  Our contributions to tackling the Welsh 
Government declared climate and nature emergencies is becoming business as usual in all 
our services.  This includes what we buy or commission on behalf of the Council and in our 
work with Welsh Government, regional and local partners.   

Climate Change is only one of the key challenges we face as we tackle the priorities that 
emerged from our Self-Assessment.  These challenges include managing our way through the 
current and future financial difficulties whilst keeping experienced and skilled staff, 
particularly in our social care sector, as we face growing demands from a population with 
more complex and connected needs.  

Whilst we will do everything we can to keep our own costs as low as we can, meet our 
statutory duties and regulatory expectations, there is no escaping the tough decisions that 
must be taken to ensure a sustainable future for the Council and Rhondda Cynon Taf.  

It is clear that for the Council to continue to provide its essential services, valued by the 
communities of Rhondda Cynon Taf, we will need to change the way we engage and work 
with our residents, communities and businesses to understand what matters to them and 
change the way services are provided.  At the same time, residents can help by playing their 
part at home and in their communities. 

 

  

Tudalen 39

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/TheCouncilsAnnualSelfAssessment.aspx


 

 
 

Introduction  

Welcome to the Council’s third Corporate Plan.  The plan sets out where will we focus our 
work up until 2030, and the outcomes you can expect to see, because of our work as a Council 
and also in our work with other partners and stakeholders.   

The Plan is structured around four Well-being objectives which will help us to improve the 
social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Rhondda Cynon Taf  

 
1. PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES - Supporting and empowering RCT residents and 

communities to live safe, healthy, and fulfilling lives. 
2. WORK AND BUSINESS - Helping to strengthen and grow RCT’s Economy.  
3. NATURE AND THE ENVIRONMENT - A green and clean RCT that improves and 

protects RCT’s environment and nature. 
4. CULTURE, HERITAGE AND WELSH LANGUAGE  Recognising and celebrating RCT’s 

past, present and future. 
 

No single plan can set out the vast range of services the Council delivers, procures, or 
commissions, either as a single organisation or in partnership with others.  Our work is 
governed by many laws and regulations that, for example, check that we spend our money 
wisely and that we work with other public bodies to improve outcomes for residents.  The 
work in this plan will be reflected in and aligned to other Council plans, strategies, and 
policies, those that are most relevant are included in Appendix *** for information. 
 
In setting our Well-being Objectives, we have made sure that our plans to improve the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Rhondda Cynon Taf today, take account 
of the impact they will have on people living their lives in the future.  We have done this by 
applying ‘five ways of working’ in our planning, i.e.  
 
• Involving: local people, a range of stakeholders and Councillors in shaping our plan.  We 

have been listening to and hearing what our residents of all ages, communities, partners, 
and staff are telling us what matters to them.  This will continue as we develop future 
actions.  We also looked at information and feedback from a range of surveys, 
engagement events and ongoing conversations held across our services over the eighteen 
months so that we made best use of the information you have already told us.  Our Plan 
provides a snapshot of the information we have used. 

• Working with others: where we can and seeking further opportunities as we implement 
the Plan over the coming years.  Our Plan provides some examples of where we are 
already working with partners and more detail will be visible in our annual plans.  

• Looking ahead: at our challenges and opportunities.  We have used the best data and 
information we can find and sought advice about how we consider the challenges and 
opportunities ahead.  There is uncertainty about the long term, but we have included 
some of the information we have used to inform our objectives and to safeguard the 
future.  

• Integration:  As we developed our Plan, we considered the work of other organisations so 
that we complement and do not contradict or duplicate.  In particular, Welsh Government 

Tudalen 40



 

 
 

laws and plans and those of our local and regional partners.  We have included some of 
these ‘national drivers’ that we need to consider.  

• Preventing: We looked at how we can prevent problems from occurring or getting worse 
across each of our Well-being Objectives as we prepare for the future.  A good example 
of this is working with partners to help to keep people well and reduce inequalities in 
health so that they are at less risk of disease and ill health.  Much of our detailed work will 
be contained in the annual plans.   
 

These ‘ways of working’ help us to show that we are meeting the Sustainable Development 
principle required by the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act.  The Act also asks that 
we show how our work contributes to the seven national Well-being goals for Wales.  You can 
see these national goals have shaped our work and how our Well-being Objectives will meet 
them in Appendix  ?? 
 

We also   

• looked for and examined the best information and data available about the County 
Borough, residents and communities in the context of the current significant and 
competing local, regional, national and global priorities.  

• researched best practice to challenge what we do as we strive to deliver quality services 
with and for our residents and communities.  

• reviewed our own achievements and progress over the life of our previous Corporate Plan 
2020 -24  ‘Making A Difference’, our strategic risks and our annual Self-Assessment and 
considered our quarterly reports of progress.  The Self-Assessment also includes 
consideration of evaluations of all our services and an assessment of our corporate 
functions.  

• considered those areas of work that we legally must deliver and those we have committed 
to through partnerships, including through the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Well-being Plan 
2023-28.  

 
This plan provides the framework that will guide and shape what we do, direct how and where 
we spend our budgets, manage, and mitigate strategic risks and inform how we train and 
develop our staff and Councillors to meet current and future challenges.  Challenges like  

• Growing vulnerability and complexity of need across our population, many of whom 
may experience poor health with complex care and support needs.  

• The need to attract investment, high quality jobs and support the green economy 
whilst addressing the skills gap.  

• Tackling inequalities in health, education, work and improving life chances of all our 
residents, no matter their background or circumstances.   

• The impact on lives and the risk to homes and businesses from extreme weather 
events. 

• Dealing with rising energy costs, uncertain energy security and higher prices because 
of supply chain disruptions. 

 

Tudalen 41

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/TheCouncilsCorporatePlan.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/TheCouncilsAnnualSelfAssessment.aspx
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/0vdllweo/psb-cwm-taf-morgannwg-wellbeing-plan-2023-28.pdf


 

 
 

Rhondda Cynon Taf is the third largest Council area in Wales made up of communities with 
different needs and aspirations.  The area includes a relatively high proportion of our 
population living within the 10% most deprived local areas in Wales.  We also have more 
affluent areas across a diverse geographical and cultural landscape.  We know from the many 
hundreds of conversations and survey responses we have from residents, community groups, 
businesses, visitors and partners, there are many hundreds of points of view, ideas, 
competing needs and expectations to manage.  With budgets under pressure and demands 
on our services increasing, we recognise the need to develop and manage realistic 
expectations through a strengthened partnership approach.  

Our plans must also recognise the shorter term nature of our financial planning.  We are 
currently as clear as we can be about the available budgets and resources we have available 
in setting our priorities, our detailed actions and targets will be reviewed and revised annually 
in line with our Medium Term Financial Plans.  We will also continue to seek any opportunities 
for grant funding that can help us to do more. 

However, we remain ambitious, and we know we can continue to improve by doing things 
differently and making better use of data and information available to focus more on 
outcomes for our residents and communities.  Doing things differently means inviting 
everyone that visits, lives, and works in Rhondda Cynon Taf to play a part so that everyone 
can benefit.   

By working more closely together, empowering, and enabling communities and working with 
our public sector partners, we can deliver more of what matters, support better outcomes for 
those in most need of our help and continue to support the economic, social, cultural, and 
environmental well-being of the County Borough.  This approach builds on our work over the 
last few years that has already seen: 

• parks and green spaces, leisure, and fitness facilities that people can use to keep active 
and healthy and well. 

• creative and community spaces that support individual well-being and help to reduce 
health, social and economic inequalities. 

• facilities where people can recycle more of their waste and send what they no longer 
need for other people to reuse. 

• early years support that helps parents get children nursery and school ready so they 
can benefit from the opportunities to learn through play. 

• Town Centre developments where people can live, work, visit and shop locally and 
support local businesses and the local economy.  

  

Tudalen 42

https://www.data.cymru/dashboards/viewofpoverty


 

 
 

About the County Borough RCT graphic map type to present RCT specific data  

 

 

People & Communities – Potential information for inclusion    

- Population: 237,497 (2021 Census), Male - 116,230 (49%)/Female - 121,267 (51%) 
- Ageing Population: 46,787 (19.7%) aged 64+ 
- Schools: 38,497 pupils across 115 schools of which 17 are Welsh-medium 
- Leisure: 12 leisure facilities including 8 swimming pools from which 335 fitness classes and 

activities are offered each week,  
- Grounds: 25 artificial pitches, 3 synthetic running tracks, 97 grass pitches, 24 bowling greens, 3 

indoor bowling halls, 11 cricket pitches and 216 playgrounds  
- Community Centres: 27 
- Community Recreational Centres: 3  
- Extra Care Homes: 3 with 4 in development 

Work & Business Potential information for inclusion  

- Town Centres: 7 town centres all have free Wi-Fi  
- 114 EV charging bays installed and ready to use, 10 awaiting connection and 10 connected and 

awaiting commissioning. 
- Public Transport:  awaiting info on routes and users TBC  
- Reuse shops: 6  

Tudalen 43



 

 
 

Nature & Environment  Potential information for inclusion    

- Biodiversity/nature: Around 33% of RCT is tree covered with 18.5% tree cover in our urban 
areas. 

- 4556 MWh of renewable energy generated since 2019 equalling 1,025 tonnes of CO2 emissions 
saved. 

- Community Recycling Centres: 6 CRCs, 2022/23 recycling rate 64.97%  
- Green Flag Award for RCTCBC: 4 
- Green Flag Award for RCT Community: 9 
- Active Travel Routes (km): 109km of on and off road active travel routes. 

Culture & Heritage Potential information for inclusion    

- Welsh Language: 43,179 (18.2%) can speak, read, write or understand Welsh 
- Community Hubs: 7  
- Theatres: 3  
- Museums: 3  
- Libraries: 13  
- Walking Trails: 10  
- POI: 19 places of interest  

  

Tudalen 44



 

 
 

The Council’s Corporate Plan 2024-30  

The Council’s Vision is for a Rhondda Cynon Taf where: 
 
All people, communities, and businesses can grow and live in a healthy, green, safe, vibrant, 
and inclusive County Borough where they can achieve their full potential in all aspects of their 
lives and work, both now and in the future. 
 
The Council’s purpose and the reason it exists is: 
 
To provide community leadership and deliver high quality public services, working alongside 
residents, communities and our partners so that people, businesses, and the environment can 
thrive and prosper. 
 
Our Approach 
 
Our new Plan builds on the strong platform put in place by our previous two Plans.  To deliver 
what our new Plan sets out, we need our staff, Councillors, residents, communities, and 
partners working in the same direction to deliver our shared vision.  The future challenges 
faced across the Council’s services mean that now more than ever, we need well trained, 
informed, and supported staff and councillors who can respond to the challenges ahead within 
an ambitious programme of work.  As public sector budgets remain under pressure and the 
demands on our services increase, the need to work with communities and across 
organisational boundaries to deliver the best outcomes for our residents, both now and in the 
future, has never been greater.  

Our Values  
 
We take pride in our work and set ourselves high standards and ambitions to deliver and have 
a positive impact for all in Rhondda Cynon Taf. 
 
Our role in the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Public Services Board (CTMPSB) 
 
As an active member of the CTMPSB, we work with our local public sector partners to deliver 
the two Well-being Objectives agreed by the Cwm Taf Morgannwg PSB in the Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg Well- being Plan - Cwm Taf Morgannwg (ourcwmtaf.wales) 
 
1. Healthy Local Neighbourhoods: - A Cwm Taf Morgannwg where our communities are 

inclusive and feel cohesive and people feel safe, supported, and valued. 
2. Sustainable and Resilient Local Neighbourhoods – A Cwm Taf Morgannwg where we 

understand and respond to the risk of climate change to our communities.  To do this we 
must value, manage and enjoy our green and blue spaces responsibly. 

 
Other examples of where we work in partnership with others can be found in our ‘Working 
With Others’ web page.  
  

Tudalen 45

https://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/cwm-taf-morgannwg-well-being-plan
https://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/cwm-taf-morgannwg-well-being-plan
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Partnerships/Workingwithothers.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Partnerships/Workingwithothers.aspx


 

 
 

Listening to and hearing what you say 
 
We regularly seek the views and opinions of our residents of all ages, community groups, 
businesses and staff as we conduct the business of the Council.  This means we have 
information and feedback from the many conversations and surveys we have held over the 
last year or so that have helped to inform and shape this Plan.  For example, feedback and 
views about the Council’s budget setting for 2023/24; the Council’s Local Development Plan 
2022-37, Flood Risk Strategy, the place based Aberdare Town Centre Strategy, co production 
proposals for day service following ‘My Day, My Way’, ‘Your Voice’ survey of young people, 
our ‘Climate Conversation’,  the wide ranging engagement as part of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Well-being Assessment, as well as many service specific engagement events and surveys.   
 
What we did 
We used the information you had already given us as a starting point to start to shape our 
Plan.  We put in place a new conversation ‘Let’s Talk about what matters to you’ to check out 
that we were on the right track and then we put in place wider ranging opportunities for 
everyone to consider the detail.  Of the responses we received, the majority, over 87%, 
thought that our areas of focus were right/correct or almost right/correct but could be 
improved.  What we learned from this conversation gave us some assurance that we had a 
made a solid start from that point in time. 
 
Using this feedback and other information, we drafted the outline of a new Corporate Plan 
including a new Vision, Well-being Objectives and commitments to residents.  Our outline 
Corporate Plan formed the basis of wide ranging engagement with our residents, 
representative groups, and stakeholders including staff, Councillors, Trade Unions and 
partners.  The engagement comprised online surveys, face to face discussions in our Town 
Centres, focus groups and discussions as part of regular network meetings for which we 
provided standard, bilingual and easy read ‘engagement packs’ to assist.  Our approach and 
detailed findings can be found in the accompanying report to Cabinet when final.  
 
What you told us 
Feedback from the conversations, meetings and surveys showed us how strongly you feel 
about public services generally and how much they are valued within communities.   
 
The majority of responses supported our Vision and Well-being Objectives.  However, we 
have also taken account of feedback that sought to include Welsh Language in our Well-being 
Objective for Culture and Heritage to further demonstrate our strong commitment to the 
Welsh language.  This feedback has given us assurance about our draft Vision, the four Well-
being Objectives and Priorities and the commitments to our residents, but we are not 
complacent.  Responses also indicated some concern about whether the Plan was over 
ambitious given the financial challenges ahead and also the need to see more information as 
the detail of the plans emerges.  A minority of responses indicated that of the four Well-being 
Objectives, People and Communities and Work and Business should be prioritised over 
Nature and Environment and Culture and Heritage.  Despite our best efforts, some 
representative groups did not participate in the engagement, and we will continue to seek 
their involvement as we develop the detailed actions for the plan. 
 

Tudalen 46

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39835/Appendix%202.pdf?LLL=0
https://lets-talk.rctcbc.gov.uk/let-s-talk-local-development-plan
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Newsroom/PressReleases/2023/August/UpcomingconsultationonthedraftLocalFloodRiskManagementStrategyandActionPlan.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Newsroom/PressReleases/2023/August/ConsultationonfutureinvestmentforAberdareTownCentre.aspx
https://lets-talk.rctcbc.gov.uk/let-s-talk-my-day-my-way
https://lets-talk.rctcbc.gov.uk/let-s-talk-climate-change
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/CTMAssessment
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Consultations/CompletedConsultations/CompletedConsultations.aspx
https://lets-talk.rctcbc.gov.uk/let-s-talk-corporate-plan-2024


 

 
 

Summary feedback is considered alongside each of the Well-being Objectives.  Detailed 
feedback and suggestions for more general improvements will be considered as we develop 
the detailed actions to deliver the plan over the next six years.  We will also continue to 
engage with our residents and stakeholders as part of this work, and also seek their views on 
whether our work has made the difference and impact intended. 
 
As a result of what we have learned, we have committed to focusing on the four Well-being 
objectives that you have told us matter most to you, and that will better prepare us all for 
the future:  
 
Our Well-being Objectives: 
 

1. PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES - Supporting and empowering RCT residents and 
communities to live safe, healthy and fulfilling lives. 

2. WORK AND BUSINESS - Helping to strengthen and grow RCT’s economy.  
3. NATURE AND THE ENVIRONMENT - A green and clean RCT that improves and protects 

RCT’s environment and nature. 
4. CULTURE, HERITAGE AND WELSH LANGUAGE - Recognising and celebrating RCT’s 

past, present and future. 
 
In guiding and shaping our work for the next six years the detailed action plans that will help 
us monitor our progress, will embed those big issues that affect every service.  For example, 
tackling all forms of poverty, treating people fairly, mitigating and adapting to the impacts of 
the changing climate, and importantly, keeping our children, young people and adults at risk 
safe and protected from harm.   

We know that many of these big issues will have the biggest impact on groups of people who 
are already at a disadvantage.  For example, older and vulnerable people are more likely to 
be affected by the impacts of climate change, such as heat waves, air pollution and other 
extreme weather events, due to a combination of age, health issues and greater social 
isolation.  Poverty has a significant impact on health and well-being, educational and other 
outcomes in the lives of children and families.  People with disabilities are less likely to be in 
employment and those on low incomes experience more housing problems.  When 
developing and delivering our detailed plans, we will be aware of these issues and will listen 
to and work with our residents and communities, particularly those who are seldom heard 
and/or in the greatest need.  

The four Well-being Objectives deliberately cut across all services.  Many of the supporting 
priorities they contain will benefit more than one Well-being objective as our services work 
together to deliver our Vision for Rhondda Cynon Taf.   
 
We are also preparing our services to meet new laws that we are expecting to be 
implemented in the coming months, for example Eliminating profit from care for children 
looked after, Coal Tip Safety and the Environment (Air Quality and Soundscapes) Bill.  

 
  

Tudalen 47

https://www.gov.wales/proposed-changes-legislation-social-care-and-continuing-health-care
https://www.gov.wales/proposed-changes-legislation-social-care-and-continuing-health-care
https://www.gov.wales/coal-tip-safety-wales-white-paper
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984


 

 
 

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES 
 

Now1  
 
People 
Total population: 237,4972 
• Aged 0-15       43,680 (18.4%) 
• Aged 16-64     147,030 (61.8%) 
• Aged 64+        46,787 (19.7%) 
 
32,170 people live alone, including 14,049 over the age of 66. 
 
Health 
 
Life expectancy3 
Male 77.0 years 
Male healthy life expectancy 57.1 years 
Female 80.5 years 
Female healthy life expectancy 60.7 years 
 
12.0% of people in RCT said they had disabilities which limited 
them a lot in their daily lives. 
 
11.2% of people in RCT provide unpaid care for family 
members or friends. 
 
Housing  
68.5% of people in RCT own their own home (with or without a 
mortgage) 
13.7% rent social housing. 
17.7% rent private housing. 
 
8,461 pupils in RCT (22.0%) are eligible for free school meals 
(20.3% in Wales) 
*Data from January 2023 School Census Results, Welsh Government  
• Attendance rates 2022/3  

o Primary School learners - 91%  
o eFSM learners - 86.8% 
o Secondary School learners - 85.8%   
o eFSM learners - 77%  

Looking Ahead  
 

People  
4.1% increase in population to 2030 
with RCT projected to remain 3rd 
largest LA by population in Wales.  
 
By 2030: compared to MYE on left  
Aged 0-15       42,861 (1.9% 
decrease) 
Aged 16-64    151,377 (3% increase)  
Aged 65+        52,884 (13.% increase)  
of which Aged 85+         6573 (25.4% 
increase)  
 
Health projections for Wales.4 
33% increase in the prevalence of 
stroke by 2035 
22% increase in people living with 
diabetes by 2036 
70% increase in people living with 
dementia by 2040 
25% increase in people diagnosed 
with cancer per year by 2040 
 
Housing 
27% increase in single person 
households in 2043 
25% increase of 1 adult households 
with children and a 16% reduction in 
2 adult households with children 
 

 
1 All data refers to RCT and is taken from the 2021 Census unless stated otherwise 
2 Mid year population estimates 2022 Stats Wales  
3 Healthy life expectancy is the proportion of life in good health, data for RCT – ONS  
4 Wales Online referencing report of the chief scientific advisor NHS in 10+ years: An examination of the 
projected impact of Long-Term Conditions and Risk Factors in Wales 

 

Tudalen 48

https://www.gov.wales/schools-census-results-january-2023
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Estimates/Local-Authority/populationestimates-by-localauthority-year
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandlifeexpectancies/datasets/healthstatelifeexpectancyallagesuk
https://www.walesonline.co.uk/news/wales-news/sickness-timebomb-set-hit-wales-27872232
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-09/science-evidence-advice.pdf


 

 
 

Some of our National Drivers -This information will be available through hyperlink in final 
version  
 
• Children and young people's plan What we will do to support children and young people 

who are growing up, living and working in Wales. 
• Child Poverty Strategy for Wales 2024 Welsh Government’s updated Strategy  
• Age Friendly Wales – Strategy for an Ageing Society 
• Decarbonising Social Care in Wales 2022-27 
• Ending homelessness: A high level action plan – 2021-2026 
• Tackling Fuel Poverty 2021 to 2035 
• Our National Mission: High Standards and Aspirations for All 2022 – 2026 A plan to tackle 

the impact of poverty on educational attainment and supporting every learner.  
• Welsh in Education Strategic Plan Guidance on Local Authority’s developing their WESP. 
• Healthy Weight Wales Strategy  to prevent and reduce obesity in Wales 
• A Healthier Wales: Long Term Plan for Health & Social Care -2018 
• Public Health Wales’ Strategic Plan 2022-2025 
• Sport Wales Strategy: Enabling Sport in Wales to Thrive  

 

Our residents told us that ‘What Matters to them is ………’ the care and support of our young 
and older people, and that access to good quality education for all continues to be a priority.  
They also wanted to see community development with local accessible services and help to 
improve individual health and well-being.  They wanted to see good quality homes, and 
improved affordability and energy efficiency in existing homes.  

 

PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES  

In People and Communities our priorities are: 

1. Children and young people have the best start in life and can learn and grow safely, 
2. Residents can take care of their health & well-being so they can live healthy, 

independent, and fulfilling lives,  
3. Safeguarding our most vulnerable residents of all ages, providing protection, care and 

support when they need it most so that they can maximise their potential, and 
4. Residents will have access to affordable, good quality and energy efficient homes. 
 
1 Children and young people have the best start in life and can learn and grow safely. 

a) Supporting children and families in their early years to have the best opportunities to 
develop, be healthy, and enjoy a range of programmes and activities in our libraries 
and Community Hubs.  

b) Helping children of all abilities and backgrounds to do the very best they can in school 
by ensuring that we have a relentless focus on securing continuous school 
improvement and high standards in our schools.  

c) Ensuring access to timely intervention and advice so that the needs of learners and 
their families are identified swiftly and early intervention provided. 

Tudalen 49

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2022/6/4/1654765785/children-and-young-peoples-plan.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/child-poverty-strategy-wales-2024
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2021/10/4/1633593161/age-friendly-wales-our-strategy-ageing-society.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2022-07/decarbonising-social-care-in-wales.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-11/ending-homelessness-high-level-action-plan-2021-2026_0.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2021/12/4/1638465219/tackling-fuel-poverty-2021-2035.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-03/our-national-mission-high-standards-and-aspirations-for-all_0.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/guidance-welsh-in-education-strategic-plan.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/healthy-weight-strategy-healthy-weight-healthy-wales
https://www.gov.wales/healthier-wales-long-term-plan-health-and-social-care
https://phw.nhs.wales/about-us/our-priorities/long-term-strategy-documents/public-health-wales-strategic-plan-2022-25/
https://www.sport.wales/sport-wales-strategy/
https://futures.sport.wales/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Sport-Wales-Enable-Sport-In-Wales-To-Thrive-F1.pdf


 

 
 

d) Providing great learning environments through our new and improved early years 
settings and schools including a new Special school and making Welsh medium 
education accessible to all. 

e) Supporting children and young people of all abilities and backgrounds to overcome 
barriers to learning, including those experiencing poverty, so that they can achieve the 
best educational outcomes that they are capable of. 

f) Ensuring that children, young people and their families have a voice and help us to 
shape and further improve our services and educational experiences. 

 

2. Residents can take care of their health & well-being so they can live healthy, 
 independent, and fulfilling lives.   

a) Helping our residents to keep healthy, active and well; fulfilling their potential and 
strengthening local communities through opportunities to participate in learning, 
leisure, physical and creative activities that are accessible to all. 

b) Considering the implications of the National Framework for Social Prescribing.  
c) Implementing the five year Health Determinate Research Collaboration in order to 

tackle health inequalities in RCT and address wider health determinants that directly 
affect the life chances of our residents. 

d) Enabling people to be engaged in resilient communities, strengthening connections 
between community groups, providing opportunities to lead and influence 
community developments and be involved in volunteering. 

e) Working with residents and partners to keep our communities safe and free from 
crime. 

f) Developing connections so that communities and the third and business sectors can 
work together to source sustainable and healthy food and develop horticulture and 
other technical skills that support the growth of sustainable food. 

g) Developing community focused schools, that provide a range of services and activities, 
often beyond the school day, to help meet the needs of its pupils, their families and 
the wider community. 

 
3  Safeguarding our most vulnerable residents of all ages, providing protection, 

 care and support when they need it most so that they can maximise their 
 potential.  
a) Enabling people to live independently in their community and close to home by 

providing the right support and care at the right time.  
b) Providing modern accommodation that meets the needs of people who can no longer 

live at home. 
c) Protecting children, young people and adults at risk from harm, neglect and 

exploitation. 
d) Supporting people affected by/experiencing domestic violence and addiction. 
e) Giving vulnerable children and young people the best possible opportunities in life and 

ensuring access to safe and supportive environments suitable to their needs, to 
improve their well-being.  

 
 

Tudalen 50

https://www.gov.wales/cabinet-paper-national-framework-for-social-prescribing-html


 

 
 

4 Residents will have access to affordable, good quality and energy efficient homes 
a) Working with partners to enable the supply of affordable and sustainable homes 

across our communities, including supporting those people who are homeless and 
bringing empty properties back into use. 

b) Enabling more people to live in warm and energy efficient homes to improve their 
health and wellbeing and enable them to live more sustainably.  

Some of the outcomes we expect to see by 2030 

• Attendance, exclusions and attainment in all our schools will continue to show strong 
progress, compare favourably with other parts of Wales, with improved educational 
outcomes, work and training opportunities for our school leavers.  

• Families will have greater resilience: fewer children will be ‘looked after’ in our care 
and will have improved life chances. 

• More of our residents will use the opportunities available across the County Borough 
to keep active, healthy and well and reduce their risk of disease and ill health. 

• Children in our care will be looked after closer to their home and stay connected to 
families, friends and communities.  

• Better joined up services across health and social care so that people get the right care 
in the right place at the right time.  

• Fewer people affected by/experiencing domestic violence and addiction. 
• More affordable homes and fewer empty homes. 
• Fewer homes in RCT will have energy ratings below Energy Performance Certificate D.  

 
Working in partnership  
with Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board and other partners to improve the health 
and well-being of our residents, including joining up the health and social care they receive.  
By strengthening joint working we want to see fewer people going into hospital and those 
that do need care, receive it promptly within their communities and spend less time in 
hospital.  
with South Wales Police, Probation and other partners to reduce crime and disorder in our 
area so that our communities are free from crime and free from the fear of crime.  
  

Tudalen 51

https://ctmregionalpartnershipboard.co.uk/
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Partnerships/Workingwithothers/RhonddaCynonTafCommunitySafetyPartnership.aspx


 

 
 

WORK AND BUSINESS  

Now 
 
People and Skills 
• 26.7% have a degree or equivalent Level 4 qualification. 
• 72.4% of Key Stage 4 learners achieved A*-C grades in their 

GCSE in 2023 
• 24.2% of people have no qualifications. 
• 25.8% of people in work are employed in the public sector. 
• 29.6% of RCT residents work in routine or semi-routine jobs. 
• 23.8% of people aged 16 to 64 in RCT are economically 

inactive (not in or looking for work) 
• 9% of adults are digitally excluded.  
• 23.8% of children are in relative low income families (22.1% in 

Wales) and  
• 15.3% in absolute low income families (14.8% in Wales) 
 

Businesses 
• Currently 7,020 active businesses and 169 Social Enterprises 

operating in RCT5 
• In 2021, 1,280 businesses started up in RCT and 845 ceased to 

trade. 
 

Transport 
• 43,100 people travel outside RCT to work. 
• 21.8% of people work mainly from home, 66.7% commute by 

driving. 
 

1.31 billion vehicle miles were travelled on roads in Rhondda, 
Cynon, Taf in 20226 
 

Prioritisation of road and train travel over buses has widened 
inequalities in access to essential services, employment and social 
interactions.7  
22.2% of households do not have a car or van.  This rises to over 
30% in some areas of RCT (Treherbert, Ferndale and Maerdy)  
• 19% of Welsh speakers always speak Welsh with colleagues. 
• 11% of Welsh speakers speak Welsh with colleagues usually, 

but not always. 
• 21% of Welsh speakers speak Welsh with colleagues 

sometimes. 

Looking Ahead  
 
After 2028, the number of 
economically active people is 
forecast to decrease, while the 
overall population will continue 
to increase in size. 
 
Increase in automation may 
make a growing share of low 
skilled workers unemployable, 
as whatever work they are (or 
could become) qualified to do 
could be done cheaper, faster or 
more reliably by robots or 
computers.  
 
Between 100 and 500 billion 
devices will be connected to the 
internet by 2030, between 12 
and 60 times as many as the 
number of people in the world. 
 
Development of the service 
economy and moving away from 
personal ownership to accessing 
service e.g. car clubs and media 
streaming 
 
Increasing importance of 
biotechnology to tackle 
challenges including pollution, 
climate change and food 
security. 
 
Transport 
 
Road traffic in England and 
Wales could grow by up to 54% 
between 2025 and 2060(+4%) 8. 

 
5 Business births, deaths and active enterprises, Stats Wales and Social Enterprises in RCT, Cwmpas 
6  Department of Transport - Road Traffic Statistics for RCT 
7 The Marmot Review – 10 Years on 
8 Department of Transport - National Road Traffic Projections 2022 

Tudalen 52

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/Businesses/Business-Demography/businessbirthsdeathsactiveenterprises-by-area-variable
https://roadtraffic.dft.gov.uk/local-authorities/22
https://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/marmot-review-10-years-on/the-marmot-review-10-years-on-full-report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/63975bcfd3bf7f3f7d1cf440/national-road-traffic-projections-2022.pdf


 

 
 

Some of our National Drivers - This information will be available through hyperlink in final 
version  
 
• WG Employability Plan 
• Stronger Fairer Greener Wales: a plan for Employability & Skills 
• Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 
• Llwybr Newydd: the Wales Transport Strategy 2021 
• Wales Infrastructure Investment Strategy 
• A shared strategic vision for the retail sector 
• Wales Procurement Policy Statement 2022-2028 
• Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Act 2023 
• Digital Strategy for Wales – Delivery Plan 2021  

 

Our residents told us that ‘What Matters to them is ………’. accessible opportunities for secure 
work, training and support for people to be self-employed.   They want to see joined up methods 
of public transport.  They also wanted to see improvements across all our Town Centres so that 
they are more attractive and encourage more people to visit.  Things like making use of empty 
properties and supporting small local businesses to thrive.  

 
WORK and BUSINESS 
In Work and Business our priorities are: 

1. Supporting people into rewarding career pathways, skilled and secure work.  
2. Supporting businesses to prosper and be sustainable. 
3. Thriving town centres, and 
4. A well-connected County Borough. 

 
1 Supporting people into rewarding career pathways, skilled and secure work 

a) Supporting people of all ages to gain the skills they need for jobs in our local 
communities and working with local businesses and training providers to identify 
appropriate opportunities for them. 

b) Supporting people experiencing ‘in work’ poverty to find more rewarding and secure 
work.  

c) Providing individual support and solutions for people experiencing barriers to work to 
gain or make progress into jobs or volunteering.  

d) Leading by example by providing experience, work and training opportunities within 
the Council particularly for young people and those experiencing barriers to work. 

e) Working with our suppliers to increase the Social Value and Community benefits from 
all our contracts, for example through jobs, work experience and training.  

f) Working as part of Cardiff Capital Region to identify and support jobs and skills 
development in regionally defined priority areas e.g. new and emerging technologies. 

 
2 Supporting businesses to prosper and be sustainable. 

a) Enabling businesses to find the right advice and support to help them modernise, be 
sustainable and take advantage of new opportunities and emerging markets. 

b) Increasing our local ‘spend’ and supporting social enterprises. 

Tudalen 53

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/employability-plan-2.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/stronger-fairer-greener-wales-plan-employability-and-skills-summary-html
https://www.gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-03/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021-full-strategy_0.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-12/wales-infrastructure-investment-strategy-2021.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2023/1/5/1673619300/shared-strategic-vision-retail-sector.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2022-08/wales-procurement-policy-statement-2022.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/social-partnership-and-public-procurement-wales-act
https://www.gov.wales/digital-strategy-wales-delivery-plan-html


 

 
 

c) Building on our natural landscape and heritage to promote new tourism opportunities 
in the County Borough and support sustainable growth in the sector. 

d) Supporting the development of the circular economy across the County Borough, so 
that residents are able to share, reuse, repair and recycle existing materials and 
products for as long as possible. 

e) Working with Higher and Further Education, business and the third sector to share 
knowledge and support business innovation and sustainability.  

 
3 Thriving town centres 

a) Delivering regeneration projects to enable vibrant town centres and good quality 
public spaces where businesses thrive and people want to visit. 

b) Taking opportunities to develop high quality public spaces and enhance existing town 
centre areas as part of our town centre strategies, which includes tree planting and 
other sustainable green spaces that support improved health, well-being and 
increased biodiversity. 

c) Widening our Town Centre ‘offer’, including local events and celebrating culture and 
heritage. 

d) Putting in place amenities that our residents can use to enhance their visits to Town 
Centres.  

 
4 A well-connected County Borough 

a) Supporting the development of low carbon travel and public transport, including 
publicly accessible infrastructure such as Electric Vehicle charging. 

b) Seeking and maximising available funding to support local/community transport 
routes where conditions allow. 

c) Encouraging and enabling active travel so more journeys are made by walking, cycling 
and public transport, supporting healthy lifestyles and improving air quality. 

d) Maintaining and improving our highways infrastructure so that it is fit for the future, 
keeping people and communities connected, able to socialise and learn and 
businesses moving. 

e) Improving e digital connectivity across the County Borough, embracing changing work 
patterns and lifestyles. 

 
Some of the outcomes we expect to see by 2030 

• Town centres with thriving businesses that help support the economy. 
• Public transport infrastructure and systems are more joined up and encourage people 

to walk, cycle and use public transport to get about.  
• More accessible publicly available EV charging points at Council locations that support 

low carbon travel. 
• More businesses supported to develop, modernise and grow. 
• More people in RCT will have the skills they need to find and progress in work. 
• More people will visit RCT from outside the County Borough and enjoy the cultural, 

nature, activity and adventure tourism RCT has to offer. 
 
 

Tudalen 54



 

 
 

Working in partnership with the Councils in the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal and its Joint 
Committee and businesses to promote economic well-being across the Capital Region, and 
working more locally with businesses through the Business Improvement Districts to 
encourage Town Centre businesses to be more sustainable and promote the use of the 
circular economy.  
  

Tudalen 55

https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/


 

 
 

NATURE AND THE ENVIRONMENT 
 

Now. 
64.97% of waste recycled in 2022/23. 
 
16 Air Quality Monitoring Areas (AQMAs)  
 
Air pollutant concentrations are currently higher in areas of 
socioeconomic disadvantage8 
 
38.5% of people live in a flood risk areas. 
 
There are 131 allotments and community growing spaces in 
RCT. 
 
Carbon emissions 3.8 tCO2e per resident,  
 
Sites of Special Scientific Interest  
• 14 Sites  
• 2 Special Areas of Conservation 
• 8 Other Areas shared with other LAs. 

During the five ‘heat-periods’ between June and August 
2022, 3,535 deaths were registered in Wales.  258 excess 
deaths (7.3%) above the five-year average. 
 
Children and young people, older adults and those with 
respiratory conditions are more susceptible to poor air 
quality9  
 

Looking Ahead  
Wales projections:   
• average summer 

temperatures increasing by 
1.34⁰C by 2050 and 3.03⁰C 
by 2080.  

• precipitation levels 
projected to increase 
overall by 5% by 2050 and 
9% 2080. 

• Rainfall will increase 
overall, but with less 
rainfall in the summer and 
more in the winter.  
Summer rainfall will 
decrease by 16% by 2050 
and 23% by 2080. 

 
The Rhondda Valleys have the 
highest level of social flood risk 
in Wales. 
 
Climate change may have a 
serious impact on our ability to 
grow enough food. 
 

 
Some of our National Drivers - This information will be available through hyperlink in final 
version  
 
• Biodiversity Duty obligations under s.6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  
• Environment (Wales) Act 2016: waste 
• The National Strategy for Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management in Wales 
• Beyond Recycling A strategy to make the circular economy in Wales a reality. 
• The Clean Air Plan for Wales Healthy Air, Healthy Wales 
• Prosperity For All: A Low Carbon Wales 
• Net Zero Wales Carbon Budget 2 (2021-25) 
• The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Act 2024 new, enacted 14 Feb 

2024  
 

9 PHW – Climate Change in Wales: Health Impact Assessment 
9 ONS – Excess mortality during heat-periods 

 

Tudalen 56

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2016/3/section/6#:~:text=(1)A%20public%20authority%20must,proper%20exercise%20of%20those%20functions.
https://www.gov.wales/environment-wales-act-2016-waste
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-03/the-national-strategy-for-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-in-wales.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-03/beyond-recycling-strategy-document.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-08/clean-air-plan-for-wales-healthy-air-healthy-wales.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-06/low-carbon-delivery-plan_1.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-10/net-zero-wales-carbon-budget-2-2021-25.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://phw.nhs.wales/news/health-impact-assessment-highlights-urgent-need-to-protect-health-and-wellbeing-as-the-climate-changes/climate-change-in-wales-health-impact-assessment/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/articles/excessmortalityduringheatperiods/englandandwales1juneto31august2022#excess-mortality-during-heat-periods-2016-to-2022


 

 
 

Our residents confirmed that ‘What Matters to them is ……’ improvements in the cleanliness 
of streets across the County Borough, including taking stronger steps to tackle environmental 
crimes like littering, irresponsible dog owners and fly tipping.  They wanted to see public bins 
emptied more regularly to encourage good citizenship.  Respondents also wanted to see 
improved green spaces, clean rivers, increased biodiversity, low carbon transport and fewer 
trees cut down 

 

NATURE and the ENVIRONMENT 

For Nature and the Environment our priorities are: 

1. Protecting and enhancing the natural environment 
2. Clean, Safe and Sustainable RCT 
3. Using Natures Assets to benefit people and communities. 

 
1 Protecting and enhancing the natural environment. 

a) Protecting and enhancing biodiversity: working with nature to tackle both the Climate 
and Nature emergencies,  

b) Protecting existing trees, supporting woodland expansion though natural 
regeneration and urban tree planting  

c) Rewetting and restoring peat bogs: reducing carbon emissions and increasing 
biodiversity and carbon sequestration. 

d) Improving air quality including through implementing local and national Welsh 
Government traffic management requirements, encouraging shift to low carbon travel 
options and implementing the requirements of the Environment (Air Quality and 
Soundscapes) (Wales) Act 2024.  

e) Managing public sector land to generate and support sustainable projects including 
green energy/carbon storage projects, managing flood risk and increasing food 
biodiversity and community growing. 

2 Clean, Safe and Sustainable RCT 
a) Keeping the County Borough clean and healthy and our streets free from litter, dog 

fouling and continuing to strengthen our response to environmental crime. 
b) Working with partners to maximise opportunities to make repairs, recycle and reduce 

and reuse waste.  
c) Providing creative opportunities for people to contribute to clean and sustainable 

communities. 
d) Signposting to more and better information on how residents can use less and waste 

less. 
e) Making sure that the methods of disposal for materials recovered from our waste are 

environmentally and ethically sustainable. 
f) Continuing to work with Welsh Government and partners to manage coal tip safety. 
g) Managing the impact of severe weather on our local environments.  

 
 

Tudalen 57

https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984


 

 
 

3 Using Natures Assets to benefit people and communities 
a) Maximising our use of sustainable solutions and green infrastructure to support 

flood mitigation, reduce pollution and manage surface water.  
b) Continuing to invest in solar energy across our schools and Council buildings and 

also developing energy generation through solar, wind, hydro-electric and 
geothermal/mine water, to heat and cool homes and businesses. 

c) Working with partners and the Cardiff Capital Region to create and deliver a Local 
Area Energy Plan to inform decision making on the supply and use of different 
energy sources. 

d) Providing opportunities for residents and communities to ‘grow your own’ through 
allotments and community gardens. 

e) Providing a range of quality green spaces for people and communities to enjoy. 

 
Some of the outcomes we expect to see by 2030.  

• Improved air quality across the County Borough. 
• People and communities able to keep active and well in our green spaces. 
• Wildlife will thrive on positively managed council land. 
• Communities supported to do more to reduce, reuse and recycle and live sustainably. 
• People enjoying clean streets, free from environmental crime. 
• Increased green energy produced from ‘renewables’.  

Working as part of  
Cwm Taf Morgannwg Public Services Board to put in place a Cwm Taf Morgannwg Climate 
Risk Assessment so that we can better assess local risks likely to arise as a result of a changing 
climate. 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Nature Partnership to plan and deliver action for nature across the 
County Borough. 
  

Tudalen 58

https://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/our-public-service-board
https://www.biodiversitywales.org.uk/Rhondda-Cynnon-Taf


 

 
 

CULTURE, HERITAGE AND WELSH LANGUAGE 

Now  
 
43,179 people can either speak, read, write or 
understand Welsh, while 187,137 have no Welsh 
language skills. 

The majority of people in RCT (133,483) did not 
identify as having any religion. 86,474 consider 
themselves Christian, with 2,866 belonging to 
other religions including Buddhist, Hindu, Muslim 
and Sikh. 
 
58% of RCT residents attend or participate in arts, 
culture or heritage activities at least 3 times a 
year10 
 
81 Council funded memorial plaques: located 
across the County Borough (at Mar-24)  
 
Approximately 35,000 objects forming Rhondda 
Cynon Taf ‘collections’ i.e.:  

- 12,500+ in the Rhondda Heritage Park Museum 
collection. 
- 21,500+ in the Cynon Valley Museum collection 
and  
- A small collection of fewer than 100 objects in 
the National Lido Wales/Lido Ponty. 

 
3.9% of RCT Residents are Armed Forces 
Veterans11 -7,506 people (2021 data)  
1,595 Referrals were received by the Veterans 
Advice Service (to Sept-23)  
 
Community Benefits  
- 284 Social Value outcomes from 46 active 

Council contracts (at Dec-23) 
Library usage  
- 724,066 Physical and virtual visits to Council 

libraries during 2022/23 
Arts Events as at Dec 2023  
- 37,550 individuals attended Arts events (RCT 

Theatres and Garth Olwg Lifelong Learning 
Centre  

Looking Ahead  
 
The rate of Growth of Welsh 
speakers is highest in South and 
South East Wales local authorities 
 
Ageing population may result in 
new roles for heritage, particularly 
around healthcare, memory and 
inclusion, and more opportunities 
for volunteering. 
 
Globally, increasing loneliness and 
disconnection are reducing civic 
engagement, weaking social 
cohesion and making people more 
vulnerable to polarisation 
 

 
10 National Survey for Wales – Arts, Museums, Libraries and Historic Places (2022-23) 
11 Nomis Data – TS071 – Previously served in UK and Armed Forces (2021) 

Tudalen 59

https://www.gov.wales/national-survey-wales-results-viewer
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/datasets/c2021ts071


 

 
 

- 6,868 individuals participated in arts activities  
- 22 RCT based artists and artistic organisations 

were supported  
 

Some of our National Drivers - This information will be available through hyperlink in final 
version  
 
• Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 
• Cymraeg 2050 – A Million Welsh Speakers 
• The Historic Environment Wales Act 2016 
• Welsh Parliament LG and Housing Cttee Local Authority Leisure and Library Services 

Report 2023 
• Connected and Ambitious Libraries 2017-2020 – update imminent.  
• Theatre Green Book -arrangements for theatres to work more sustainably. 

 

Our residents confirmed that ‘What Matters to them is…….’ a recognition that culture and 
heritage cuts across everything we do, supports all aspects of well-being and brings people 
and communities together.  It matters that we remember and protect the traditions of the 
past but also create exciting new opportunities for people to enjoy today and in the future.  
Feedback suggested that Welsh Language could be included to the original Well-being 
Objective of Culture and Heritage. 

 

CULTURE, HERITAGE AND WELSH LANGUAGE  

In Culture, Heritage and Welsh Language our priorities are: 

1. An RCT where culture and heritage is vibrant and difference is celebrated in strong 
communities that enhance well-being. 

2. Celebrating and preserving the historical, cultural, industrial and sporting heritage of 
Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

We recognise and celebrate RCT’s past, enjoy the present and embrace a future where: 

1. Culture and heritage is vibrant and difference is celebrated in strong communities 
that enhance well-being, by  

a) Building on the legacy of the Eisteddfod to benefit our communities and businesses.  
b) Continuing to grow the use of the Welsh language so that it thrives in our homes, 

communities and work.  
c) Recognising and improving our awareness of diversity in our communities so that we 

strengthen community cohesion and better meet needs of our residents of all 
backgrounds. 

d) Engaging with communities to jointly develop activity within our theatres, museums 
and other creative spaces through an accessible and inclusive approach that embraces 
all cultures. 

Tudalen 60

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/1/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2016/4/contents
https://senedd.wales/media/3fdmwwiv/cr-ld15967-e.pdf
https://senedd.wales/media/3fdmwwiv/cr-ld15967-e.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-07/connected-and-ambitious-libraries-the-sixth-quality-framework-of-welsh-public-library-standards-2017-to-2020.pdf
https://theatregreenbook.com/


 

 
 

e) Developing stronger cross sector partnerships that value the positive impacts of 
culture and heritage including on health and well-being, skills, work and community 
life.  

f) Developing Intergenerational Projects to promote learning and shared skills, 
encouraging intergenerational friendships and helping to reduce loneliness. 

g) Working with a range of public, private and third sector partners to consider the 
cultural offer across our Town Centres, developing and promoting a range of inclusive 
Arts and Cultural Events that will serve local and wider communities across South East 
Wales. 

h) Strengthening RCT’s Community Armed Forces Covenant. 

2  Celebrating and preserving the historical, cultural, industrial and sporting heritage 
of Rhondda Cynon Taf by 

a) Protecting and promote the history of RCT for future generations through education, 
conservation and commemoration by: 

o Identifying, recording and sharing the history of RCT  
o Recognising, preserving, protecting and embracing RCTs industrial heritage 

including through digitisation, management of artifacts and protecting 
monuments.  

b) Connecting communities through heritage and local history. 
c) Shining a light on past and present inspirational people from Rhondda Cynon Taf to 

encourage aspiration and ambition in our children and young people. 
 
Some of the outcomes we expect to see by 2030 

• More people are confident to use Welsh in their everyday lives and more learners 
access Welsh medium education. 

• People feel that they ‘belong’ in their communities, get along well and treat each other 
with respect. 

• More opportunities for residents of all ages and backgrounds to ‘connect’ through 
arts, libraries and community activities and events. 

• Opportunities for residents to promote and express their culture, heritage and share 
commitment to sustainable lives through a thriving arts community. 

• More people identify with the history that shaped the Rhondda Cynon Taf of today 
and have a connection with the past. 

• An Armed Forces community is supported by the wider community.  
 
Working in Partnership with  
Arts Council for Wales to connect with communities, make arts available to people of all ages 
and backgrounds to enjoy and take part. 
Cardiff Capital City Region, Creative Cardiff and University of South Wales to increase 
creative sector skills within RCT.  
Awen Cultural Trust to deliver the redevelopment of ‘Y Muni’, Muni Arts Centre in Pontypridd 
and support local and national creative industries.  
 

  

Tudalen 61

https://arts.wales/
https://creativecardiff.org.uk/
https://www.southwales.ac.uk/study/subjects/creative-industries/
https://www.awen-wales.com/


 

 
 

A well-run Council… 
 
Our four Well-being objectives and our priorities can only be delivered by a well-run Council.  
By this we mean a Council that has a positive organisational culture, that values its staff, 
manages its resources sustainably and wisely and looks to continually improve what we do to 
have the biggest impact for residents.  
 
Our commitments to you  

• We will deliver our improvement priorities and strive to meet all our targets and you 
will be able to hold us to account through good governance and local democracy.   

• We will lead by example, show strong community leadership and be open about the 
challenges we face and the tough decisions we have to make.  

• We will put residents and customers at the centre of all that we do and the decisions 
we make through more meaningful involvement and engagement.  

• We will work with partners in all sectors so that we join up our services, make life 
easier for our residents and communities and deliver better outcomes for them. 

• We will work together with residents and communities on solutions that better meet 
their needs and share responsibility deliver better outcomes together.   

• We will manage our workforce, budgets, land, buildings, fleet and information to 
maximise our efficiency and make the biggest difference to our communities, nature 
and the environment.  

• We will reduce the Council’s Carbon Footprint and be a Carbon Neutral Council by 
2030. 

• We will be honest with our residents and regulators about where we are doing well 
and where we need to do better.  

• We will put in place plans to care and support communities in emergency situations 
when they happen. 

• We will take action against those who do not act in ways that support our residents to 
enjoy a healthy, green, safe, vibrant, and inclusive County Borough.  

• We will treat all people with respect regardless of their background.  
• We will treat Welsh and English languages equally and deliver services to users in their 

language of choice.   
• We will work with local communities and community groups to make our services as 

accessible as possible.  
 
Our commitment to staff  
We will provide equality of opportunity for all, so that staff feel valued and can reach their 
full potential.  The Council’s commitment to its staff and our communities is set out in full in 
our Strategic Equality Plan and Workforce Plan.  
 
Our commitment to partners  
We will be committed and active partners in our work with others, seeking and challenging 
where we can add more and better outcomes for our residents, communities and businesses 
by working together.  You can see more about our work with others.   

Tudalen 62

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Partnerships/Workingwithothers.aspx


 

 
 

Appendix ??  

How we will deliver and monitor progress of our Corporate Plan  

The Corporate Plan gives life to our Vision and Purpose, by setting out our four Well-being 
Objectives with more detailed priorities about how will deliver them, setting a clear direction 
for the Council’s work up to 2030.  The plan sets a direction and focus on the high-level 
ambitions and priorities for the Council which all staff and managers can see, understand and 
work towards.  Our progress in delivering our high-level Well-being Objectives will be set out 
in our Annual Plans.  Our progress in delivering these annual plans will be through our actions 
and a range of different measures, depending on the complexity of the item.  For example, 
through clear longer term numerical targets/outcomes to be achieved or through a ‘direction 
of travel’ for which progress can be monitored and evidenced by robust data items.  All our 
measures will be subject annual ‘in-year’ review to establish relevant short-term targets 
subject to progress.  
 
Delivery of the priorities will be led by a senior officer.  However, they involve and depend on 
all our services working together and not in traditional ‘silos’ to deliver creative and 
sustainable solutions.  Some of the work we do is grant funded and so is required to meet 
grant conditions outside our control or influence.  

The detailed plans to deliver our Well-being Objectives will be monitored and scrutinised by 
Councillors Cabinet, Scrutiny and Governance and Audit Committees as part of the 
Performance and Resources Reports.  Those aspects of our work which are dependent upon 
grant funding will also subject to rigorous monitoring by the funding body e.g. Welsh 
Government.  
 
The Council’s priorities are cascaded into services’ Delivery plans; they shape and inform 
Council policy, strategy and spend, help manage risks as well as inform discussions about 
development opportunities for staff.  These performance arrangements are set out in the 
Council’s Performance Management Framework.  

Our Performance Management Framework will not, in itself, manage or improve 
performance.  However, the steps it sets out help to create, develop and maintain a strong 
performance culture and puts the residents of Rhondda Cynon Taf at the heart of our 
business.  It also allows us to answer three simple questions: 

• How are services performing?  
• How do we know? 
• What are we going to do to improve them? 

 
This strong Performance culture is supported by: 

1. Reinforcing accountability through Challenge and Support by Cabinet and the Senior 
Leadership Team. 

2. Strong and effective Scrutiny. 
3. Being honest and self-aware. 
4. Focusing on delivery and improvement. 
5. Managing, as well as measuring performance. 
6. Setting aspirational targets. 

Tudalen 63

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=132&Year=0&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=401&Year=0&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=149&Year=0&LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/Councilperformancemonitoringreports/Reportingcouncilperformance.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/Performancebudgetsandspending/Councilperformance/Councilperformancemonitoringreports/Reportingcouncilperformance.aspx


 

 
 

7. Making best and sustainable use of resources. 
8. Empowering and supporting staff to do the right thing.  
9. Involving our residents in decision that affect them. 

  

Tudalen 64



 

 
 

Appendix ?? 

Outcomes, Measures and Targets – awaiting confirmation of further targets  

Information/data will inform the new Corporate Reporting Dashboard from 2024 

People and 
Communities  

• Increased % attendance in primary/secondary schools and 
PRU/EOTAS provision. 

• Reduced no. of fixed term and permanent exclusions in 
primary/secondary phase. 

• More school leavers are in Education, Training or 
Employment. 

• Improved Educational outcomes for Care experienced 
children and young people. 

• Increase in the number of affordable homes. 
• Decrease in the number of empty properties. 

Work and Business • More people helped into work  
• Fewer vacant premises in our town centres 
• More people visiting our town centres (increased footfall) 
• Increased kms of active travel routes within the County 

Borough 
• Increased availability of publicly accessible EV charging 

points 
Nature and the 
Environment 

30% of RCT to be in positive management for wildlife (this is UN 
2022 Framework for Biodiversity 30 by 30 target that WG is 
promoting) Biodiversity deep dive: 
recommendations|GOV.WALES 
• Increase the amount of waste recycled and decrease the 

amount sent to landfill 
• Increased local renewable energy generated from Council 

land or buildings 
Culture, Heritage and 
Welsh Language   

Contributing to Welsh Government’s national target of 1 million 
Welsh speakers by 2050, as set out in Cymraeg 2050. 
Increasing the number of Welsh speakers in RCT from 12.4% 
(2021 census)  

Effective and Efficient 
Council  

By 2030 we will  
• be a Carbon Neutral Council  
• contribute to the Welsh Government’s ambition for a Net 

Zero Public Sector. 
  

Tudalen 65

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2022/10/1/1664785835/biodiversity-deep-dive-recommendations.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2022/10/1/1664785835/biodiversity-deep-dive-recommendations.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy
https://www.gov.wales/net-zero-carbon-status-2030-public-sector-route-map
https://www.gov.wales/net-zero-carbon-status-2030-public-sector-route-map


 

 
 

Appendix ?? 

There will be a hyperlink to this section in final version of the Plan 

Aligning Strategic Support and Regional Strategies In progress list of Corporate and Service 
specific policies/strategies assigned to four Well-being Objectives 

Well-being Objective Council strategies 
PEOPLE and 
COMMUNITIES- 
Supporting and 
empowering RCT 
residents and 
communities to live 
safe, healthy, and 
fulfilling lives, 
 

Corporate Safeguarding Policy 2024  
Digital Strategy for schools 2020-25 
Education Strategic Plan 2022-25 
RCT Children’s Services Workforce Strategy 2021-24 
RCT Empty Homes Strategy 2022-25 
RCT Housing Support Programme Strategy 2022-26 
RCT Local Housing Market Assessment 2022 - 2037 
RCT Looked After Children Prevention Strategy 2022-25 
RCT Looked After Children: Residential Transformation Strategy 2022-27 
RCT Private Rented Sector Strategy 2023 - 2026 
RCT Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 2022-27 
Warmer Homes: A Fuel Poverty Strategy 2019 - 2023 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2022-32 
Welsh Language Promotion Strategy 2022-2027 
RCT Housing Strategy 2024-29 – in progress 
Community Safety Strategy pending 

WORK AND BUSINESS - 
Helping to strengthen 
and grow RCT’s 
Economy.  
 

Active Travel Report 2021-22 
Commissioning, Socially Responsible Procurement & Contract Management 
Strategy 2021-24 
Local Development Plan 2006-2021 and the  
Revised Local Development Plan 2022-2037 Preferred Strategy 
Consultation webpage on RLDP 2022-2037 Preferred Strategy 
Regeneration Strategies: 

• Aberdare Town Centre Strategy 2023-24 (Draft) 
• Porth Town Centre Strategy 2018-19 
• Pontypridd Town Centre Placemaking Plan 2022 (Draft) 
• Town Centre Strategies 2023 

NATURE AND THE 
ENVIRONMENT - A 
green and clean RCT 
that improves and 
protects RCT’s 
environment and 
nature. 
 

Air Quality Progress Report 2023 
Biodiversity Duty Report 2019-22  
Climate Change Engagement Plan 2023-25 
Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 2021-30 
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy and Action Plan 2024 (Draft) 
Tree & Woodland Strategy 2022-32 
Waste Management Strategy 2023 

 
CULTURE, HERITAGE 
and WELSH LANGUAGE 
Recognising and 
celebrating RCT’s past, 
present and future. 

Library Service Strategy 2022-25 
Tourism Strategy 2021 
Welsh Language Promotion Strategy 2022-27 and action plan 
Heritage Strategy in development   
 

Tudalen 66

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s45488/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/RelatedDocuments/Strategicplans/DIGITALSTRATEGYFORSCHOOLS.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/RelatedDocuments/Strategicplans/EducationStrategicPlan.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s38321/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/Housing/RelatedDocuments/RCTEmptyHomesStrategy20222025.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s36033/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/Housing/RelatedDocuments/LocalHousingMarketAssessmentRCT20.07.2022.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/Housing/RelatedDocuments/LocalHousingMarketAssessmentRCT20.07.2022.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s33752/Appendix%20I%20-%20LAC%20Prevention%20Strategy.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39824/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s43430/Appendix%20A.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s37396/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s17501/APPENDIX%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/SchoolAdmissions/WelshMediumEducation/WelshinEducationStrategicPlanWESP2022%E2%80%932032.aspx
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40805/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Travel/Relateddocuments/Activetravelmapdetails/Maps/ActiveTravelAct20212022ReportEnglish.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Business/TendersandProcurement/RelatedDocuments/ProcurementStrategy20212024.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Business/TendersandProcurement/RelatedDocuments/ProcurementStrategy20212024.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/PlanningandBuildingControl/RevisedLocalDevelopmentPlan20202030/RevisedLocalDevelopmentPlanLDP2020%E2%80%932030.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/PlanningandBuildingControl/RelatedDocuments/Pdfs/RevisedLDP20222037PreferredStrategy.pdf
https://rctcbc.oc2.uk/
https://ehq-production-europe.s3.eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/49e73cadfd7ac5b4879af8aaf753830a35561e92/original/1690967597/82febb11f1fd391a269d10e66b038c4c_2._Draft_Strategy.pdf?X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Credential=AKIA4KKNQAKICO37GBEP%2F20231123%2Feu-west-1%2Fs3%2Faws4_request&X-Amz-Date=20231123T105637Z&X-Amz-Expires=300&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host&X-Amz-Signature=d9659cee437733f568877d4b533da0d4a68b8cb408bb2dace6053d0e952d0525
https://ehq-production-europe.s3.eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/49e73cadfd7ac5b4879af8aaf753830a35561e92/original/1690967597/82febb11f1fd391a269d10e66b038c4c_2._Draft_Strategy.pdf?X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Credential=AKIA4KKNQAKICO37GBEP%2F20231123%2Feu-west-1%2Fs3%2Faws4_request&X-Amz-Date=20231123T105637Z&X-Amz-Expires=300&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host&X-Amz-Signature=d9659cee437733f568877d4b533da0d4a68b8cb408bb2dace6053d0e952d0525
https://ehq-production-europe.s3.eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/49e73cadfd7ac5b4879af8aaf753830a35561e92/original/1690967597/82febb11f1fd391a269d10e66b038c4c_2._Draft_Strategy.pdf?X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Credential=AKIA4KKNQAKICO37GBEP%2F20231123%2Feu-west-1%2Fs3%2Faws4_request&X-Amz-Date=20231123T105637Z&X-Amz-Expires=300&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host&X-Amz-Signature=d9659cee437733f568877d4b533da0d4a68b8cb408bb2dace6053d0e952d0525
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Consultations/RelatedDocuments/FINALWEBPorthTownCentreStrategy2018ENGLISH.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Consultations/RelatedDocuments/FINALWEBPorthTownCentreStrategy2018ENGLISH.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Consultations/RelatedDocuments/FINALWEBPorthTownCentreStrategy2018ENGLISH.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34020/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s44102/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Business/LicencesandPermits/Pollutionrelatedlicences/RelatedDocuments/RCTCBC2023ProgressReport.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s38634/Appendix%20A.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40370/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40370/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/ElectricVehicles/ElectricVehicleChargingStrategy.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s41803/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/PlanningandBuildingControl/Trees/Relateddocs/TreeStrategyadoptedatCabinetSubCommitteeDec2022.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39301/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34561/Appendix%202%20-%20Library%20Service%20Strategy%202022-24_.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Tourism/RhonddaHeritagePark/RelatedDocuments/HomeLearning/01.TourismStrategy2021September.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/Relateddocs/ActionPlanforWelshLanguagePromotionalStrategy.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/Relateddocs/WelshLanguagePromotionActionPlan20222027.pdf


 

 
 

Well-being Objective Council strategies 
Well run Council Annual Risk Based Internal Audit Plan 2023-24 

Climate Change Strategy 2022-25 – ‘Think Climate RCT’ – will be subsumed by 
new Corporate Plan  
Council’s Decarbonisation Strategy 2023-25 
Commissioning, Socially Responsible Procurement & Contract Management 
Strategy 2021-24 
Corporate Asset Management Plan 2018-23 
Digital Strategy 2022-26 
Human Resources Strategy 2023-28 
Workforce Plan 2023-28 
Involvement and Engagement Framework 2020-24 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2023/24 – 2026/27 
Public Participation Strategy 2023 
Risk Management Strategy 2023 
Strategic Equality Plan 2019-2022 – MW 
Council’s Operating Model and Working Arrangements Policy 
Others? 

 Regional Plans  
• Cwm Taf Morgannwg Well-being Plan 2023-2028 
• Cwm Taf Morgannwg Area Plan 2023-28 
• Others  
 

 CCRCD 
Cardiff Capital Region – The City Deal 
• South Wales Metro - Transport for Wales  

 
 

  

Tudalen 67

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s41674/Appendix%20A.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Campaigns/ClimateChangeRCT/externallinks/ClimateChangeStrategyThinkClimateRCT.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40208/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Business/TendersandProcurement/Relateddocuments/ProcurememtStrategy/ENProcurementStrategy20212024.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Business/TendersandProcurement/Relateddocuments/ProcurememtStrategy/ENProcurementStrategy20212024.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Business/PlanningPropertyandBuildingControl/RelatedDocuments/CorporateAssetmanagementPlan20182023.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34554/Appendix%20A%20-%20Digital%20Strategy%202022-2026_.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39268/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s39268/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19237/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0#:~:text=The%20Council%20recognises%20the%20importance,all%20stages%20of%20any%20project.
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s42695/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s43514/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s44638/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s44638/Appendix%201.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/EqualityDiversityandInclusion/relateddocuments/StrategicEqualityPlan2019.pdf
https://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=286&mid=613&fileid=1242
https://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=286&mid=613&fileid=1242
https://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=286&mid=613&fileid=1242
https://ctmregionalpartnershipboard.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/10/CTM-Regional-Partnership-Board-Area-Plan-2023-2028_FINAL.pdf
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/the-city-deal/
https://tfw.wales/projects/metro/south-wales-metro?_gl=1*1wdxfn2*_ga*MTA4MjU3MzcwNC4xNjk5Mjg3NDkw*_ga_E6B8G8EZ88*MTY5OTI4NzQ4OS4xLjAuMTY5OTI4NzQ4OS42MC4wLjA.&_ga=2.260586509.1496033114.1699287490-1082573704.1699287490


 

 
 

There will be a hyperlink to this section in final version of the Plan Appendix ?? 
Examples of how the draft Corporate Plan priorities could contribute to the seven national Well-being Goals. 
 
A PROSPEROUS WALES - An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of the global environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and 
proportionately (including acting on climate change); and which develops a skilled and well-educated population in an economy which generates wealth and provides 
employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the wealth generated through securing decent work. 

PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES 
Supporting and empowering RCT 
residents and communities to live safe, 
healthy, and fulfilling lives 

WORK and BUSINESS 
Helping to strengthen and grow RCT’s 
Economy 

NATURE and the ENVIRONMENT 
A green and clean RCT that improves and 
protects RCT’s environment and nature 

CULTURE, HERITAGE and WELSH 
LANGUAGE 
Recognising and celebrating RCT’s 
past, present and future 

• Providing great learning 
environments through our new and 
improved early years settings and 
schools including a new Special 
school and making Welsh medium 
education accessible to all. 

• Working with partners to enable 
the supply of affordable and 
sustainable homes across our 
communities, including supporting 
those people who are homeless 
and bringing empty properties back 
into use. 

 

• Supporting people of all ages to gain 
the skills they need for jobs in our local 
communities and working with local 
businesses and training providers to 
identify appropriate opportunities for 
them. 

• Working as part of Cardiff Capital 
Region to identify and support jobs 
and skills development in regionally 
defined priority areas e.g. new and 
emerging technologies 

• Delivering regeneration projects to 
enable vibrant town centres and good 
quality public spaces where 
businesses thrive and people want to 
visit. 

 

• Working with partners and the 
Cardiff Capital Region to create 
and deliver a Local Area Energy 
Plan to inform decision making on 
the supply and use of different 
energy sources. 

 
 

 

 

• Building on the legacy of the 
Eisteddfod to benefit our 
communities and businesses.  

• Shining a light on past and 
present inspirational people 
from Rhondda Cynon Taf to 
encourage aspiration and 
ambition in our children and 
young people. 
 

 

 

  

T
udalen 68

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/RCTInvestProgramme/Schools/SchoolsInvestmentProgramme21stCenturySchools/SchoolsInvestmentProject21stCenturySchools.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/RCTInvestProgramme/Schools/SchoolsInvestmentProgramme21stCenturySchools/SchoolsInvestmentProject21stCenturySchools.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/Housing/Housingstrategiesplansandpolicies/AffordableHousing.aspx
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/news-events/latest-news/the-local-area-energy-plans-creating-a-new-energy-system/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/news-events/latest-news/the-local-area-energy-plans-creating-a-new-energy-system/
https://eisteddfod.wales/


 

 
 

A RESILIENT WALES - A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment with healthy functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological 
resilience and the capacity to adapt to change (for example climate change). 

PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES 
Supporting and empowering RCT residents 
and communities to live safe, healthy, and 
fulfilling lives 

WORK and BUSINESS 
Helping to strengthen and grow RCT’s 
Economy 

NATURE and the ENVIRONMENT 
A green and clean RCT that improves and 
protects RCT’s environment and nature 

CULTURE, HERITAGE and WELSH 
LANGUAGE 
Recognising and celebrating RCT’s 
past, present and future 

• Developing connections so that 
communities and the third and 
business sectors can work together to 
source sustainable and healthy food 
and develop horticulture and other 
technical skills that support the 
growth of sustainable food. 

 

• Working with Higher and Further 
Education, business and the third 
sector to share knowledge and 
support business innovation and 
sustainability. 

• Supporting the development of low 
carbon travel and public transport, 
including publicly accessible 
infrastructure such as Electric Vehicle 
charging. 

 
 

• Protecting existing trees, supporting 
woodland expansion though natural 
regeneration and urban tree 
planting  

• Rewetting and restoring peat bogs: 
reducing carbon emissions and 
increasing biodiversity and carbon 
sequestration. 

• Managing public sector land to 
generate and support sustainable 
projects including green 
energy/carbon storage projects, 
managing flood risk and increasing 
food biodiversity and community 
growing. 

• Continuing to work with Welsh 
Government and partners to 
manage coal tip safety. 
 

• Developing Intergenerational 
Projects to promote learning 
and shared skills 

 

  

T
udalen 69

https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/plant-trees/natural-regeneration/
https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/plant-trees/natural-regeneration/
https://www.gov.wales/coal-tip-safety


 

 
 

A HEALTHIER WALES - A society in which people's physical and mental well-being is maximised and in which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood 

PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES 
Supporting and empowering RCT residents 
and communities to live safe, healthy, and 
fulfilling lives 

WORK and BUSINESS 
Helping to strengthen and grow RCT’s 
Economy 

NATURE and the ENVIRONMENT 
A green and clean RCT that improves and 
protects RCT’s environment and nature 

CULTURE, HERITAGE and WELSH 
LANGUAGE 
Recognising and celebrating RCT’s past, 
present and future 

• Helping our residents to keep healthy, 
active and well; fulfilling their 
potential and strengthening local 
communities through opportunities 
to participate in learning, leisure, 
physical and creative activities that 
are accessible to all. 

• Enabling people to live independently 
in their community and close to home 
by providing the right support and 
care at the right time.  

• Providing modern accommodation 
that meets the needs of people who 
can no longer live at home. 

• Protecting children, young people 
and adults at risk from harm, neglect 
and exploitation. 

• Supporting people affected 
by/experiencing domestic violence 
and addiction. 

 

• Taking opportunities to develop 
high quality public spaces and 
enhance existing town centre 
areas as part of our town centre 
strategies, which includes tree 
planting and other sustainable 
green spaces that support 
improved health, well-being and 
increased biodiversity 

• Putting in place amenities that 
our residents can use to 
enhance their visits to Town 
Centres.  

• Encouraging and enabling active 
travel so more journeys are 
made by walking, cycling and 
public transport, supporting 
healthy lifestyles and improving 
air quality. 

 

• Improving air quality including 
through implementing local and 
national Welsh Government traffic 
management requirements, 
encouraging shift to low carbon travel 
options and implementing the 
requirements of the Environment (Air 
Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) Act 
2024.  

• Providing a range of quality green 
spaces for people and communities to 
enjoy. 

 

• Developing stronger cross sector 
partnerships that value the 
positive impacts of culture and 
heritage including on health and 
well-being, skills, work and 
community life.  

 

 

  

T
udalen 70

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/Housing/Housingstrategiesplansandpolicies/APlanforHousinginLaterLife.aspx
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984
https://business.senedd.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40984


 

 
 

A MORE EQUAL WALES - A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their background or circumstances (including their socio-economic background and 
circumstances). 
PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES 
Supporting and empowering RCT residents and 
communities to live safe, healthy, and fulfilling lives 

WORK and BUSINESS 
Helping to strengthen and grow RCT’s 
Economy 

NATURE and the ENVIRONMENT 
A green and clean RCT that improves 
and protects RCT’s environment and 
nature 

CULTURE, HERITAGE and WELSH 
LANGUAGE 
Recognising and celebrating RCT’s 
past, present and future 

• Helping children of all abilities and 
backgrounds to do the very best they can in 
school by ensuring that we have a 
relentless focus on securing continuous 
school improvement and high standards in 
our schools.  

• Supporting children and young people of all 
abilities and backgrounds to overcome 
barriers to learning, including those 
experiencing poverty, so that they can 
achieve the best educational outcomes 
that they are capable of. 

• Implementing the five year Health 
Determinate Research Collaboration in 
order to tackle health inequalities in RCT 
and address wider health determinants 
that directly affect the life chances of our 
residents. 

• Giving vulnerable children and young 
people the best possible opportunities in 
life and ensuring access to safe and 
supportive environments suitable to their 
needs, to improve their well-being.  

 

• Supporting people experiencing ‘in 
work’ poverty to find more 
rewarding and secure work.  
 

• Managing the impact of severe 
weather on our local 
environments.  

• Providing opportunities for 
residents and communities to 
‘grow your own’ through 
allotments and community 
gardens. 

 

• Recognising and improving 
our awareness of diversity in 
our communities so that we 
strengthen community 
cohesion and better meet 
needs of our residents of all 
backgrounds. 

• Strengthening RCT’s 
Community Armed Forces 
Covenant. 

 

 

T
udalen 71

https://www.fundingawards.nihr.ac.uk/award/NIHR159018
https://www.fundingawards.nihr.ac.uk/award/NIHR159018
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/ArmedForcesCovenant/ArmedForcesCovenant.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/ArmedForcesCovenant/ArmedForcesCovenant.aspx


 

 
 

A WALES OF COHESIVE COMMUNITIES - Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities 

PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES 
Supporting and empowering RCT residents and 
communities to live safe, healthy, and fulfilling 
lives 

WORK and BUSINESS 
Helping to strengthen and grow 
RCT’s Economy 

NATURE and the ENVIRONMENT 
A green and clean RCT that improves and 
protects RCT’s environment and nature 

CULTURE, HERITAGE and WELSH 
LANGUAGE 
Recognising and celebrating RCT’s past, 
present and future 

• Supporting children and families in their 
early years to have the best opportunities 
to develop, be healthy, and enjoy a range 
of programmes and activities in our 
libraries and Community Hubs.  

• Considering the implications of the 
National Framework for Social Prescribing.  

• Enabling people to be engaged in resilient 
communities, strengthening connections 
between community groups, providing 
opportunities to lead and influence 
community developments and be involved 
in volunteering. 

• Working with residents and partners to 
keep our communities safe and free from 
crime. 

• Developing community focused schools, 
that provide a range of services and 
activities, often beyond the school day, to 
help meet the needs of its pupils, their 
families and the wider community. 

 

• Working with our suppliers 
to increase the Social Value 
and Community benefits 
from all our contracts, for 
example through jobs, 
work experience and 
training.  

• Seeking and maximising 
available funding to 
support local/community 
transport routes where 
conditions allow. 

 

• Keeping the County Borough clean 
and healthy and our streets free 
from litter, dog fouling and 
continuing to strengthen our 
response to environmental crime. 

 

• Engaging with communities to 
jointly develop activity within our 
theatres, museums and other 
creative spaces through an 
accessible and inclusive approach 
that embraces all cultures. 

• Developing Intergenerational 
Projects, encouraging 
intergenerational friendships and 
helping to reduce loneliness. 

• Working with a range of public, 
private and third sector partners 
to consider the cultural offer 
across our Town Centres, 
developing and promoting a range 
of inclusive Arts and Cultural 
Events that will serve local and 
wider communities across South 
East Wales. 

• Connecting communities through 
heritage and local history. 

 
 
  

T
udalen 72

https://www.gov.wales/cabinet-paper-national-framework-for-social-prescribing-html


 

 
 

A WALES OF VIBRANT CULTURE & WELSH LANGUAGE - A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, and which encourages people to 
participate in the arts, and sports and recreation. 

PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES 
Supporting and empowering RCT 
residents and communities to live safe, 
healthy, and fulfilling lives 

WORK and BUSINESS 
Helping to strengthen and grow 
RCT’s Economy 

NATURE and the ENVIRONMENT 
A green and clean RCT that improves 
and protects RCT’s environment and 
nature 

CULTURE, HERITAGE and WELSH LANGUAGE 
Recognising and celebrating RCT’s past, present and 
future 

• Providing great learning 
environments through our new 
and improved early years settings 
and schools including a new 
Special school and making Welsh 
medium education accessible to 
all. 
 

• Widening our Town Centre 
‘offer’, including local events 
and celebrating culture and 
heritage. 
 

• Providing creative opportunities 
for people to contribute to 
clean and sustainable 
communities. 
 

• Continuing to grow the use of the Welsh 
language so that it thrives in our homes, 
communities and work.  

• Developing stronger cross sector 
partnerships that value the positive impacts 
of culture and heritage including on health 
and well-being, skills, work and community 
life.  

  T
udalen 73



 

 
 

A GLOBALLY RESPONSIBLE WALES - A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of 
whether doing such a thing may make a positive contribution to global well-being 
PEOPLE and COMMUNITIES 
Supporting and empowering RCT 
residents and communities to live safe, 
healthy, and fulfilling lives 

WORK and BUSINESS 
Helping to strengthen and grow RCT’s 
Economy 

NATURE and the ENVIRONMENT 
A green and clean RCT that improves 
and protects RCT’s environment and 
nature 

CULTURE, HERITAGE and WELSH 
LANGUAGE 
Recognising and celebrating RCT’s past, 
present and future 

• Enabling more people to live in 
warm and energy efficient homes 
to improve their health and 
wellbeing and enable them to live 
more sustainably.  

 

• Supporting the development of the 
circular economy across the County 
Borough, so that residents are able to 
share, reuse, repair and recycle 
existing materials and products for as 
long as possible. 

 

• Protecting and enhancing 
biodiversity: working with nature 
to tackle both the Climate and 
Nature emergencies,  

• Working with partners to 
maximise opportunities to make 
repairs, recycle and reduce and 
reuse waste.  

• Making sure that the methods of 
disposal for materials recovered 
from our waste are 
environmentally and ethically 
sustainable. 

 

• Protecting and promote the 
history of RCT for future 
generations through education, 
conservation and commemoration 
by: 
- Identifying, recording and 

sharing the history of RCT  
- Recognising, preserving, 

protecting and embracing 
RCTs industrial heritage 
including through digitisation, 
management of artifacts and 
protecting monuments.  

 

 

 

T
udalen 74



 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023 - 2024  

 
COUNCIL 

 
24TH APRIL 2024 

 
JOINT REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR – DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION AND DIRECTOR OF LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 
THE POLITICAL BALANCE OF THE COUNCIL AND ALLOCATION OF NOTICES 

OF MOTION 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Members of the outcome of the review of the Political Balance of 

the Council following the reduction in membership of the ‘RCT Independent 
Group’ and the resulting increase in membership of the ‘Independent Group’. 
 

1.2 Following the consequential change to the Council’s political balance, to 
review the allocation of Notices of Motion. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the scheme for the allocation of seats to the different political  groups 

and bodies to which Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 applies, as detailed in the Appendix to the report, be adopted; 

 
2.2 That the Service Director – Democratic Services & Communication be 

authorised to make appointments to politically balanced bodies upon receipt 
of notification of the wishes of the political groups subject to any subsequent 
requests for amendment of membership of Committees being referred to 
Council;  

 
2.3      Note that further instruction in respect of any revisions to the allocation of 

Notices of Motion will be sought at the Council’s Annual General Meeting on 
8th May 2024.  

 
3. POLITICAL BALANCE 
 
3.1 Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 makes provisions 

for securing the political balance on certain relevant authorities, committees 
and bodies.    

Tudalen 75

Agendwm 9



 
3.2 I received notification of a change in the Council’s political balance on the 26th 

February 2024. The RCT Independent Group, now comprises Cllr Mike 
Powell, Cllr Cathy Lisles and Cllr David Evans. From above date forward the 
Independent Group comprises Cllr Will Jones, Cllr Wayne Owen and Cllr 
Paul Binning. This change in the political grouping arrangements of the 
Council necessitates a review of the political balance of the Council.  

 
3.3      Following the review I would inform Members that the appointment of the 

available seats is as set out in Tables A, B and C of Appendix 1 to this report.  
 
3.4  Consequential changes to committee representation, as a result of the new 

political grouping arrangements are summarised below: 
 

•  A change in representation upon the Council’s Planning & Development 
Committee, with a reduction in Labour Group representation to 8, to enable 
representation by the two independent Groups.  
 

•  A change in representation upon the Council’s Scrutiny Committees, with a 
reduction in Plaid Cymru representation to 1, as a consequence of the 
formation of a new Independent Group (specific detail of these changes are 
set out in point 4 of the report). 

 
•  The RCT Independent Group will continue to be represented on the 

Licensing Committee, with the Independent Group now being represented on 
the Constitution Committee.  

 
3.5 The establishment of two ‘smaller’ groups with equal membership sizes has 

presented a challenge in ‘balancing’ the representation across the 
committees set out in table A. It has only been possible to achieve ‘balance’ 
by reducing representation of the Labour Group from 9 to 8 upon the 
Planning & Development Control Committee. Consistency has been adopted 
across the remaining committees listed in this section, to achieve the 
necessary balance of representation.  

 
3.6  Appointments to Committees will be made following notification given to me 

by each political group as to their nominations for appointments to the 
respective Committees. It has been previous practice for power to be 
delegated to the Proper Officer (the Head of Democratic Services) to accept 
and make the appointments notified to me by the political groups.  However, 
in the case of subsequent requests for amendments to the membership of 
Committees they should be the subject of a report to full Council. 

 
4.     REPRESENTATION UPON THE PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 
4.1     As previously referenced and in accordance with the revised political balance,     

Members will note that Labour Group representation upon the Planning & 
Development Committee, will be reduced to 8, to accommodate the RCT 
Independent and Independent Groups, who are both of equal size.  

Tudalen 76



4.2    Consistency has been applied in respect of the committee listed in table A, 
limiting any further membership changes at this late stage in the 2023/24 
Municipal year.  

 
4.3      It is once again recommended by Head of Democratic Services, that the 

Conservative Group will continue to be represented on the RLDP Members 
Steering Group, recognising the importance of enabling all political groups to 
be represented in this forum. 

 
 SCRUTINY MEMBERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS & ASSOCIATED MATTERS 
 
4.4      Members will also note the implications of the revised political balance on the 

Council’s scrutiny committee membership (of Committees with a membership 
of 14 members as set out at table C at Appendix 1) whereby the Plaid Cymru 
Group lose one seat from each of the four scrutiny committees in favour of 
the Independent Group (aligning it with the allocation of the RCT Independent 
Group with the same number of members).  

 
4.5      This revised arrangement will have no impact upon the allocation of Scrutiny 

chairs, with three roles allocated to the Labour Group and one to the Plaid 
Cymru (Education & Inclusion Scrutiny Committee). At the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM), Council will determine its chair and vice chair roles for the 
2024/2025 municipal year. 

 
4.6 Council is reminded that membership of the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee, should comprise representation from the Chairs and Vice-chairs 
of each scrutiny committee. The Chair of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Public 
Service Board, Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) must also form 
part of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee membership. Members are 
advised to note these points, when determining any revisions to political 
group representation.   

 
4.7 Full Council has the opportunity to review the total membership size of each 

committee, at the Council’s Annual General Meeting (AGM). In line with the 
resolution of Council, back in October 2023, total membership of the 
Democratic Services Committees, is maintained as 21, to enable 
representation by all political groups.  

 
5. ALLOCATION OF NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
5.1 At the Council meeting held on the 25th October 2023, and in accordance with 

Council Procedure Rule 10.2(a), Council allocated the 20 Notices of Motion 
for Municipal Year 2023 - 2024 to reflect the creation of the new political 
group known as the ‘Independent Group’ as follows: 

 
Labour - 12  
Plaid Cymru -4  
RCT Independent Group - 2  
Conservatives – 1  
Independent Group – 1 

Tudalen 77

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s43510/Report.pdf?LLL=0


 
5.2 It is normally necessary when considering the political balance, for instruction 

to be sought from Members in respect of the allocation of motions for the 
remainder of a municipal year.  

 
5.3 In light of the fact that there are no ‘ordinary’ meetings of Council remaining 

this municipal, it is recommended that the allocation is reviewed as part of the 
Council AGM, currently scheduled to take place on Wednesday 8th May 2024.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 78



APPENDIX 1 

POLITICAL BALANCE 2023/24  
 

TABLE A 
 

 Total Labour Plaid 
Cymru 

RCT Ind Conservative Independent 

Members 
75 59 8 3 2 3 

       
Political Balance 

 78.67 10.67 4.00 2.67 4.00 

Committee Available 
Seats 

Labour Plaid 
Cymru 

RCT Ind Conservative Independent 

Planning & 
Development 

11 8 1 1 0 1 

Licensing 11 9 1 1 0 0 
Constitution 8 6 1 0 0 1 

Appointments 5 4 1 0 0 0 
Pensions 5 4 0 0 1 0 
Appeals 5 4 1 0 0 0 

       
Total Seats 45 35 5 2 1 2 

 
 

TABLE B 
 

INDIVIDUAL COMMITTEES SUBJECT TO POLITICAL BALANCE 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Committee Available 

Seats 

Labour Plaid 
Cymru 

RCT Ind Conservative 
 

Independent 

Overview & Scrutiny 
14 11 1 1 0 1 

Education & 
Inclusion 

14 11 1 1 0 1 

Climate Change, 
Frontline Services & 
Prosperity 

14 11 1 1 0 1 

Community Services 14 11 1 1 0 1 
Democratic Services  21 16 2 1 1 1 
Governance & Audit 
Committee 

6 5 1 0 0 0 

Tudalen 79



 
TABLE C 

 
 TABLE TO CALCULATE POLITICAL BALANCE FOR INDIVIDUALCOMMITTEES    

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CALCULATION FOR OTHER COMMITTEES

TOTAL LABOUR PLAID RCT INDEPENDENT INDEPENDENT CONSERVATIVE
3 3 0 0 0 0
4 3 1 0 0 0
5 4 1 0 0 0
6 5 1 0 0 0
7 6 1 0 0 0
8 6 1 * * 0
9 7 1 * * 0
10 8 1 * * 0
11 9 1 * * 0
12 9 1 1 1 0
13 10 1 1 1 0

SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 14 11 1 1 1 0
15 12 2 * * 0
16 12 2 * * 0
17 13 2 1 1 0
18 14 2 1 1 0
19 15 2 1 1 0
20 16 2 1 1 0
21 16 2 1 1 1
22 17 2 1 1 1
23 18 2 1 1 1
24 19 2 1 1 1
25 20 3 1 1 0

* 1 seat to be allocated between them

Tudalen 80



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

as amended by 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

COUNCIL 
 

24th APRIL 2024 
 
 
JOINT REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR – DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION AND DIRECTOR OF LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
 
REPORT  
 
The Political Balance of the Council, Appointment of 
Democratic Services Committee Chair and 
Allocation of Notices of Motion 

Freestanding matter 
  

 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 81



tudalen wag



 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023 - 2024 

COUNCIL  

24 APRIL 2024 

REVIEW OF COMMUNITY ARRANGEMENTS FOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

The purpose of the report is to inform Members of the duty to conduct a 
Community Review, to present the Terms of Reference for this review and 
seek approval to commence the process, including the establishment of a 
cross-party working group. 
 

2. RECCOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Council: 
 

2.1 Approves the commencement of a Community Review for Rhondda Cynon 
Taf;  

 
2.2 Notes the Council Size Policy, as set out in Appendix 2, that would be 

applicable to the conduct of the proposed Community Review; 
 

2.3 Approves the Terms of Reference for the Community Review as set out in 
Appendix 3 and notes the indicative timetable set out in the report for 
conducting the Community Review; and 

 
2.4 Establishes a cross-party working group to oversee the review, which it is 

proposed consist of 10 Elected Members (6 Labour, 1 Plaid, 1 RCT 
Independent, 1 Independent and 1 Conservative) with nominations from 
Group Leaders to be submitted to the Service Director, Democratic Services 
& Communications.   
  

3. BACKGROUND  
 

3.1 The Council has a duty under section 22 of the Local Government 
(Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 (“the Act”) to report every ten years on a 
community review having regard to the Local and Democracy and Boundary 
Commission for Wales’ (the ‘LDBCW’) timetable for conducting the reviews 

Tudalen 83

Agendwm 10



of principal areas’ electoral arrangements required by section 29 (1) of the 
Act.  
 

3.2 The last electoral review for Rhondda Cynon Taf, carried out by the LDBCW, 
was conducted in 2021 with consequential changes being implemented for 
the Local Government Elections in May 2022. That review also led to some 
consequential changes being made to community wards, which were also 
implemented for the 2022 local elections.  
  

3.3 Both the Commission and principal councils, when carrying out their duties, 
are required by the Act to seek to ensure effective and convenient local 
government.  

 
3.4 A review of community arrangements is a legal process whereby the Council 

will consult with those living in the area, and other interested parties, on the 
most suitable ways of representing the people in the area identified in the 
review. This means making sure that those living in the area, and other 
interested groups, have a say in how their local communities are 
represented. A ‘community’ is the unit of local government that lies below 
the level of the principal council and, as Members are aware many, but not 
all, communities have an elected town or community Council. Some 
communities for electoral purposes are further divided into ‘community 
wards’.  

 
3.5 Any review of boundaries must reflect local identities and, as stated above, 

facilitate effective and convenient local government. A review offers an 
opportunity to put in place strong, clearly defined boundaries tied to ground 
features, and to remove any anomalous boundaries that exist as well as 
reflecting possible shifts in the population.  

 
3.6 The Council completed its last full Community Review in 2014 and reviews 

follow a 10-year cycle. Hence a further review is now required.  
 

4. 2024 COMMUNITY REVIEW 
  

4.1 Attached at Appendix 1 to this report is the LDBCW Guidance for Principal 
Councils on the review of Communities, which was updated in 2022. The 
Commission has also prepared an Easy Read version of the Guidance 
which can be accessed here and a video to explain the background to 
Community Reviews which can be accessed here. 

 
4.2 Attached at Appendix 2 to this report is the Council Size Policy proposed for 

the conduct of the Community Review. The Council Size Policy creates a 
mechanism to determine, for the Community and Town Councils, the 
appropriate number of community councillors for a given town or community 
based on the electorate of the community and achieve electoral parity. 
Ideally it should ensure, as far as is practicable, that the number of electors 
per councillor is roughly the same across all community and town councils 
within the Council’s area.  

 

Tudalen 84

https://d34hss7hg6i3n.cloudfront.net/publications/Easy-Read-Community-Review-Guidance.pdf
https://youtu.be/Mwcmi2bZvjk


4.3 Attached at Appendix 3 to this report are the proposed Terms of Reference 
for conducting the Review. The Terms of Reference set out the proposed 
timetable and procedures for the review, provide guidance and set out the 
issues that would be considered during the review, including explanations 
of the Council Size Policy and grouping of communities. 

 
4.4 It is proposed this review be carried out under section 25 of the Act, which 

covers the changes to boundaries and any consequential changes to 
electoral arrangements. A review of community boundaries under section 
25 should ensure that communities continue to reflect local identities and 
facilitate effective and convenient local government. For example, over time 
communities may expand with new housing developments. This can lead to 
boundaries becoming anomalous, for example if new housing is built across 
boundaries resulting in confusion over which community a housing estate 
falls into. A community review offers an opportunity to the principal council 
to put in place strong, clearly defined boundaries tied to ground features, 
and to remove any anomalous boundaries that exist.  

 
4.5 If the Council recommends boundary changes in the course of a section 25 

review, it is also able to recommend changes to the community council and 
to electoral arrangements for the communities that are affected by the 
boundary changes. This can be done as part of the same section 25 review, 
enabling the Council to make recommendations for the electoral 
consequences of boundary changes. 

 
4.6  Discussions with the LDBCW have taken place regarding the proposed 

timing of the Review to ensure they have sufficient time to make any Orders 
that are consequent following a community review and that it would not have 
an adverse impact on the work the Commission has already programmed.  
 

4.7 As part of the review, the Council will have regard to the LDBCW Guidance and 
consider the following: 

• the creation, alteration, abolition or merging of communities and 
community wards; 

• the name of the community and, where warded, the name of community 
wards; 

• Where changes have been made to the boundaries of communities or 
community wards the number of councillors representing the community 
and, where warded, the number of councillors per ward; and 

• The wards that are contested and uncontested in recent community and 
town council elections. 

 
4.8 The first stage of the review is to ask all interested parties to consider the 

current community boundaries and submit their views on any changes required 
to create communities that provide for effective and convenient local 
government. All submissions will then be considered, and the Council will 
publish a Draft Proposals Report and will hold a consultation on those 
proposals. All submissions will then be considered, and Final proposals  will be 

Tudalen 85



submitted to the LDBCW. The LDBCW will then, if it thinks fit, give effect to 
these recommendations either as submitted, or with modifications via an order.   
 

4.9 Any changes to electoral arrangements for communities will only be 
considered as a consequence of any changes to community boundaries.  
 

4.10 When undertaking the review, the Council is required to undertake such 
steps as it thinks fit to ensure that persons who may be interested in the 
review are informed of the review and are informed of any draft proposals 
or recommendations. In addition to consulting with the wider public the 
Council undertakes to meet these duties by writing to: 

 
• The LDBCW; 
• The Town and Community Councils across the principal council area; 
• The Senedd Members representing the area;  
• The Regional Senedd Members for the area; 
• The Members of UK Parliament representing the area; 
• Elected Members;  
• Police & Crime Commissioner; 
• South Wales Fire & Rescue Authority; 
• Welsh Language Commissioner; 
• The Welsh Government;  
• Trade Unions; and 
• Ordnance Survey. 

 
Timetable for the Review 

 
4.11 The review is proposed to start in May 2024 with final recommendations 

being ̀ provisionally scheduled to be submitted in March 2025. Any changes 
that occur as a result of the review process would then come into effect for 
the next Local Government Elections in 2027: 

 
Action  Period Date 
Start of Review – Initial Publicity  May 2024 
Initial Investigations 6 Weeks July 2024 to August 2024 
Draft Proposal Publication/ 
Consultation 6 Weeks November 2024 to 

December 2024 
Final Recommendation 
Submission   March 2025 

 
4.12 Whilst carrying out the review it is good practice to set up a cross-party 

working group to draft the Terms of Reference, consider the consultation 
responses and to agree any proposals. Setting up a cross-party group 
allows for cooperation between the political parties and can facilitate 
endorsement at Full Council. The Commission saw the benefits of cross-
party working groups set up to work on boundary changes during its last 
round of electoral reviews where some principal councils had established 
such working groups. 

 

Tudalen 86



4.13 It is therefore proposed that Council establish a cross-party working group 
to oversee the review, which it is proposed consist of 10 Elected Members 
(6 Labour, 1 Plaid, 1 RCT Independent, 1 Independent and 1 Conservative) 
with nominations from Group Leaders to be submitted to the Service 
Director, Democratic Services & Communications. The working group 
would consider the responses to the initial consultation, agree the draft 
recommendations to be presented to Full Council, consider any responses 
to the consultation on the draft recommendations, and agree the final 
recommendations to be presented to Full Council. 

  
4.14 If Council chooses to accept the final recommendations of the review, 

concluded after public consultation, it will be necessary to submit the 
recommendations to the LDBCW which, following a final 6 week period for 
representations, will prepare an Order to implement the changes. Any 
changes to the arrangement of communities will take effect at the next 
scheduled Town and Community elections in May 2027. 

 
5. CONSULTATION/INVOLVEMENT  
 
5.1 It is recognised that the development of strong, sustainable communities 

depends on residents’ active participation in decision making in respect of 
the governance arrangements of community and town councils. The 
Council is therefore committed to engaging effectively with the diverse 
communities it serves and to enabling local people to participate 
meaningfully in the creation of effective community governance 
arrangements where all people feel able to take an active part in influencing 
service delivery. 

 
5.2 The timetable in the Terms of Reference includes key consultation periods 

to allow time for responses to be received, including consultation with 
mandatory consultees at the various stages in the process. 

6.       FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The publishing and administrative costs of the review will be met from 
existing departmental budgets.  

      
7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 There are no specific equality and diversity implications aligned to this report 

or the wider review at this time.  
 

8. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 The Welsh Language Commissioner would be consulted in relation to the 
Community Review and in respect of the creation of any new community 
names. The WLC is responsible for advising on the standard forms of Welsh 
place-names. The WLC has convened a Place-names Standardisation 
Panel to provide recommendations and expert advice in this field.  

Tudalen 87



 
 

9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

9.1    Principal Councils have a duty to monitor the communities in its area and, 
where appropriate, the electoral arrangements of such communities for the 
purpose of considering whether to make or recommend changes. These 
changes are brought about by means of community boundary reviews under 
section 25 and community electoral reviews under section 31 of the Act.  

 
9.2     Section 22 of the Act 2013 provides that a principal council must have regard 

to the Commission’s timetable for conducting the reviews of principal area’s 
electoral arrangements when determining when to conduct a community 
review.  

 
9.3    Section 34 of the Act stipulates the ‘mandatory consultees’ for a Community 

Review. 

10.      LINKS TO THE WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 

10.1 The review of community arrangements safeguards the long-term needs of 
local residents to ensure an effective and convenient local government and 
electoral equality.  

10.2  The Council will be submitting a proposal to the Commission in line with 
effective collaboration and involvement between various groups and 
bodies.  

11.    CONCLUSION 

11.1   The Council is required to undertake a Community Review to consider what 
changes, if any, are needed to existing community arrangements across 
the whole of the County Borough.  This report sets out how the proposed 
review would be undertaken and seeks Council’s approval to commence 
the review process and agree the necessary documentation.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 88



 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

as amended by 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

COUNCIL  

24 APRIL 2024 

REVIEW OF COMMUNITY ARRANGEMENTS FOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 

Freestanding matter 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 89



tudalen wag



Guidance For Principal 

Councils On The Review 

Of Communities

Local Democracy and Boundary
Commission for Wales

Tudalen 91



Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg.

© LDBCW copyright 2022

You may re-use this information (excluding logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under 
the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit http://www.nationalarchives.
gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence or email: psi@nationalarchives.gov.uk

Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain permission 
from the copyright holders concerned.

Any enquiries regarding this publication should be sent to the Commission a enquiries@
boundaries.wales

This document is also available from our website at www.ldbc.gov.wales

Tudalen 92



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 3

In this document the Commission has set out its guidance on how to conduct community reviews 

under sections 25 and 31 of the Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013. Principal councils 

have a duty to report to the Commission on their community arrangements every ten years. 

The legislation that covers community reviews is the Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) 

Act 2013 (the Act). Under the Act the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales (the 

Commission) has a general duty to monitor arrangements for local government across Wales. Each 

principal council however has a duty to monitor the communities in its area and, where appropriate, 

the electoral arrangements of such communities for the purposes of considering whether to make 

or recommend changes. These changes are brought about by means of community boundaries 

reviews and community electoral reviews. A community boundaries review conducted by the 

principal council under section 25 of the Act is brought into effect by an Order by the Commission. A 

community electoral review conducted by the principal council under section 31 of the Act is brought 

into effect by an Order by the principal council.

There are two audiences in mind in the drafting of this document. Primarily this is a guide for 

principal council officers in the conduct of a review of their communities. It has also been drafted 

to inform interested parties, in particular the town and community councils of Wales, as to how the 

process should operate. Community councils have the opportunity, through their engagement in 

community reviews, to ensure that the boundaries of their community reflect how their community 

operates on the ground and that the representation of their constituents is appropriate. 

Beverley Smith

Chair

Foreword

Tudalen 93



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 20224

Chapter 1 Context 05 
 Communities 05 
 Community Reviews 06 
 Principal Councils’ duties to monitor, 07 
 report and review  
 Community reviews by the Commission 09

Chapter 2 Community Review – Legal Process 
 and Considerations 11 
 Situations in which a community review  
 may be carried out 11 
 Conducting a review – legal constraints 13 
  Process 14 
  Outcomes 21 
  Implementing changes 27

Chapter 3 Community Reviews - Best Practice 33 
 Terms of Reference 33 
 Council Size Policy 35 
 Amalgamation and Grouping of 37 
  Communities

Chapter 4 Assistance from the Commission 39

Appendix 1 Glossary of Terms 40 
Appendix 2 Example Timeline 41 

Contents

Tudalen 94



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 5

Context

1.1 This Community Review Guidance has been produced to assist and help to ensure 

consistency in the conduct of community reviews by principal councils. It explains the statutory 

processes that should be followed, and the best practice developed by principal councils over time. 

Communities

1.2 There can be some confusion over what is meant by the word community. It means 

different things to different people. Some may consider it to be the street in which they live, others a 

broader village area, others much larger areas. All of these are entirely accurate and reflect the lives 

of people and the differences and similarities of places where we live, work and interact. However, in 

Wales there is an additional and more technical meaning.

1.3 For the purposes of this guidance, a community is the unit of local government that lies 

below the level of the principal council (a county or county borough). Community areas cover the 

whole of Wales, so wherever you live you will be in a community. Many, but not all, of the community 

areas have an elected town or community council that provides services to their community area. 

Most councils of community areas are known as community councils, but some communities have 

the status of a town and are known as town councils. Communities may be divided for electoral 

purposes into community wards.

Tudalen 95



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 20226

Community Reviews

1.4 From time to time, there may be a need to make changes to community areas due 

to shifts in the population. Such changes may involve changes to the boundary of the community 

and, where a community council exists, changes to the electoral arrangements for the community 

council. These changes are predominantly achieved by means of community reviews under the Local 

Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 (the Act).

1.5 Under   the Act, the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales (the 

Commission) has a general duty to monitor arrangements for local government across Wales. 

Each principal council however has a duty to monitor the communities in its area and the electoral 

arrangements of those communities for the purposes of considering whether to make or recommend 

changes. These changes are brought about by means of a community boundaries review or a 

community electoral review. Both the Commission and the principal councils, when carrying out 

their duties, are required by the Act to seek to ensure effective and convenient local government. 

 

1.6 The statutory process for conducting a community review is set out in Part 3 of the 

Act. This lays down basic criteria for conducting a review, the appropriate considerations and the 

procedure.

1.7 There are two different types of community review that may be carried out by principal 

councils, which are subject to different sections of the Act: 

• Section 25 – a review of community boundaries (which is described in this guidance as a “section 

25 boundaries review”); and 

Tudalen 96



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 7

• Section 31– a review of the electoral arrangements of a community (a “section 31 electoral 

review”).

Principal Councils’ duties to monitor, report and review

1.8 Principal councils are required by the Act to monitor the communities in their areas and 

the electoral arrangements of those communities, and to carry out reviews where the Act requires 

them to do so or where they otherwise consider it appropriate. 

1.9 Principal councils are also required to publish a report every 10 years on how they have 

complied with their duties to monitor and review. A report should describe any processes that the 

principal council has gone through and decisions it has made in this context. 

1.10 In order to discharge its duties under the Act, the principal council should maintain 

a mechanism to identify potential changes to communities such as new housing developments 

or shifts in electorate.  This may be achieved by a combination of periodic consultation with 

the community councils and ongoing consideration of community boundaries and electoral 

arrangements when considering issues such as planning (including the preparation of development 

plans) and electoral administration.

1.11 When a principal council identifies the need for a review of or changes to its communities (or 

their electoral arrangements), the Commission recommends that the council should consider first 

whether it is necessary to review the boundaries of its communities (and if so carry out a review 

Tudalen 97



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 20228

under section 25 of any relevant communities) and thereafter consider whether it is also necessary to 

carry out electoral reviews under section 31 in relation to any communities. 

1.12  A review of community boundaries under section 25 should ensure that communities 

continue to reflect local identities and facilitate effective and convenient local government. For 

example, over time communities may expand with new housing developments. This can lead to 

boundaries becoming anomalous, for example if new housing is built across boundaries resulting 

in confusion over which community a housing estate falls into.  A community review offers an 

opportunity to the principal council to put in place strong, clearly defined boundaries tied to ground 

features, and to remove any anomalous boundaries that exist. 

1.13 If the principal council recommends boundary changes in the course of a section 

25 review, it is also able to recommend changes to the community council and to electoral 

arrangements for the communities that are affected by the boundary changes. This can be done as 

part of the same section 25 review, enabling the principal council to make recommendations for the 

electoral consequences of boundary changes. This is described in more detail in section 2 of this 

guidance, under the heading “Outcomes”.

1.14 In contrast, if the principal council has not carried out a boundary review for particular 

communities or identifies issues within the electoral arrangements for one or more communities 

independent of any boundary issues, the principal council should then consider whether those 

communities should be the subject of community electoral reviews under section 31. 

Tudalen 98



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 9

1.15 The Commission recommends that, when considering whether to carry out community 

electoral reviews for communities, principal councils consider in particular the degree to which 

“electoral parity” is achieved across the communities in their area, and (where an individual 

community is divided into community wards) across the wards in the community. For example, if a 

community has a higher number of electors per councillor than other communities in the principal 

council’s area, the principal council may wish to carry out a community electoral review with a view 

to considering whether to recommend an increase in the number of community councillors for that 

community. If the number of electors per councillor varies significantly between different wards 

within a community, the principal council may wish to carry out a community electoral review for the 

purposes of considering a different allocation of councillors to the individual community wards. 

Community reviews by the Commission

1.16 In some circumstances the Commission is able to conduct community reviews in place 

of the principal council. 

1.17 The Commission is able (but not obliged) to conduct a community boundaries review 

under section 26 of the Act in the following circumstances:

• where the principal council and the Commission have agreed that the Commission will carry out 

a community boundaries review in place of the principal council; 

• if the principal council has not complied with a direction from the Welsh Ministers requiring that 

a section 25 review be carried out;

• where the principal council has carried out a section 25 boundaries review and recommended 

Tudalen 99



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202210

that no boundary changes should be made; or

• where the Commission, in its capacity as implementing authority, disagrees with the 

recommendations made by a principal council following a section 25 review, or considers that 

the review process adopted by the principal council was defective.

 

1.18 The Commission has power to recover its costs of a section 26 review from the principal 

council if the Commission has carried out the review because the principal council failed to comply 

with a direction from the Welsh Ministers, or because the Commission considers that a review 

process carried out by the principal council was defective. The Commission may also require that 

the principal council meet its costs as a condition of the Commission’s agreement to carry out a 

boundaries review in the place of the principal council. 

1.19 The Commission is also able (but not obliged) to conduct community electoral arrangements 

review under section 32 of the Act in the following circumstances:

• where the principal council and the Commission have agreed that the Commission will carry out 

such a review in place of the principal council (in which context the Commission may require 

that the principal council meet the Commission’s costs of the review as a condition of the 

Commission’s agreement); 

• where the principal council has not complied with a direction from the Welsh Ministers requiring 

that a section 31 electoral review be carried out (in which context the Commission has power to 

recover its costs of the review from the principal council); or

• where the community council, or a group of not less than 30 local government electors from 

the community, submit a request for a review to the Commission (rather than to the principal 

council). 

Tudalen 100



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 11

Community Reviews – Legal Process
and Considerations

2.1 In this guidance the Commission will address both statutory obligations and best 

practice recommendations for principal councils conducting community reviews in Wales. 

2.2 This section describes the legal process and considerations for community reviews 

carried out by principal councils, as well as the constraints laid down by the Act on the outcome 

of reviews. However it is not a substitute for, and should not be relied on as, legal advice, and nor 

does it attempt to provide a complete account of the law relevant to a review. When conducting a 

community review a principal council must also consider its other statutory obligations related to 

the review – for example obligations under the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015, Welsh 

Language Standards and the Equality Act 2010, which will all influence and inform the conduct and 

decisions made during the course of a community review.

2.3 Section 3 of this guidance then addresses best practice recommendations for the 

conduct of community reviews.  

Situations in which a community review may be carried out

2.4 There are three key situations in which a community review may be carried out:

1. Where it is requested by a community or town council or by the residents of a community (in the 

form of a “community meeting” for the purposes of a section 25 boundaries review, or a request 

from 30 or more electors for the purposes of a section 31 electoral review); 

Tudalen 101



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202212

2. At a principal council’s own initiative (including where the principal council decides to carry out 

a community review in preparation for the Commission’s programme of reviews of principal 

council electoral arrangements); and,

3. Following a direction from the Welsh Ministers.

2.5 Principal councils have a duty under the terms of the Act to publish a report and submit 

the report to the Commission on their community arrangements every ten years. The Commission is 

also required to conduct electoral reviews of principal councils every ten years. Ideally a community 

review should precede an electoral review by the Commission of the principal council, as the 

community and community wards within the principal council’s area will be used as the primary 

building blocks for principal council electoral wards. However, a principal council may commence 

a review at their own initiative at any time, so long as the principal council complies with its duty to 

have regard to the Commission’s timetable for its principal area electoral reviews (see section 22(2)

(a) of the Act).

2.6 A principal council may also conduct a community review where it receives a request 

from a community in its area. In this context:

• A community council or a community meeting may request that the principal council carries out 

a section 25 boundaries review in relation to that community and/or other communities within 

the principal council’s area. When it receives such a request the principal council may conduct a 

section 25 boundaries review of one or more communities in its area, but is not obliged to do so.

• When a principal council is considering whether to carry out a section 25 boundaries review 

Tudalen 102



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 13

in response to a request from a community in its area, the Commission recommends that the 

principal council should consult with the Commission. This is principally to ensure that the 

Commission (as implementing authority) will have sufficient time to implement any resulting 

recommendations. The principal council should also consider whether (and if so how) the 

requested review may impact on the principal council’s functions and/or on the Commission’s 

timetable for its periodic reviews of the principal council’s electoral arrangements. 

• A community council or a group of not less than 30 local government electors registered in the 

community may request that the principal council carries out a section 31 electoral review in 

relation to that community. When it receives such a request the principal council may conduct 

the review, but is not obliged to do so. When it is considering whether to conduct a section 31 

review in response to such a request, the principal council should again consider whether (and 

if so how) the requested review may impact on the principal council’s functions and/or on the 

Commission’s timetable for its periodic reviews of the principal council’s electoral arrangements.

2.7 If a principal council is directed to conduct a review by Welsh Ministers it should do so in 

accordance with that direction, utilising this guidance where applicable. 

 Conducting a review – legal constraints

2.8 The Act regulates:

• the process for conducting community reviews;

• the outcome of community reviews; and

Tudalen 103



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202214

• the implementation of changes that are proposed at the conclusion of community reviews. 

2.9 The statutory process that a principal council must follow when conducting a 

community review is, in large part, the same for both section 25 boundaries reviews and section 31 

electoral reviews. The relevant legal rules for the two types of review differ only in relation to the 

outcome, and the implementation of the outcome, of the review. 

Process

2.10 Sections 35 and 36 of the Act require that a principal council carrying out a community 

review must take four essential steps:

• Initial publicity;

• Initial investigation and consultation; 

• Draft proposals (and consultation on those proposals); and

• Final recommendations

Initial publicityInitial publicity

2.2.11 Before the formal commencement of a community review, the principal council is 

required to:

• publicise the review (specifically to bring it to the attention of the “mandatory consultees” listed 

in section 34 of the Act, as well as of anyone else the council thinks is likely to be interested); and

Tudalen 104



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 15

• draw attention to any directions given by the Welsh Ministers which are relevant to the review.

2.12 Whilst carrying out the review it is good practice to set up a cross-party working group 

to draft the Terms of Reference, consider the consultation responses and to agree any proposals. 

Setting up a cross-party group allows for cooperation between the political parties and can facilitate 

endorsement at Full Council. The Commission saw the benefits of cross-party working groups set 

up to work on boundary changes during its last round of electoral reviews where some principal 

councils had established such working groups.

2.13 At this stage the principal council can (but is not obliged to) consult interested parties 

on its proposed methodology for the review – including matters such as the terms of reference and 

underlying policies. This is addressed in section 3 of this guidance, under the sub-heading “Terms of 

Reference”. 

2.14 If a principal council is carrying out a “pre-review” consultation of this nature, the 

consultation period should be long enough to provide a reasonable opportunity for interested 

parties to respond. Where a principal council is not carrying out a pre-review consultation, the “initial 

publicity” stage can usually be short. 

Initial investigation and consultation

2.15 A principal council formally commences a community review by: 

• consulting the “mandatory consultees” listed in section 34 of the Act; and

Tudalen 105



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202216

• conducting its own “investigations”. 

2.16 The purpose of this stage of the review is to enable the principal council to gather 

information it will need when considering and preparing any proposals for change (at the second 

stage). The Act does not dictate how long the initial investigation and consultation stage should last, 

but a principal council should allow long enough that interested parties have a reasonable period to 

respond (and the principal council can gather relevant information). A period of between 6 and 12 

weeks is commonly considered to be best practice. 

2.17 In order to enable interested parties to participate properly in the initial consultation, 

the principal council will need to provide information about the review. This is likely to include 

details of the existing arrangements (for example about existing community boundaries and councils 

for a section 25 boundaries review, and existing electoral arrangements for a section 31 electoral 

review) and an account of the reasons why the principal council has commenced the review. If the 

council has identified “issues” that the review will address, this information should be provided to 

consultees also. 

2.18 During the initial stage the Act requires the principal council to carry out “such 

investigations as it considers appropriate”. In this context, a principal council should investigate and 

consider its number of local government electors via its electoral register, the population eligible 

to vote which can be sourced from the Office for National Statistics mid-year estimates which are 

published annually. The principal council should also consider the five year projected number 

of electors within its area, this can be derived by the principal council and is requested by the 

Tudalen 106



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 17

Commission as part of any electoral arrangement review it undertakes.  

Draft proposals

2.19 At the second stage of a community review, a principal council must:

• prepare a report that provides details of the review it has conducted, and sets out any proposals 

for change that the council considers appropriate (or a proposal that no changes are made) – 

which is commonly known as a “Draft Proposals Report”; and

• carry out a consultation on its proposals. 

2.20 For this purpose, the principal council will need to consider the information it has 

gathered during the initial consultation stage (both as a result of representations from interested 

parties and by means of its own investigation) and take that information into account in deciding 

whether to make proposals for change (and if so what proposals to make). A proposal does not have 

to reflect or be precipitated by a representation from an interested party, but must be arrived at by 

taking into account the relevant information available to the council, and in a manner that complies 

with the Act and with any relevant policies and procedures of the principal council (such as the 

procedures set out in any Terms of Reference, as to which see section 3 below). 

2.21 In the creation of any new names it is good practice for the principal council to consult 

the Welsh Language Commissioner (WLC). The WLC is responsible for advising on the standard forms 

of Welsh place-names. The WLC has convened a Place-names Standardisation Panel to provide 

recommendations and expert advice in this field. In forming its recommendations, the Panel follows 

Tudalen 107



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202218

national standardisation guidelines and also gives consideration to the meaning, history and 

etymology of the place-names, as well as their usage. 

2.22 It is normal practice for the council’s officers to produce an “internal” report for the 

approval of the principal council. Once that internal report is approved, the principal council should 

prepare and consult on its formal Draft Proposals Report. 

2.23 Any proposals for change that are included in a Draft Proposals Report must be 

proposals that the principal council will have power to make or recommend at the outcome of its 

review. Proposals must therefore be made in the light of the legal constraints affecting the outcome 

of community reviews. This is addressed below, under the heading “Outcomes”. 

2.24 In order to consult on the proposals in its Draft Proposals Report the principal 

council must publicise the report (in the specific ways set out in section 35(3) of the Act) and invite 

“representations” in relation to the report. The principal council must also decide on and publicise 

the consultation period (i.e. the period of time during which representations can be submitted). The 

Act requires that the consultation period is not less than 6 weeks, nor more than 12 weeks, beginning 

no earlier than one week after the council provides notice to interested parties of the relevant time 

period. 

2.25 Notice of the consultation period can be given by means of letter and email, notices 

placed on principal council and community council noticeboards, principal council and community 

council websites, social media and by any other means that the principal council considers 

Tudalen 108



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 19

appropriate. It is good practice for the notification to include details of the draft proposals and maps 

(or details of how and where to access maps) and to ask the community councils and all interested 

parties, including the general public, to make comments on the draft proposals.

2.26 The Draft Proposals Report must be published electronically and must be available for 

inspection (without charge) at the offices of the principal council for the duration of the period for 

representations. The report must also be sent to Welsh Ministers and mandatory consultees and all 

others who responded at the preliminary stage must be informed how to obtain a copy of the report.

2.27 In addition, some principal councils have undertaken road shows, meeting each 

community affected by the review in order to discuss the proposals and encourage representations 

which support or oppose proposals, or offer alternative suggestions.  

Final proposals

2.28 At the final stage of a community review, the principal council is required to:

• consider its proposals for change in light of any representations it has received during the 

consultation on its Draft Proposals Report; and then

• publish its final report. 

2.29 The principal council’s final report must give details of the review and the consultation 

that the council has conducted and any changes to the council’s proposals that the council has 

decided to make in the light of representations it received during consultation. 

Tudalen 109



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202220

2.30 The final report must also express the principal council’s conclusions. In a section 25 

boundaries review, those conclusions will take the form of “recommendations for change” that the 

council considers appropriate (or a recommendation that no changes are made). In a section 31 

electoral review, the conclusions will take the form of changes that the council “intends to make” 

(or a statement that the council does not intend to make changes). These differences reflect the 

different arrangements for implementing the outcomes of community reviews, which are described 

below under the heading “Implementing changes”. 

2.31 The possible outcomes of a community review are also constrained by provisions of the 

Act which determine the recommendations and changes that a principal council has power to make. 

This is described in the following section, under the heading “Outcomes”. 

2.32 Especially at final report stage, it may on occasion be necessary for difficult decisions 

to be confronted by officers and the principal council where the arrangements that appear most 

appropriate may not be popular with local residents. In these areas innovative solutions may need 

to be sought. Alternatively, it may be necessary to make a robust evidence-based case in favour 

of arrangements that face strong or considerable opposition. The Commission will endeavour to 

provide any informal advice it can in these instances or offer differing options for the principal 

council to consider. Decision-making in these areas needs to be clear and evidence based.

2.33 The principal council is required to publish its final report and make it available to 

various interested parties, as detailed in section 36(5) of the Act. In broad summary, the principal 

Tudalen 110



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 21

council should publish its final report in the same manner as its Draft Proposals Report. A copy of the 

final report must be sent to the mandatory consultees, Ordnance Survey and the Welsh Ministers, 

and all others who responded at the earlier stages must be informed how to obtain a copy of the 

report.

Outcomes

2.34 As explained in section 1 of this guidance, section 25 boundaries reviews and section 31 

electoral reviews have a different purpose and focus. 

2.35 A section 25 boundaries review is a review of the boundaries of one or more 

communities within the principal council’s area. This may be appropriate in particular if new housing 

developments have made significant differences to the map or to living arrangements within 

an area, if there are anomalies not identified in previous reviews (for example, golf courses split 

across two communities or areas where a small road or cul-de-sac is ‘split off’ from the rest of their 

community), or if there are changes to water courses or farms. 

2.36 A section 31 electoral review does not address the boundaries of the community under 

review but looks instead at the arrangements for representation on the community council within a 

given community.

2.37 This difference is reflected in the different potential outcomes for a community review.

Tudalen 111



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202222

2.38 The principal council should consider how to give effect to the Order, they should also 

alert Welsh Government on the establishment of new community councils, the dissolution of existing 

community councils and the impact it has on setting precepts.  

Community boundaries reviews under section 25

2.39 At the conclusion of a section 25 boundaries review, the principal council may 

recommend “community boundary changes”. These are defined in section 23(4) of the Act as 

including changes to the boundary of an existing community, but also the dissolution of an existing 

community and the creation of a new community. 

2.40 Where a principal council recommends community boundary changes at the 

conclusion of a section 25 boundaries review, it also has power to recommend consequential 

“community council changes” and “associated changes to the electoral arrangements” of one 

or more of the communities under review or of the principal area. For this purpose, “community 

council changes” are defined in section 23(4) as meaning the dissolution of an existing community 

council, the establishment of a new community council, or the addition of communities to (or 

subtraction of communities from) a common community council. Recommendations submitted by 

the principal council should be explicit with regard to the town or community councils involved in 

such changes. According to section 31(7) of the Act, the “electoral arrangements of a community” 

refers to the number of members of the community council and any arrangements for the division 

of the community into wards for the purposes of elections to the community council (including the 

number, boundaries and names of wards and the number of members per ward). The “electoral 

Tudalen 112



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 23

arrangements of a principal area” are given a corresponding meaning by section 29(9). 

2.41 Community boundary changes will often result in changes to the populations of 

affected communities. For example, if an area is incorporated into a new community due to the 

position or road connections of a new housing development, that same area will necessarily 

be taken out of the community of which it previously formed part. As a consequence, both the 

enlarged community and the reduced community may benefit from consequential changes to their 

community council and/or electoral arrangements, particularly if there is a change in the number of 

local government electors in both communities that will be brought about by the boundary change. 

2.42 A principal council that proposes to recommend changes to community boundaries 

should therefore also consider whether consequential changes to community councils and 

community electoral arrangements should be made. This could affect more than one community in 

the vicinity of a new housing development (for example). Accordingly, when commencing a section 

25 boundaries review, a principal council should consider carefully which communities are included 

within the review, in the light of the issues or developments that have prompted the review, in order 

to ensure that relevant communities are “captured” by the review and the principal council therefore 

has powers to address any issues fully. 

2.43 Sections 30 and 33 of the Act lay down specific matters that a principal council must 

take into account when considering changes to the electoral arrangements of a community or a 

principal area. This is described in the following section, in relation to section 31 electoral reviews.  

Community electoral reviews under section 31

Tudalen 113



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202224

2.44 At the conclusion of a section 31 electoral review, a principal council is entitled to 

“propose and make” changes to the electoral arrangements for the community under review, as well 

as consequential changes to the electoral arrangements of the principal area.

2.45 As noted above, the “electoral arrangements of a community” refers to the number of 

members of the community council and any arrangements for the division of the community into 

wards for the purposes of elections to the community council (including the number, boundaries 

and names of wards and the number of members per ward). 

2.46 When a principal council is considering changes to the electoral arrangements of a 

community, it will need to decide whether the community should be divided into wards for the 

purposes of elections to the community council. Section 33 of the Act requires that, when a principal 

council considers whether a community should be divided into community wards, the council must 

consider whether the number or distribution of the local government electors for the community is 

such as to make a single election of community councillors impractical or inconvenient, and whether 

it is desirable that any area of the community should be separately represented on the community 

council. 

2.47 If the principal council decides that the community council should not be divided into 

wards, it will need to determine the number of councillors for the community. When it makes that 

determination, section 33 of the Act requires that the principal council have regard to the “number 

and distribution” of local government electors in the community, and any change in that number or 

distribution that is likely to take place in the following five years. 

Tudalen 114



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 25

2.48 If a principal council decides that a community should be divided into wards, it will 

need to fix boundaries for the wards and determine the number of community councillors for each 

ward. In resolving those matters, the principal council is required by section 33 of the Act to take 

into account the desirability of fixing boundaries that are easily identifiable, any local ties that might 

be broken by particular ward boundaries, and any change in the number of distribution of local 

government electors in the community that is likely in the next five years, It is the Commission’s 

view that, whenever possible, new boundaries should follow features that can be identified both on 

detailed maps and “on the ground”.  

2.49 In addition, when considering these changes, principal councils must take into account 

any discrepancy between the number of registered electors and the population in the community 

that is eligible to vote. The Commission also recommends that (in the interests of effective and 

convenient local government) principal councils consider questions of electoral parity (i.e. the 

number of electors per elected councillor) both within the individual community and more broadly 

within all communities in the principal council’s area. 

2.50 A principal council also has powers to make changes to the electoral arrangements 

of the principal area at the outcome of a section 31 electoral arrangements review, where those 

changes are a “consequence of” any changes to the electoral arrangements of a community. 

According to section 29(9), the “electoral arrangements of a principal area” refers to the number of 

members of the principal council, as well as the arrangements for the division of the principal area 

Tudalen 115



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202226

into wards for the purposes of elections to the principal council. 

2.51 The primary duty to review the electoral arrangements of principal areas is imposed 

on the Commission by section 29 of the Act. In that context, the Commission usually regards 

communities and community wards within the principal area as the “building blocks” for principal 

council electoral wards. 

2.52 For this reason, where a principal council proposes a change to a community or 

community ward boundary that mirrors a principal council electoral ward boundary, it is normal 

practice to also propose a consequential change to the arrangements for the principal council 

electoral ward. Ordinarily, if a minor change is proposed consideration can be limited to a simple 

shift of the boundary. However, if significant changes are made the principal council will need to 

consider the consequences for the principal area electoral arrangements, including the possible 

creation of new electoral wards and possible changes to the number of members representing any 

new or significantly changed wards. These should be proposed at the same time as any change to 

communities and their wards, if appropriate.

Tudalen 116



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 27

2.53 Where a principal council is considering whether to recommend or make changes to 

the electoral arrangements for a principal area, it is required to comply with section 30 of the Act 

(see sections 25(4) and 31(4)). It must therefore seek to ensure, as nearly as possible, that there is 

electoral parity (i.e. the same ratio of local government electors to council members to be elected) 

across every electoral ward in the principal area – taking into account both changes to the number 

and distribution of electors that are likely over the following five years, and any discrepancy between 

the number of registered electors and the eligible population in the principal area. The principal 

council must also have regard to the desirability of fixing electoral ward boundaries that are easily 

identifiable, and to the desirability of preserving local ties when fixing electoral ward boundaries.

Implementing changes

2.54 The Act lays down different mechanisms for implementing the outcomes of section 

25 boundaries reviews and section 31 electoral reviews, as well as of community electoral 

arrangements reviews carried out by the Commission pursuant to section 32. Those arrangements 

are described in this section. 

Community boundaries reviews under section 25

Tudalen 117



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202228

2.55 The Commission is the “implementing authority” for section 25 boundaries reviews. 

Accordingly, upon completion of a section 25 review, the principal council is required to submit its 

report to the Commission. 

2.56 Upon receiving the principal council’s report, the Commission has a choice:

• it can implement the principal council’s recommendations without modifications; 

• it can implement the recommendations with modifications that are agreed with the principal 

council; 

• it can choose to conduct its own review; or

• it can take no action. 

2.57 Section 38(1) of the Act specifically provides that the Commission may choose to 

conduct its own review if the Commission “does not consider it appropriate to implement any of the 

council’s recommendations”, or if the Commission is unable to reach agreement with the principal 

council on modifications to the recommendations that “the Commission considers necessary 

for it to implement them”. However the Commission has broader powers under section 26 of the 

Act to conduct its own community boundaries review, including where the principal council has 

recommended that no community boundary changes should be made, and where the Commission 

considers that the principal council’s review process has been defective. 

2.58 Accordingly, when it receives a final report from a principal council following a section 

25 boundaries review, the Commission will give its own consideration to both the process carried 

Tudalen 118



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 29

out by the principal council and to the substance of the recommendations and whether it results in 

effective and convenient local government. For this purpose, the Commission asks principal councils 

to provide, alongside final reports, copies of any information pertinent to the review to satisfy 

the Commission that the principal council has conducted the review in accordance with the Act. 

This will include (among other things) any presentation materials, copies of publication materials, 

communications with stakeholders, representations received from third parties, reports to relevant 

scrutiny committees and full principal council and the minutes of those meetings.

2.59 In this context, the Commission will principally consider whether there are 

clear substantive or procedural flaws that have affected the principal council’s review or its 

recommendations. Where there is reasonable scope for disagreement – for example as to precisely 

where a boundary is drawn – the Commission will not usually reject or seek to modify a council’s 

recommendations simply because the Commission might have recommended a different outcome. 

However where a recommendation has clear disadvantages that could be avoided by a modification, 

the Commission may seek the principal council’s agreement to that modification – such as where a 

recommended boundary change would leave a geographical anomaly. 

2.60 As described in section 4 of this guidance, the Commission is generally willing to share 

its expertise where to do so may assist a principal council, and the Commission welcomes informal 

discussions for the purposes of assisting principal councils to plan and execute community reviews. 

Tudalen 119



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202230

As part of its normal practice the Commission endeavours, by means of regular communication with 

principal councils, to avoid situations in which recommendations resulting from section 25 reviews 

are not implemented or must be substantially modified. 

2.61 Section 38(2) of the Act requires that the Commission wait for a period of six weeks 

after receiving the principal council’s report before making any implementing order. That period 

is not a formal consultation period, but it is often the case that interested parties wish to comment 

on the recommendations made in the principal council’s report. Any such comments during that 

period should be sent to the Commission, which will acknowledge receipt. The Commission’s normal 

practice is to take into account comments that it has received and acknowledged in deciding what 

action to take as implementing authority. 

2.62 Section 38(3) of the Act provides that, if the Commission’s implementing order will 

make changes to the electoral arrangements of a principal area, the Commission must first obtain 

the consent of the Welsh Ministers. If, having considered what action to take as implementing 

authority for a section 25 boundaries review, the Commission proposes to implement a change 

to the principal council’s electoral arrangements which is consequential on community boundary 

changes, the Commission will therefore consult with the Welsh Ministers.

Community electoral reviews under section 31

2.63 The principal council is itself entitled to implement, by making an order, intended 

changes that are described in its final report in a section 31 electoral arrangements review. 

However section 39(2) of the Act requires that the principal council wait for a period of 6 weeks from 

Tudalen 120



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 31

publication of its final report before making any order. If the principal council’s proposed order 

would make consequential changes to the electoral arrangements of the principal area, the principal 

council must first obtain the consent of the Welsh Ministers. 

2.64 Any Order made by the principal council should be sent to the Welsh Government, 

Ordnance Survey, the Commission and to any body affected by the changes such as town or 

community councils.

2.65 It is common practice that changes made in Orders by the Commission, principal 

councils and Welsh Government will come into force at the first ordinary council election following 

the date on which the Order is made.

Community electoral reviews by the Commission under section 32

2.66 As noted in section 1 of this guidance, section 32 of the Act gives the Commission the 

power to carry out reviews of the electoral arrangements of communities in certain circumstances. 

When the Commission does so, the principal council for the relevant area will be the implementing 

authority for the purposes of the Act, and the Commission will submit its final report and 

recommendations to the principal council.

2.67 When it receives a final report of this nature from the Commission, a principal 

council can either implement the recommendations as made by the Commission, implement the 

recommendations with modifications that have been agreed between the principal council and the 

Commission, or decide to take no action: see section 39(3) of the Act. 

Tudalen 121



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202232

2.68 If the principal council decides to make an implementing order it must first wait 6 

weeks from the date on which it receives the Commission’s final report. While this is not a formal 

consultation period, experience suggests that interested parties may submit comments on the 

Commission’s recommendations to the principal council during this period. In similar situations, the 

Commission’s normal practice is to acknowledge comments received and take them into account 

in determining what (if any) implementing action to take. Principal councils may wish to consider 

proceeding similarly. 

2.69 If the principal council decides to take no action, or 6 months have elapsed since 

the council received the Commission’s report and no implementing order has been made, the 

Commission will be entitled under section 39(7) of the Act to refer to the matter to the Welsh 

Ministers and request that they make an implementing order.

Tudalen 122



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 33

Community Reviews – Best Practice

3.1 Best practice in the conduct of community reviews has evolved over time and has been 

the subject of handbooks published by the Association of Electoral Administrators. This is not to say 

that every principal council across Wales has followed these best practice recommendations, but 

many do.

3.2 The aspects of best practice described in this section are recommended to be carried 

out alongside, and incorporated into, the statutory process described in the preceding section. They 

are not a substitute for complying with the requirements of the Act. 

3.3 This section addresses the following aspects of best practice:

• Terms of Reference for reviews;

• Council Size Policies; and

• The amalgamation and grouping of communities 

Terms of Reference

3.4 Whilst not a requirement of the Act, it has become common practice for principal 

councils to develop and publicise Terms of Reference (“ToR”) for a community review.

3.5 The ToR will usually set out the proposed timetable and procedures for the review, 

provide guidance and set out the issues that will be considered during the course of the review. 

Provision of a ToR allows the principal council to ensure that it is seen to be following a set procedure 

and taking into account appropriate considerations for the review, and allows interested parties 

Tudalen 123



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202234

to understand how to effectively engage in the review. It also provides the Commission (where the 

Commission is the implementing authority) with information as to whether the principal council has 

appropriately conducted the review under the terms of the Act.

3.6 Among other things, the ToR for a review might therefore contain: An indicative 

timetable for the review

• a description of the process the principal council will follow

• Information as to relevant considerations during the review – which might include explanations 

of: 

 — the Council Size Policy (see 3.11 below)

 — Considerations as to the grouping and amalgamation of communities (addressed further below);

 — Matters which must be taken into account by the principal council pursuant to the terms of the 

Act, for example when considering changes to electoral arrangements (as referred to in section 2 

of this guidance, above) 

 — An outline of the permissible outcomes of the review and any limitations imposed by the Act on 

the principal council’s ability to recommend or make changes. 

3.7 The principal council may wish to informally consult with the Commission or colleagues 

from other principal councils in the drafting of the ToR. The principal council may also wish to 

consult with the Welsh Language Commissioner when considering Welsh language community or 

community ward names as part of the community review process.

3.8 Once a draft ToR has been agreed by the relevant principal council authority, it may be 

Tudalen 124



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 35

appropriate in some circumstances to consult interested parties on the contents of the ToR. As noted 

in section 2 of this guidance (under the heading “Initial publicity”), a consultation of this nature will 

occur prior to the commencement of the review, and the consultation period should be long enough 

to provide a reasonable opportunity for interested parties to respond. It is common practice in this 

context for a consultation period to be between 6 and 12 weeks long. 

3.9 A “pre-review” consultation of this nature will introduce additional delay, so is more 

likely to be appropriate for large-scale community reviews (such as a section 25 review of the 

boundaries of all, or numerous, communities within the principal area) rather than for small-scale 

reviews (such as a section 31 review of the electoral arrangements of one community only). Any 

“pre-review” consultation will not replace or remove the need for the initial consultation that must 

be carried out upon formal commencement of a community review, nor the consultation in relation 

to the principal council’s Draft Proposals Report (both of which are described in section 2 of this 

guidance). 

3.10 Once a “pre-review” consultation has ended, any representations received will need 

to be considered and a final ToR produced for approval by the principal council. Once the ToR is 

finalised, the principal council will be in a position to begin the review.

Council Size Policy

3.11 Whilst not a requirement of the Act, it has become common practice for principal 

councils to develop, consult on and then publish a Council Size Policy. This is ordinarily included 

within a ToR.

Tudalen 125



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202236

3.12 The Council Size Policy creates a mechanism to determine, for the principal area’s 

community and town councils, the appropriate number of community councillors for a given town 

or community based on the electorate of the community. Ideally it should ensure that representation 

on a community or town council is, as far as is practicable, the same across all the community 

councils within the principal area. 

3.13 Issues a principal council may wish to consider when developing a council size model 

are:

• An approximate councillor allocation per electorate

• Provision of an overall minimum and maximum number of community councillors for a 

community council. Historically the minimum number of councillors for a community council has 

been 7, but some councils have used 6. The largest community council in Wales at present is 24. 

The maximum size may be dependent on the following factors (below) in this list.

• The existing community council sizes

• The scale of the activity of the community councils in a principal council area.

• The geography of the principal council area

• The population density of the principal council area

3.14 Each principal council may wish to determine its own policy, based on its own 

Tudalen 126



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 37

considerations. It may be that it wishes to discuss the modelling with the Commission or other 

principal councils. The Commission can provide examples of models utilised by other principal 

councils in previous reviews. 

Amalgamation and Grouping of Communities

3.15 A principal council may receive a request from a group of communities wishing to 

conduct their business together, allowing for cost savings or increased capacity to expand on their 

services or functions.

3.16 Alternatively, a principal council may take the view that in certain areas, or more widely 

across their principal area, they wish to delegate functions to the communities or towns within 

their jurisdiction. In doing so they may require communities or towns to be of a certain specific 

size, whether geographically or in terms of electorate, in order that the communities have sufficient 

capacity to discharge these duties.

3.17 In such circumstances consideration may be given to either grouping or amalgamating 

the existing community or town councils to provide that capacity. 

3.18 Where a principal council wishes to apply such a model across its principal area it 

should consider setting out a Community Amalgamation / Grouping Policy. This policy should set 

out maximum and minimum sizes of the groups and any factors it is taking into consideration when 

creating group communities. 

Amalgamation

Tudalen 127



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202238

3.19 The amalgamation of communities involves the joining of two or more existing 

communities together to form one, new, larger community. The existing community councils are 

dissolved and a new separate community area and council are established. Consideration, as with all 

communities, should be given to the warding of that new community. Unless specific considerations 

would suggest a different approach, it may be most appropriate for the wards of the new community 

to reflect the boundaries of the former communities that have been amalgamated. 

Grouping

3.20 A principal council may group two or more communities together under a common 

community council. However, unlike an amalgamation of communities, each community 

council (and community ward where appropriate) being grouped will continue to have separate 

representation on the common community council. For more information on common community 

councils please see the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011, Part 7, Chapter 2.

Tudalen 128



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 39

Assistance From The Commission

4.1 Due to the Commission’s role, it has expertise in the conduct of reviews under the Act. 

The Commission is willing to share its expertise with principal councils where to do so may assist 

in the conduct of community reviews under the Act and may improve the process and outcomes of 

community reviews. 

4.2 The Commission therefore welcomes informal discussions for the purposes of assisting 

principal councils to plan and execute community reviews. The Commission also recommends that 

it should be included in any consultation or information that is distributed by the principal council as 

part of a community review. Furthermore, principal councils may wish to share with the Commission 

drafts of materials to be used in a community review – such as descriptions of the process that are 

contained in Terms of Reference – for the Commission’s comment. The Commission will endeavour 

to provide helpful responses, where it is able to do so within the constraints imposed by its functions 

and other work. 

Tudalen 129



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202240

Appendix 1: Glossary Of Terms
Commission The Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales.
Community 
(area)

The unit of local government that lies below the level of the principal council

Community 
Coun-cil

An elected council that provides services to their particular community area. 
A community council may be divided for community electoral purposes into 
community wards.

Community / 
Town ward

An area within a community council created for community electoral purposes.

Directions Directions issued by Welsh Ministers under Section 48 of the Act.
Electoral wards The areas into which principal areas are divided for the purpose of electing 

county councillors, previously referred to as electoral divisions.
Electoral review A review in which the Commission considers the electoral arrangements for a 

principal council.
Electorate The number of persons registered to vote in a local government area.
Interested party Person or body who has an interest in the outcome of a community review such 

as local electors, a community council, local MP or AM or political party.
Mandatory
con-sultees

The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013, in section 34 (as 
amended), stipulates the “mandatory consultees” for a community review as 
follows:

(a) Any local authority affected by the review,
(b) the police and crime commissioner for any police area which may be af-
fected by the review,
(c) except where the review is (or is to be) conducted by it, the Commission,
(d) any organisation representing the staff employed by local authorities 
which has asked to be consulted, 
(e) any fire and rescue authority for an area in Wales which may be affected by 
the review; and
(f) such other persons as may be specified by order made by the Welsh Min-
isters.

Order Order made by an implementing body, giving effect to proposals made by the 
principal council or the Commission.

Principal area The area governed by a principal council: in Wales a county or county bor-ough
Principal council The single tier organ of local government, responsible for all or almost all local 

government functions within its area. A county or county borough council.
Projected
elec-torate

The five-year forecast of the electorate

The Act The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013
Town Council Community councils for communities which have the status of a town are known 

as town councils. A town council may be divided for community elec-toral 
purposes into wards.

Order Order made by an implementing body, giving effect to proposals made by the 
principal council or the Commission.

Principal area The area governed by a principal council: in Wales a county or county borough

Tudalen 130



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 41

Appendix 2: Example Timeline

Timeline (assuming 12 weeks of consultation at each stage)
Month 1 Identify if a Section 25 or Section 31 Review is 

being carried out.
Set up cross party working group and agree 
on Terms of Reference

Month 2 Carry out initial publicity and publish Terms 
of Reference.
Commence consultation on Terms of 
Reference (6-12 weeks)

Month 5 Initial investigation and consultation (6-12 
weeks)

Month 9 Cross party working group and officials to 
consider results of the initial inves-tigation 
and all representations received.
Development of Draft Proposals.

Month 11 Publish Draft Proposals Report and 
consultation (6-12 weeks)

Month 15 Cross party working group and officials to 
consider all representations received.
Development of Final Report.

Month 17 Endorsement at Full Council and Publish Final 
Report followed by submission to LDBCW if it 
is a Section 25 Review.
If a Section 31 Review is undertaken, the 
Principal Council can make an Order 6 weeks 
after the Final Report is published.

Month 19 LDBCW to consider the Final Report and 
undertake its duty as the ‘implementing 
authority’.

Tudalen 131



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 202242Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 42
Tudalen 132



Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales /  Community Review Guidance 2022 43

©LDBCW Copyright 2022

Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales 
Ground Floor, Hastings House, Fitzalan Court 
Cardiff, CF24 0BL

Telephone: +44 (0)29 20464819 
Telephone: +44 (0)29 21055521 
E-mail: enquiries@boundaries.wales

The Commission welcomes correspondence, e-mails and telephone calls either in English or Welsh.  
To contact the Commission, please write to:

Tudalen 133



tudalen wag



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Review of Communities and Electoral Arrangements 

Council Size Policy 

Ahead of Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council its community boundaries, this 
document seeks to set out our Council Size Policy. It has been drafted having  
consideration to section 3.11 to 3.14 of the Local Democracy and Boundary 
Commission for Wales (LDBCW) guidance, published in 2022. Consideration has also 
been given to the experiences and lessons learnt from other Welsh Local Authorities. 
 
The review will: 
 
• Ensure that each town/community council area that is created is represented by a  
  maximum of 23 councillors and a minimum of 7 councillors; 
 
• Ensure that the ratio of councillors to electors are: 

- a minimum of 1 : 500 for urban areas, and 
- a minimum of 1 : 250 for rural/mixed areas; 

 
• Ensure that a community council area has no fewer than a total of 700 electors  
  (i.e. the total of the communities wards within that town/community council  
  area); 
 
• Consider strong, evidence-based arguments to create a community ward that  
  has fewer than 250 electors; 
 
• Where possible, community wards are removed and councillor representation  
  is based on the whole community council area; and that the precept collected  
  from smaller villages will be available to each community ward. 
 
General 
 
The Council accepts that it will not be able to apply a one size fits all approach to the  
setting of town/community council areas and community wards in Rhondda Cynon Taf. 
However, the Council also believes that a consistent approach needs to be applied to 
the levels of representation that communities and community wards will provide. 
 
The Council Size Policy should ensure community ties and land mass (i.e. the  
geographical size of any proposed Community Council). 
 
It should be noted that the ratios stated above are not prescriptive to the review and 
are subject to consultation. The ratios in this policy will be used as a point of reference.  
 
Each area should be considered on its own merits having regard to population,  
geography, and the pattern of communities. 
 
 

Tudalen 135

https://d34hss7hg6i3n.cloudfront.net/publications/Community-Review-Guidance-new.pdf
https://d34hss7hg6i3n.cloudfront.net/publications/Community-Review-Guidance-new.pdf


In determining whether additional representation is required for a community, the  
council will have consideration to the levels of uncontested seats at community level.  
It should also be noted that the community boundaries will guide the review, not the  
electoral arrangements. 
 
Whilst the Council acknowledges that these ratios will still provide varying levels of  
representation throughout Rhondda Cynon Taf, it will ensure that the level of 
representations received in communities with similar characteristics is consistent. At the 
same time the Council will also ensure that smaller, rural communities receive adequate 
representation at local government level. 

Tudalen 136



1 
 

 

 
 

REVIEW OF COMMUNITY ARRANGEMENTS OF RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 

 
 
Introduction...................................................................................... 2 
 
Why are we undertaking this review..................................................  2 
 
What is the aim of the review............................................................  2 
 
What can be considered under this review.......................................  2 
 
Who will undertake the review..........................................................  2 
 
Public Consultations and Submissions.............................................  3 
 
Council Size Policy………………………………………………………. 3 
 
Welsh Language Names Policy………………………………………. 4 
 
Timetable for Review........................................................................  4 
 
Supporting Information.....................................................................  4 
 
  

Tudalen 137



2 
 

Introduction 
 
The legislation that covers community reviews is the Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 
2013 (the Act). Under the Act the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales (the 
Commission) has a general duty to monitor arrangements for local government across Wales. 
Each principal council however has a duty to monitor the communities in its area and, where 
appropriate, the electoral arrangements of such communities for the purposes of considering 
whether to make or recommend changes. These changes are brought about by means of 
community boundaries reviews and community electoral reviews.  
 
The Principal Council (the Council) is conducting a review of its community arrangements. This 
review is being carried out under section 25 of the Act, which covers the changes to boundaries 
and any consequential changes to electoral arrangements. 
 
The first stage of the review is to ask all interested parties to consider the current community 
boundaries and submit their views on any changes required to create communities that provide 
for effective and convenient local government. All submissions will then be considered, and the 
Council will publish a Draft Proposals Report and will hold a consultation on those proposals. All 
submissions will then be considered, and Final Proposals will be submitted to the Local 
Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales. The Commission will then if it thinks fit, to give 
effect to these recommendations either as submitted, or with modifications.   
 
The review will start in May 2024 with final recommendations being provisionally scheduled to be 
submitted for adoption in March 2025. 
 
Why are we undertaking this review? 
The Council has a duty to review the community arrangements across the principal council area 
and to report to the Commission on their community arrangements every ten years. This is with 
the aim of ensuring that communities continue to reflect local identities and facilitate effective 
and convenient local government. 
 
What is the aim of the review? 
The Council aims to ensure that community boundaries reflect the identities and interests of the 
communities across the principal council area and that they are both effective and convenient. 
 
As part of the review, the Council will have regard to: 

• the creation, abolition or merging of communities and community wards 
• the name of the community and, where warded, the name of community wards 
• Where changes have been made to the boundaries of communities or community wards 

the number of councillors representing the community and, where warded, the number 
of councillors per ward. 

• The wards that are contested and uncontested in recent community council elections 
 
What can be considered under this review? 
This review will look at the community boundaries across the principal council area. Any 
changes to electoral arrangements for communities will only be considered as a consequence 
of any changes to community boundaries. 
 
Who will undertake this review? 
The Council is responsible for undertaking the review under section 25 of the Act. On completion 
of the review, the Council will submit recommendations to the Local Democracy and Boundary 
Commission for Wales. The Commission will then if it thinks fit, to give effect to these 
recommendations either as submitted, or with modifications.   
 

Tudalen 138



3 
 

 
 
Public Consultation and Submissions 
When undertaking the review, the Council is required to undertake such steps as it thinks fit to 
ensure that persons who may be interested in the review are informed of the review and are 
informed of any draft proposals or recommendations. In addition to consulting with the wider 
public, the Council undertakes to meet these duties by writing to: 
 

• The Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales; 
• The Town and Community Councils across the principal council area; 
• The Senedd Members representing the area;  
• The Regional Senedd Members for the area; 
• The Members of UK Parliament representing the area; 
• Elected Members;  
• Police & Crime Commissioner; 
• South Wales Fire & Rescue Authority; 
• Welsh Language Commissioner; 
• The Welsh Government;  
• Trade Unions; and 
• Ordnance Survey. 

 
The Council will also give official notice at different stages of the review, deposit copies of reports 
and documents at the Council’s Electoral Services Office and place appropriate documents on 
the Council’s website. 
 
Comments and submissions may be made at two stages of the review, the initial investigations 
and draft proposals consultation periods. 
 
All comments and submissions will be given due consideration in the review if the 
following criteria are met: - 
 

• Comments are received by 11.59pm of the timetabled deadline. 
• All comments are received with a name and address identifying the sender. Anonymous 

submissions will not be accepted, though personal details of members of the public will not 
be made public. Submissions from representative bodies and persons such as Councillors 
and Members of the Senedd etc will be named within the report. 

• Where an organisation or an individual is making submissions concerning the 
review, they shall show how either maintaining the status-quo or making changes are 
desirable in the interests of effective and convenient local government. 

 
Council Size Policy 
The Councils’ community review will be undertaken subject to section 25 of the Act and 
therefore will focus on making boundary changes to ensure that community boundaries reflect 
the identities and interests of the communities across the principal council area and that they 
are both effective and convenient. Any consequential changes to electoral arrangements will 
only be made when changes to community or community ward boundaries have been made. 
 
The Council has stated that communities should be represented by no less than 7 councillors. 
Community Council areas should have no fewer than a total of 700 electors (i.e. the total of the 
communities wards within that town/community council area); 
 
The principal council has also stated that community wards should consist of no less than 250 
electors for, and ratios of councillors to electors are: 

Tudalen 139



4 
 

 
- a minimum of 1 : 500 for urban areas, and 
- a minimum of 1 : 250 for rural/mixed areas; 

 
Welsh Language Names Policy 
 
In the creation of any new names the Council will consult the Welsh Language Commissioner 
(WLC). The WLC is responsible for advising on the standard forms of Welsh place-names. The 
WLC has convened a Place-names Standardisation Panel to provide recommendations and 
expert advice in this field. In forming its recommendations, the Panel follows national 
standardisation guidelines and also gives consideration to the meaning, history and etymology of 
the place-names, as well as their usage. The WLC will be included as a mandatory consultee in 
the review. 
 
Timetable for the Review 
 
The review will start in April 2024 with final recommendations being provisionally scheduled to be 
submitted in March 2025. Any changes that occur as a result of the review process would then 
come into effect for the next Local Government Elections in 2027. 
 
Action  Period Date 
Start of Review and initial publicity  May 2024 
Initial Investigations 6 Weeks July 2024 to August 2024 

Draft Proposal Publication/ Consultation 6 Weeks November 2024 to 
December 2024 

Final Recommendation Submission   March 2025 
 
Supporting Information 
 
Further information relating to the review, including electorate figures, a map of the existing 
community boundaries and guidance, are available on the Councils’ website. 
 
 

Tudalen 140



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-2024 
 

COUNCIL 
 

24th APRIL 2024 
 

RE-APPOINTMENT OF AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

  
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

To consider re-appointing one of the Independent Members of the 
Standards Committee for a further term. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1 Members are recommended to re-appoint Mr. David J Bowen as an 

Independent Member of the Standards Committee for a period of four 
years from 30th April 2024. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Council resolved at its meeting on 14 November 2001, that the 

total number of Members on the Standards Committee would be six.   
Regulations prescribe that if the membership of a Standards 
Committee is even, then half of the Members must be Independent 
Members.   One of the Independent Members must be Chair of the 
Standards Committee.  The term of office of the Independent Members 
is six years with provision for re-appointment for one further term of 
four years. 

 
3.2 The term of office of one of the Independent Members on the 

Standards Committee, namely, Mr. David J Bowen, expires on 29th 
April 2024.   During his term in office, Mr. Bowen has built up 
considerable experience and is the current Chair of the Committee. In 
order to maintain continuity on the Standards Committee, Mr. Bowen 
has agreed, subject to Council approval, to his term of office being 
extended for a further period of four years.         

Tudalen 141

Agendwm 11



 
4. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS / SOCIO-ECONOMIC 

DUTY  
 
4.1  There are no specific equality and diversity implications emanating 

from this report.  
 
5. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  There are no Welsh language implications arising as a result of the 

recommendations in this report. 
 
6.  CONSULTATION  
 
6.1  The relevant Independent Member has been consulted and has agreed 

to continue for a further term.  
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1 Remuneration of Independent Members is determined by the 

Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales in their annual reports. 
Costs attributable to the Member Remuneration and Allowances 
Scheme are considered as part of the annual budget setting process.  

 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS/LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
8.1 The Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 2001 set out the 

provisions as to the appointment of Independent Members and 
Community Council Members to the Standards Committee. The 
proposed process set out in the report is in accordance with those 
regulations. 

 
9. CONCLUSION  
 
9.1 The term of office of one of the Independent Members on the 

Standards Committee, namely, Mr. David J. Bowen, is due to expire 
and Council is asked to consider extending his term of office for a 
further period of four years.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 142



 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

as amended by the 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

COUNCIL  
 

24th APRIL 2024 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

 
RE-APPOINTMENT OF AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Freestanding Matter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 143



tudalen wag



 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023 - 2024 

COUNCIL 

24 APRIL 2024 

NOTICES OF MOTION 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION 

 
 

1.   PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1  Council is asked to consider the Notice of Motion (NOM) as set out below for 

which the necessary notice has been provided and make an appropriate 
recommendation in accordance with Rule 10.1 of the Constitution. 

 
2.   RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that Members: 
 
2.1 Consider the Notices of Motion as outlined in paragraphs 4.2 and 4.3 and make 

an appropriate recommendation; and 
 
2.2 Request that the Service Director Democratic Services & Communication 

makes the necessary arrangements to record the NOMs and provide any 
updates through the publication of ‘information reports’ on the Council agenda, 
as formerly agreed. 

 
3.   REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATION  
 
3.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution.  
 
4.   NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
4.1  To consider the under-mentioned Notices of Motion which have been submitted 

in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10.1 and received by the Proper 
Officer, standing in the names of County Borough Councillors:  

4.2   A. Morgan, M. Webber, L. Addiscott, M. D. Ashford, J. Barton, D. R. Bevan, J. 
Bonetto, S. Bradwick, J. Brencher, G. Caple, J. Cook, A. Crimmings, S. J. 
Davies, R. Davis, A. J. Dennis, V. Dunn, E. L. Dunning, J. Edwards, J. A. Elliott, 
L. Ellis, S. Emanuel, R. Evans, A. S. Fox, B. Harris, S. Hickman, G. Holmes, G. 
Hopkins, W. Hughes, G. Jones, G. O. Jones, R. R. Lewis, W. Lewis, C. 

Tudalen 145

Agendwm 12



Leyshon, M. Maohoub, C. Middle, N. H. Morgan, S. Morgans, M. A. Norris, D. 
Owen-Jones, D. Parkin, S. Powderhill, C. Preedy, S. Rees, A. Roberts, J. 
Smith, G. Stacey, L. A. Tomkinson, W. Treeby, J. Turner, G. L. Warren, K. 
Webb, D. Williams, G. E. Williams, R. Williams, T. Williams, R. Yeo. 

In July 2022, this Council agreed a Notice of Motion that called for the 
Conservative Westminster Government to fully fund a proper pay rise for Local 
Government workers.  Since then, funding from Westminster for our struggling 
public services has continued to follow an unsustainable path that has pushed 
many services towards the brink. 

As part of this, our loyal and integral local government staff have had to 
increasingly go over and above in order to keep services running.  The 
protection afforded to Welsh local authorities by the Welsh Government is 
diminishing as the impact of the massive and sustained funding cuts are now 
increasingly apparent and very real. 
 
Despite leading the response against the pandemic and the Conservative 
Westminster Government’s cost of living crisis, local government staff have not 
been given the recognition they deserve. 

Instead, since 2010, local government workers have lost an average of 25% 
from the value of their pay, framed in the midst of the ongoing cost of living 
crisis.  

Over the same period, the cost of living has risen by 60%, more and more local 
government workers have been pushed into debt, and their basic spending has 
overtaken their income, with 1 in 5 households having less than £100 to spare 
each month. This is a terrible situation for anyone to find themselves in. 
 
At the same time, workers have experienced ever-increasing workloads and 
persistent job insecurity. Across the UK, the local government workforce has 
fallen by 30% as a result of job cuts. This has had a disproportionate impact on 
women, with women making up more than three-quarters of the local 
government workforce. 
 
Local government continues to show how indispensable it is. But staff are 
increasingly leaving the sector for better paid jobs elsewhere, for example in 
retail, leaving local authorities with a massive skills gap, and vacancies in a 
range of key services, including in social care, education and youth services. 
 
Local government finance is in an enormously difficult state, facing an 
estimated funding gap of more than £3.5 billion for 2024/25.   Here in RCT we 
are also facing the most difficult period of budget setting since the Council was 
created, despite our careful and prudent financial management.  

Recent research shows that if the Government were to fully fund the unions’ 
2024 pay claim, around half of the money would be recouped thanks to 
increased tax revenue, reduced expenditure on benefits and tax credits, and 
increased consumer spending in the local economy. 
 

Tudalen 146



This council believes: 
 
Our workers are public service super-heroes. They keep our communities clean 
and safe, look after those in need and keep our, neighbourhoods, towns and 
cities running. 
 
Without the professionalism and dedication of our staff, the council services our 
residents rely on would not be deliverable. 
 
Local government workers deserve a proper real-terms pay increase, which will 
only be affordable alongside UK Government funding. The Government needs 
to take responsibility and fully fund this increase; it should not put the burden on 
local authorities whose funding has been cut to the bone. 
 
This council resolves to: 

• Make representations to the Westminster government to ensure that our staff 
get the best possible pay deal, with recognition of the current financial situation 
facing local government. 
 

• Call on the Local Government Association and Welsh Local Government 
Association to make urgent representations to the Westminster government to 
make 100% of the funding available to support the NJC pay claim, working with 
the unions to present a united front in defence of the local government 
workforce. 
 

• Write to the Chancellor and Secretary of State to call for a pay increase for 
local government workers to be wholly funded with new money from central 
government. 
 

• Meet with local NJC union representatives to convey support for the pay claim 
and consider practical ways in which the Council can reasonably support the 
campaign. 
 

• Encourage all local government workers to join a union. 
 

 

********************************************************************************************* 

 

4.3    W. Jones, W. Owen, P. Binning 

This Council notes the important role notices of motion can play in providing the 
opportunity for Elected Members to present policies proposals or for Members 
collectively to take a view on important issues.  

This Council notes the positive difference Notices of Motion have made; 
however, Council acknowledges they can sometimes inevitably create an 

Tudalen 147



adversarial discussion in respect of a particular topic, due to the political 
environment in which we operate.  

This Council notes that following the introduction of live broadcasting, the 
mechanisms to discuss motions may seem complex to residents and the public 
viewing our meetings.  

This Council therefore resolves to: 

• Request that the Head of Democratic Services, in discussion with the Presiding 
Member, brings forward an officer report, through the most appropriate 
process, to enable Elected Members to consider potential revisions or other 
options, to enable Elected Members to discuss important matters, in a most 
relevant and co-operative way.  
 

• Kindly request that this report presents best practice and the arrangements 
provided by other local authorities for Members to discuss and consider.  
 

5.    FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 
 

  6.     LEGAL IMPLICATIONS AND LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 

6.1    The report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Constitution 
 
7.     EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1  There are no Equality and Diversity implications arising from this report and   

no Equality Impact Assessment is deemed necessary for the purposes of this 
report as it relates to a procedural matter under the Councils Constitution. 
  

    7.2    The procedural rules regarding a Notice of Motion are contained within Council’s 
Constitution which sets out the framework for the decision-making roles and 
responsibilities.  

     8.    CONCLUSION  

8.1   This report presents for Members’ consideration the Notices of Motion submitted 
to Council for the period April 2024 for which the necessary notice has been 
given. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 148



 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

as amended by 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

COUNCIL 

24th APRIL 2024 

 
NOTICE OF MOTION  

 
 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 149



 
 

 

Tudalen 150


	Agenda
	4 Cofnodion
	Cofnodion

	6 Cwestiynau gan yr Aelodau
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE
	REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & COMMUNICATION.
	REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & COMMUNICATION.

	Item:  MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE

	Background Papers

	8 Cynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor 2024-2030 (Drafft)
	Item:
	Background Papers:
	Atodiad a

	9 Cydbwysedd Gwleidyddol
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	APPENDIX 1
	POLITICAL BALANCE 2023/24

	10 Adolygiad o Drefniadau Cymunedol Rhondda Cynon Taf
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3

	11 AIL-BENODI AELOD ANNIBYNNOL I'R PWYLLGOR SAFONAU
	12 Rhybudd o Gynnig
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL


